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UNITED STATES
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Washington, D.C. 20549
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ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014
OR
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ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period from to
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) dfie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e08#dturities Act. Yedd No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4188ring the preceding 12 months (or for
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lidsnstted electronically and posted on its corpok&tb site, if any, every Interactive Data File negd to be submitted and posted pursuant
to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8§ 232.405 of thiamter) during the preceding 12 months (or for sshudrter period that the registrant was requiresbitumit and post such files). Ye&l
No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiiiers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K (825 of this chapter) is not contained herein, aitichot be contained, to the best of
registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfisation statements incorporated by reference inIRaf this Form 10-K or any amendment to thisrifol0-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compa&se the definitions of “large accelerated
filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportir@pmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file m} Accelerated filel O
Non-accelerated file (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes O No

The registrant was not a public company as of Déesril 2013, the last day of the registrant’s mesently completed second fiscal quarter, and fherecannot calculate the aggregate
market value of its common stock held by non-affés as of such date.

As of August 15, 2014, there were 49,563,736 shaifrése registrant's common stock issued and ounithitey.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
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PART 1
Forward Looking Statements

Except for the historical financial information damed herein, the matters discussed in this reporForm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéi@uvard-looking” statements within the meaning $&ction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecuUfitielsange Act of 1934, as amended. All statemettiist than statements of historical fact,
are statements that could be deemed forward-loogiatgments, including, but not limited to, statetee@egarding our future financial
position, business strategy and plans and objestfenanagement for future operations. When us#usrmnnual Report, the wor:

“believe,” “may,” “could,” “will,” “estimate,” “con tinue,” “intend,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “plan, project” and similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements.

We have based these forward-looking statementsliaan our current expectations and projectionswtfature events and financial
trends that we believe may affect our financialdition, results of operations, business stratepprsterm and long-term business operations
and objectives, and financial needs. These forwaolting statements are subject to certain risks andertainties that could cause our actual
results to differ materially from those reflectedthe forward-looking statements. Factors that dozduse or contribute to such differences
include, but are not limited to, those discussethis report, and in particular, the risks discudsender Part 1, Item 1A:"Risk Factors” and
those discussed in other documents we file witlsdwirities and Exchange Commission. Except asreztjy law, we do not intend to update
these forward-looking statements publicly or to afedhe reasons actual results could differ matgritom those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements, even if new information beccamagable in the future.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assuonsj the forward-looking events and circumstanéssugsed in this report and in the
documents incorporated in this report may not ocual actual results could differ materially and adsely from those anticipated or implied
in the forward-looking statements. Accordingly,dees are cautioned not to place undue reliancewhdgorward-looking statements.

Iltem 1. Business.
Overview

We are a cloud-based provider of payroll and huoegital management, or HCM, software solutionsfiedium-sized organizations,
which we define as those having between 20 and)le@tployees. Our comprehensive and easy-to-usta@enable our clients to manage
their workforces more effectively. As of June 3012, we served approximately 8,500 clients aciosstS., which on average had over 100
employees. Our solutions help drive strategic huoapital decision-making and improve employee eagant by enhancing the human
resource, payroll and finance capabilities of dignts.

Our multi-tenant software platform is highly configble and includes a unified suite of payroll &@M applications, such as time
and labor tracking, benefits and talent managentunt.solutions have been organically developed fooimcore payroll solution, which we
believe is the most critical system of record fadinm-sized organizations and an essential gatéavather HCM functionality. Our payroll
and HCM applications use a unified database andgeaobust on-demand reporting and analytics. @@atform provides intuitive self-service
functionality for employees and managers combinghl seamless integration across all our solutidvis.supplement our comprehensive
software platform with an integrated implementator client service organization, all of which designed to meet the needs of medium-
sized organizations.

Effective management of human capital is a coretfan in all organizations and requires a significeommitment of resources.
Organizations are faced with complex and ever-cimgngquirements, including diverse federal, state local regulations across multiple
jurisdictions. In addition, the workplace opergtenvironment is rapidly changing as employeeseimsingly become mobile, work remot
and expect an end user experience similar to thairssumer-oriented Internet applications. Medisimed organizations operating without the
infrastructure, expertise or personnel of largaegmises are uniquely pressured in this complekdymamic environment. Existing solutions
offered by third-party payroll service providersxdzave limited capabilities and configurability \ehenterprise-focused software vendors can
be expensive and time-consuming to implement anthg® We believe that medium-sized organizatioadatter served by solutions
designed to meet their unique needs.

Our solutions provide the following key benefitsatar clients:
e  Comprehensive cloud-based platform optimized totriteepayroll and HCM needs of medium-sized orgains;
e Modern, intuitive user experience and self-sere@pabilities that significantly increase employagagement;

*  Flexible and configurable platform that aligns whthsiness processes and centralizes payroll and Had)
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»  Software as a service, or SaaS, delivery modelréthices total cost of ownership for our clients a

*  Seamless data integration with our extensive padoesystem that saves time and expense and reitheceask of errors.

We market and sell our products primarily througin direct sales force. We generate sales leadadhra variety of focused
marketing initiatives and by referrals from ourendive referral network of 401(k) advisors, besediiministrators, insurance brokers, third-
party administrators and HR consultants. We daevenue from a client based on the solutions psethdy the client, the number of client
employees and the amount, type and timing of sesvizovided in respect of those client employees.adnual revenue retention rate was
greater than 92% in each of the fiscal years 20023 and 2014. Our total revenues increased frdsnl®Hillion in fiscal 2012 to $77.3 millic
in fiscal 2013, representing a 40% year-over-yeardase and to $108.7 million in fiscal 2014, repreing a 41% year-oveear increase. O
recurring revenues increased from $52.5 milliofigoal 2012 to $72.8 million in fiscal 2013, repeating a 39% year-over-year increase, and
to $101.9 million in fiscal 2014, representing &e#Qear-over-year increase. Although we do not Hamg-term contracts with our clients and
our agreements with clients are generally termimaipl 60 days’ or less notice, our recurring revanodel provides significant visibility into
our future operating results.

Industry Background

Effective management of human capital is a coretfan for all organizations and requires a sigrifitccommitment of resources.
Identifying, acquiring and retaining talent is @opity at all levels of an organization. In today&reasingly complex business and regulatory
environment, organizations are being pressuredataage critical payroll and HCM functions more efifealy, automate manual processes anc
decrease their operating costs.

Complex and Dynamic Tax and Regulatory Environment

The tax and regulatory environment in the Unitesité&t is complex and dynamic. Organizations areestiby a myriad of tax, benefit,
workers compensation, healthcare and other rudgsilations and reporting obligations. In additiorutS. federal taxing and regulatory
authorities, there are more than 10,000 state@oal tax codes in the United States. Further, fddstate and local government agencies
continually enact and amend the rules, regulatnsreporting requirements with which organizationst comply.

Growing Demand for Mobility and Enhanced User Expence

Connectivity and mobility are enabling employeespend less time in traditional office environmegntsl more time working
remotely. This trend increases the demand for athéhand intuitive solutions that improve collabmmatand foster employee engagement,
as remote self-service access to payroll and tieetsieporting, HR and benefits portals and otHentananagement applications. Given the
prominence of consumer-oriented Internet applicsti@mployees expect the user experience and #diiligsef internal systems to be similar
to those of the latest Internet applications, sachinkedIn, Amazon and Facebook.

Medium-Sized Organizations Face Unique Challenges

Medium-sized organizations functioning without th&astructure, expertise or personnel of largeegrises are uniquely pressured
in the current complex and dynamic environment. Byges in these medium-sized organizations oftefopa multiple job functions, and
many medium-sized organizations have limited fim@néechnical and other resources needed to aftdgtmanage their critical business
requirements and to build and maintain the systemsired to do so.

Large Market Opportunity for Payroll and HCM Solubins

According to market analyses published by Inteometi Data Corporation, or IDC, titled Worldwide adds. Human Capital
Management Applications 2013-2017 Forecast: TheicCBpurs Continued Growth (May 2013) and U.S. Hbe@atsourcing Services 2013-
2017 Forecast and Analysis (October 2013), the tda8ket for HCM applications and payroll outsougcservices is estimated to be $22.5
billion in 2014. The market opportunity is driven the importance of payroll and HCM solutions te guccessful management of
organizations.

To estimate our addressable market, we focus alysia on the number of U.S. medium-sized orgaiumatand the number of their
employees. According to the U.S. Census Bureaue there over 565,000 firms with 20 to 999 employieghke U.S. in 2010, employing over
40 million persons. We estimate that if clients ever buy our entire suite of existing solutiondéisttprices, they would spend approximately
$220 per employee annually. Based on this analygelieve our current target addressable maskapproximately $8.8 billion. Our existing
clients do not typically buy our entire suite ofig®mns, and as we continue to expand our
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product offerings, we believe that we have an opmity to increase the amount clients spend ongdbgnd HCM solutions per employee and
to expand our addressable market.

Organizations Are Increasingly Transitioning to S&Solutions

Saas solutions are easier and more affordablegteiment and operate than those offered by traditisoftware providers. SaaS
solutions also enable software updates with gréegquency and without new hardware investmentabkmg organizations to better react to
changes in their environments. Many organizatioedransitioning to SaaS solutions for front-offluesiness applications such as salesforce
management. Similarly, we believe organizationsaal@pting back-office SaaS applications, such gsoflaand HCM, with increasing
frequency. According to a market analysis publisbgdDC, titled Worldwide SaaS and Cloud Softwa@d2-2017 Forecast and 2012 Vendor
Shares (December 2013), the U.S. SaaS markefrisa¢st to be $20 billion in 2014 and is projectedjtow at a 14% compound annual
growth rate from 2012 to 2017.

Limitations of Existing Solutions

We believe that existing payroll and HCM solutidrase limitations that cause them to underservaitiigue needs of medium-sized
organizations. Existing payroll and HCM solutionslude:

- Traditional Payroll Service ProvidersTraditional payroll service providers are prinhafocused on delivery of a variety of payroll
processing services, insurance products and HRé&ssprocess outsourcing solutions. Many of thelsgiens offer limited
capabilities and integration beyond traditionalqadlyprocessing. The lack of a unified and confagle payroll and HCM suite can
diminish the effectiveness of a system, detraechfuser experience and limit integration with otbelutions. In addition, we believe
that certain traditional payroll service provideften do not provide a high-quality client serveogerience.

« Enterprise-Focused Payroll and HCM Software VenddEaterprise-focused software vendors offer sohgiand services that are
designed for the complex needs and structureg@é lenterprises. As a result, their solutions Gaexpensive, complex and time-
consuming to implement, operate and maintain.

« HCM Point Solution ProvidersMany HCM point solutions lack integrated payrfaihctionality. The implementation and
management of multiple point solutions and thearale on multiple service organizations can be ehglhg and expensive for
medium-sized organizations.

« Manual Processes for Payroll and HCM Functiodanual payroll and HCM processes require incréd#e, payroll and finance
personnel involvement, resulting in higher codtswsr processing and greater risks of data entigrer

Given the challenges medium-sized organizations égerating in complex and dynamic environmentsthadimited ability of
traditional offerings to address these challengesbelieve there is a significant market opportufor a comprehensive, unified SaaS solution
designed to serve the payroll and HCM needs of umediized organizations.

Segment Information

Our chief operating decision maker reviews ourriitial results in total when evaluating financiatfpemance and for purposes of
allocating resources. We have thus determinedatbaiperate in a single cloud-based software selugporting segment.

Our Solution

We are a cloud-based provider of payroll and HCRveare solutions for medium-sized organizationsur €olutions enable medium-
sized organizations to more efficiently manage pthynd human capital in their complex and dynaaperating environments. As of June 30
2014, we served approximately 8,500 clients adtos$).S., which on average had over 100 employees.

The key benefits of our solution include the follog:

«  Comprehensive Platform Optimized for Medium-Sizegh@izations. Our solutions empower finance and HR professioimals
medium-sized organizations to drive strategic hucepital decisions by providing enterprise-gradgrphand HCM
applications, including robust reporting and arias/tOur unified platform fully automates payraliddHCM processes, enabling
our clients to focus on core business activiti®sir solutions help our clients attract, retain amhage their employees within a
single, comprehensive system.




Table of Contents

Modern, Intuitive User Experienc®ur intuitive, easy-to-use interface is based amegul technology and automatically adapts t
users’ devices, including mobile platforms, therskgnificantly increasing accessibility of our sidduns and decreasing the need
for training. Our platform’s self-service functiditg and performance management applications peeithployees with an
engaging experience. Our performance managemelitagns include peer-to-peer employee recognitind social employee
profiles that create a reward and recognition emvirent resulting in greater employee engagement.

Flexible and Configurable Platform\We design our solutions to be flexible and confidple, allowing our clients to match their
use of our software with their specific businesscpsses and workflows. Our platform has been ocgéyideveloped from a
common code base, data structure and user integemading a consistent user experience with pduwéeatures that are easily
adaptable to our clientsleeds. Our systems centralize payroll and HCM, daiaimizing inconsistent and incomplete informa
that can be produced when using multiple databases.

Highly-Attractive SaaS Solution for Medium-Sizegj@nizations Our solutions are cloud-based and offered arbaiption
basis, making them easier and more affordable pdeiment, operate and update and enabling our slterfocus less on their IT
infrastructure and more on their core businessascldud-based software can be operated by a saugtenistrator without the
support of an in-house information technology dapant. Our multi-tenant and modern architectureved! for frequent software
enhancements thereby enabling our clients to teactapidly changing and complex operating envirent. Our cloud-based
platform enables our clients to scale their busiassvithout having to acquire additional hardwaraesolve the integration
challenges that often result from traditional outstng solutions.

Seamless Integration with Extensive Ecosystem f&a. Our platform offers our clients automated datagration with over
200 related third-party partner systems, such agkdObenefits and insurance provider systems. iftégration reduces the
complexity and risk of error of manual data transfend saves time for our clients and their em@ey®Ve integrate data with
these related systems through a secure connewatiich significantly decreases the risk of unauthexdi third-party access and
other security breaches. Our direct and automadéal tdansmission improves the accuracy of datdauilitates data collection in
our partners’ systems. We believe having automdaeal integration with a payroll and HCM providdeelius differentiates our
partners’ product offerings, strengthening theimpetitive positioning in their own markets.

Our Strategy
We intend to strengthen and extend our positioa povider of cloud-based payroll and HCM softwsokutions to medium-sized
organizations. Key elements of our strategy include

Grow Our Client Base We believe that our current client base reprissenly a small portion of the medium-sized orgatians
that could benefit from our solutions. While wevgst approximately 8,500 clients across the U.®fdsine 30, 2014, there were
over 565,000 firms with 20 to 999 employees inlthéted States, employing more than 40 million pass@ccording to the U.S.
Census Bureau in 2010. In order to acquire newidjave plan to continue to grow our sales orgaitizaggressively across all
U.S. geographies.

Expand Our Product OfferingsWe believe that our leadership position is imgigant part the result of our investment and
innovation in our product offerings designed fordiuen-sized organizations. Therefore, we plan togase investment in
software development to continue to advance oufgota and expand our product offerings. For exampie recently introduced
new onboarding functionality that enables payrotl &#R departments to deliver a highly intuitive, bile-responsive onboarding
experience to new hires.

Increase Average Revenue Per Clie®ur average revenue per client has consistemthgased in each of the last three years a:
we have broadened our product offerings. We pldartber grow average revenue per client by selfifayoader selection of
products to new and existing clients.

Extend Technological LeadershifgVe believe that our organically developed cloagda multi-tenant software platform,
combined with our unified database architecturbaeces the experience and usability of our prodpetsiding what we believe
to be a competitive advantage over alternativetisms. Our modern, intuitive user interface utitiZeatures found on many
popular consumer Internet sites, enabling useuséoour solutions with limited training. We plancntinue our technology
innovation, as we have done with our mobile apfilices, social features and analytics capabilities.

Further Develop Our Referral NetworkVe have developed a strong network of referreigpants, such as 401(k) advisors,
benefits administrators, insurance brokers, thadypadministrators and HR consultants that reconthoar
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solutions and provide referrals. We believe thatmatform’s automated data integration with ov@0 2elated third-party partner
systems is valuable to our referral participantsthey are able to access payroll and HR dataghrawsingle system which
decreases complexity and cost and complementsdiveiproduct offerings. We plan to increase intégrawith third-party
providers and expand our referral network to grawaient base and lower our client acquisitiontsos

Our Products

Our cloud-based platform features a suite of udifiayroll and HCM applications. Our solutions aighly configurable and easy to
use, implement, update and maintain.

Paylocity Web Pay
Paylocity Web Pay is designed to provide enterggisele payroll processing and administration.

Feature Functionality
Company-Level Configuration - Real time ability to add, delete and modify clispecific payroll settings, including departmentd, j
codes, earnings, deductions, taxes and garnishi
- Ability to create customized payroll earning or detion code calculations, 401(k) match calculat
and labor cost allocatior
«  Ability to configure payroll audits that identifyopential errors prior to finishing payroll, such as
paying the same employee twi
Configurable Templates «  Combination of standard and modifiable templatesgyed by highly-flexible drag-and-drop
technology
. Standard templates such as new hire, job charaes lef absence and termination templ:
- Enables users to configure user interface to effiity align to organizatio’ business process
- Ability to require additional data, add defaultwa$ and insert new custom fields increases accurac
and consistency of data across the platf

Custom Checklist «  Allows users to track critical steps in hiring asttier processe
. Triggers reports and notification emails to tradkical steps and informs users when tasks are
complete
Advanced Reporting - Easy-to-use, powerful reporting dashboard enaldessuo design and create lzak: reports or rely ¢

over 100 standard repo!
- Ability to generate a variety of g-process reports via report library and report wi
- Real-time report generation, including the abitdyautomatically schedule reports to run on a user-
defined frequenc
«  Point-in-time reporting, including comparative aysd¢ over multiple periods, allowing users to view
data from any time in histol
HR Insight and Analytic «  Provides a dashboard view into critical HR metsash as headcount and employee turn
«  Users can choose between different types of graptiisplay or export the information to
spreadsheets or other docume
Affordable Care Act Complianc -  Allows for modeling of all affordability safe harbmethods
«  Simultaneous measurement of initial and standa@somement periods for new hire employ
«  Reporting that provides multiple views allowing keos and clients to make better informed benefit
decisions
« Advanced search and query capabilities providetglidr administrators to easily access key
employee informatiol
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Paylocity HR

Paylocity HR provides a set of core HR capabililesigned to improve HR compliance, enhance rempdapabilities and reduce the
amount of time necessary to manage employee intoma

Feature Functionality
Employee Record Manageme «  Manage payroll deductions for employee benefit plsunch as health and 401
- Automated employee tir-off request:s
. Track employee skills, events, education and pioploymen:
. Store employee documentation electronic
«  Record and track company property issued to empk
«  Ability to add custom fields to track additional ployee related informatio
HR Compliance and Reportir « Interactive employee organizational ct
«  Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) trackin
«  Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) reporti
«  Occupational Safety & Health Administration (OSH#gcking
«  Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (G298 tracking
«  VETS 100/100A reportini
«  Worker¢ compensation tracking and reporti
«  1-9 verification

Paylocity Impressions

Paylocity Impressions is our advanced social misditure designed to integrate peer-to-peer col&hmr and recognition into our
solution, giving employees the ability to recogniseh other and provide immediate feedback thraeirginlly any device having Internet
access. Paylocity Impressions helps to providelyinmeaningful recognition and promotes repeattpasbehaviors among employees.
Administrators have the ability to give their emyses the option to post their accomplishments eir #tmployee profiles to share with co-
workers and other members of the organization. Bygas can also be given the option to self-martagje profiles as well as update images
and link to social sites such as LinkedIn, Twittad Facebook. We believe that this functionalitijveées a unique and modern solution to
managing employee recognition programs.

Performance Management

Performance Management is designed to bring eabeanvenience to the employee performance appiaisaéss and to give
employees the opportunity to participate in therfprmance review and be more engaged in theiepsidnal development. Employee review:
and appraisals throughout the organization aredtand analyzed in a single system. Key featur@edbrmance Management include:

Feature Functionality
Reviews - Provides the ability for employees and managec®toplete online reviews, add comments and sigi
off on completed review
« Includes automated workflow at each step of theemeprocess with ability for HR administrators to
review and provide feedback prior to final apprc
360° Feedback «  Provides the ability to access feedback from emg#syacross the organization to receive input on
employee performance and accomplishm
«  Enables yeeround or poir-in-time 360° feedbac
Goals Management +  Manages employee goals and appraisals in a sitege o reduce the time required to navigate
between screer
- Allows specific goals to be displayed on the perfance review for increased employee focus and

developmen
«  Assigns goals specific to employees based onlekill and other factoi
Self-Service Se-Up «  Provides the ability to determine and control kegcess factor

+  Provides the ability to create review forms andreeiew notification date reminde
Self-Service HR Portals

Self-Service HR Portals are designed to extendsolutions’ functionality by giving employees andmagers secure and real-time
access to critical payroll and HR information. S&dfrvice HR Portals help to improve communicatidthin clients’ organizations with such
tasks as reviewing time-off requests, schedulirdytzanefits enroliment. Self-Service HR Portals alsavide the ability to post and manage
company news items, add reminders, create custdmpages, view organizational charts and downloddos.
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Feature Functionality
Employee Self-Service Portal «  Full online and mobile access through virtually aeyice having Internet access to individual
payroll, HR and benefits informatic
«  Provides the ability for administrators to commuaéccompany news, policy changes, such as
handbook revisions, and to post documents, cres®m web pages to communicate with emplo
«  Administrators can configure portal to link to ti-party websites or embed vide
+  Allows employees to independently take actions @ghblock in and out, make direct deposit
changes, email check information, access tax foreagjest time off, view time-off balances, access
the company directory, manage contact informe
Manager Se-Service Porta «  Improves communication among managers and HR aymlpand finance departmer
- Provides a single view for managers where theyaggamove employee changes and requests, mane
outstanding tasks and easily access employee iafamr
« A workflow engine allows managers to initiate payerchanges and automatically route changes fo
approval to various levels of the organizat
+  Allows managers to assign supervisors to both tiard indirect report

Paylocity Web Onboarding

Web Onboarding delivers a seamless approach tchirevenboarding and events management. The newi@oknables payroll and
HR departments to deliver a highly intuitive, mebiksponsive onboarding experience to new hiresa#iministrators, Web Onboarding
reduces the manual effort and processes genesslbcmted with onboarding a new hire. Paylocityf®@arding features include:

»  Seamless integration with Paylocity payroll and H@Mdules reduces manual entry of new hire data

»  Mobile responsive design and attractive, intuiiiverface, engaging new hires in the process

* Robust events management capabilities, empowedmngréstrators to proactively manage the onboargirgess

»  High level of customization, allowing administragdo tailor tasks and overall experience for nesg hi

*  Withholding forms wizard, simplifying the processcompleting important tax-related paperwork

*  Ability to add customized content including welcomessage, documents, videos and other companyfispefdrmation.

Administrators can also build workflows to providierts and tasks to other parts of the organizatieolved in the new hire process.
Paylocity Web Time

Paylocity Web Time is a time and attendance satufiesigned to automate manual processes, improdegivity and help
organizations control labor costs. Paylocity Welm& ihandles such tasks as managing schedulesngaakie and attendance, including
overtime, rounding rules, payroll policies, labtioeation and time-off accruals. Paylocity Web Tiadso notes exceptions such as tardiness,
absenteeism and misuse of break or meal periogtoditgt Web Time is fully integrated with Paylocityeb Pay giving supervisors and
employees a single point of entry into the systachautomatic set-up of employee records and psli¢taylocity Web Time also provides the
ability to select from a wide variety of biometdnd bar code hardware options to track employ@es’. tWe believe this integration helps
organizations reduce redundant processes, imprateeadcuracy, reduce leave liability and improaeking capabilities.

Paylocity Web Benefits and Paylocity Enterprise Esits, Powered by bswift

Paylocity Web Benefits and Paylocity Enterprise &én, Powered by bswift are benefit managementtswis that integrate with
insurance carrier systems to provide automatedradtrative processes and allows users to choosefibetections and make life event
changes online, summarize benefit elections anfbpether similar benefit-related tasks. Theseitsohs also enable premium reconciliation,
management of voluntary benefits and advanced tiagorBoth Web Benefits and Paylocity EnterprisnBfits integrate seamlessly with
Paylocity’s Web Pay. Web Benefits features include:

Employee Self-Service Enroliment Portal, desigreeperform on mobile devices as well as desktopdaptdps
e Automated employee deductions updates in Web Pay

e Customizable enrollment portal content (text, linkscuments, logos)

*  Reporting on employee enrollment status and enesitreummary
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»  Configurable Medical, Dental and Vision benefitqgaReimbursement benefit plans (HAS, DCRA, HCRAfg benefits plans
(Basic, Voluntary, AD&D), Long-term and Short-tedisability
e Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) support for imswae carriers

Paylocity Web Benefits features an intuitive desigmake benefits enroliment a simple and stragghird activity for the employee
and reduce the overall time and energy payrollldRdadministrators spend managing benefits enrotmen

Implementation and Client Services

Delivering our clients a positive experience iseasential element of our ability to sell our sauas and retain our clients. We provide
our clients with a single point-of-contact suppleteel by teams with deep technical and subject mexgertise. The single point of contact
allows our account managers to better understandliemts’ needs, which we believe strengthensatient relationships.

Implementation and Training Services

Our clients are medium-sized organizations thatyrieally migrating to our platform from a compaté solution or are adopting an
online payroll and HCM solution for the first timéhese organizations often have limited internabueces and generally rely on us to
implement our solutions.

We typically implement our Paylocity Web Pay prodwithin only three to four weeks, and any addiébproducts thereafter, as
requested by the client. Each client is guidedubhothe implementation process by an implementatiosultant who serves as a single point-
of-contact for all implementation matters. We bedi@ur ability to rapidly implement our solutiorssgrincipally due to the combination of our
emphasis on engagement with the client, our staiimkd methodology, our cloud-based architecturecaamdighly-configurable, easy-to-use
products.

We offer our clients the opportunity to participatdormal training designed to increase theirigptb further utilize the functionality
of our products within their organizations. Ouiiriiag courses are designed to enable selected gagsmf our clients to develop expertise in
our solutions and act as a first-level supportues®for their colleagues.

In order to ensure client satisfaction, a teamlieht service representatives conducts a compréreeasdit of a client’s account after
the client has completed the implementation pracBssreafter, the client is transitioned to ouetiservice team.

Client Service

Our client service model is designed to serve tetla of medium-sized organizations and to buildltyyby developing strong
relationships with our clients. We strive to aclgidwgh revenue retention, in part, by deliveringhhquality service. Our revenue retention was
greater than 92% in each of fiscal 2012, 2013 d&id!2

Each client is assigned an account manager whesew/the central point-of-contact for any questmmsupport needs. We believe
this approach enhances our client service by pimogidach client with a single person who understahd client’s business, responds quickly
and is accountable for the client experience. @aoant managers are supplemented by teams withtdelepical and subject matter expertise
who help to expediently and effectively addresertlneeds. We also proactively solicit client fesaakbthrough ongoing surveys from which
receive actionable feedback that we use to enhauncelient service processes.

Tax and Regulatory Services

Our software contains a rules engine designed teeraacurate tax calculations that is continuallgiatpd to support all pertinent
legislative changes across all U.S. jurisdictiddsr tax filing service provides a variety of sotuts to our clients including processing payroll
tax deposits, preparing and filing quarterly anduat tax returns and amendments and resolvingt¢kemotices.

Clients

As of June 30, 2014, we provided our solutionspioraximately 8,500 clients in all U.S. states. Altlgh many clients have multiple
divisions, segments or locations, we only counhatlents once for these purposes.

Our clients include for-profit and non-profit orgaations across industries including business sesyifinancial services, healthcare,
manufacturing, restaurants, retail, technology @thérs. For each of the three years ended Jurz03@, 2013 and 2014, no client accounted
for more than 1% of our revenues.
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Sales and Marketing

We market and sell our products and services piiyriiirough our direct sales force. Our direct sdtarce includes sales
representatives who have defined geographic tea#tdhroughout the U.S. We seek to hire experigisades representatives wherever they ar
located, and believe we have room to grow the nurobsgales representatives in each of our tergtorin addition, we have contractual
arrangements with third-party resellers who aldbssiscriptions to our payroll and HCM solutions.

The sales cycle begins with a sales lead genebgtéte sales representative through our third-pafigrral network, a client referral,
our telemarketing team, our external website, d-marketing or territory- based activities. Throughe or more on-site visits, phone-based
sales calls, or web demonstrations, sales repaaserg perform in-depth analysis of prospectiverdt’ needs and demonstrate our solutions.
We employ sophisticated software to track, clasaifg manage our sales representatives’ pipelipetehtial clients. We support our sales
force with a marketing program that includes semsirzand webinars, email marketing, social media etarl, broker events and web
marketing.

Referral Network

As a core element of our business strategy, we taveloped a referral network of third-party seevicoviders, including 401
(k) advisors, benefits administrators, insuranakérs, third-party administrators and HR consu#atitat recommend our solutions and
provide referrals. Our referral network has becaméncreasingly important component of our saleegss, and in fiscal 2014, greater than
25% of our new client revenue originated by refierfeom participants in our referral network.

We believe participants in our referral networlergfotential clients to us because we do not peosétvices that compete with their
own and because we offer third parties the alititintegrate their systems with our platform. Ualither payroll and HCM solution providers
who also provide retirement plans, health insuramakother products and services competitive iighafferings of the participants in our
referral network, we focus only on our core bussnefsproviding cloud-based payroll and HCM soluiom some cases we have formalized
relationships in which we are a recommended venfithrese participants. In other cases, our relatigs are informal. We typically do not
compensate these participants for referrals.

Partner Ecosystem

We have developed a partner ecosystem of thatly systems, such as 401(k), benefits and insarprovider systems, with whom
provide automated data integration for our clieftsese third-party providers require certain firahinformation from their clients in order to
efficiently provide their respective services. Afsecuring authorization from the client, we exampayroll data with these providers. In turn,
these third-party providers supply data to us, Whillows us to deliver comprehensive benefit mansage services to our clients. We believe
our ability to integrate our systems with thosehafse partners adds value to our mutual clients@odr partners.

We have also developed our solutions to integréte awariety of other systems used by our cliestish as accounting, point of sale,
banking, expense management, recruiting, backgreareening and skills assessment solutions. Weusebur clients benefit from an
integrated and seamless solution.

Technology

We offer our solutions on a cloud-based platforat thverages a unified database architecture aothaion code base that we
organically developed. Clients do not need to lhst&r software in their data centers and can acoes solutions through any mobile device ol
web browser with Internet access.

«  Multi-Tenant Architecture Our software solutions were designed with a meltiaint architecture. This architecture gives us an
advantage over many disparate traditional systehishnare less flexible and require longer and nooxtly development and
upgrade cycles.

+  Mobile Focused.We employ mobile-centric principles in our solutidesign and development. We believe that the isanga
mobility of employees heightens the importanceaafeas to our solutions through mobile devicespiiclg smart phones and
tablets. Our mobile experience provides our cliamd their employees with access to our solutibraugh virtually any device
having Internet access. We bring the flexibilityao$ecure, cloud-based solution to users witha@ih#ed to access a traditional
desktop or laptop computer.

«  Security. We maintain comprehensive security programs dedigmensure the security and integrity of clierd amployee dat:
protect against security threats or data breach@gieevent unauthorized access. We regulate ariddihaccess to servers and
networks at our data centers. Our systems are oredifor irregular or suspicious activity, and vaé dedicated internal staff
perform security assessments for each releasesy@tems undergo regular penetration testing antts@mode reviews by an
independent third-party security firm.
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We host our solutions at our primary data centeuatcorporate headquarters in Arlington HeigHtdis. We utilize a secondary
data center through a third-party in Kenosha, Wiseofor backup and disaster recovery. We supmyhdrdware infrastructure and are
responsible for the ongoing maintenance of ourpgent at both data center locations.
Competition

The market for payroll and HCM solutions is fragrieeh highly competitive and rapidly changing. Oampetitors vary for each of
our solutions and include enterprise-focused safvpaoviders, such as Ultimate Software Group,, Mtorkday, Inc., SAP AG, Oracle
Corporation and Ceridian Corporation; payroll seevproviders, such as Automatic Data Processing, Raychex, Inc., Paycom Software, Inc
and other regional providers; and HCM point solusigroviders, such as Cornerstone OnDemand, Inc.

We believe the principal competitive factors on ethive compete in our market include the following:
*  Focus on medium-sized organizations;

»  Breadth and depth of product functionality;

»  Configurability and ease of use of our solutions;

*  Modern, intuitive user experience;

»  Benefits of a cloud-based technology platform;

»  Ability to innovate and respond to client needsdbp
» Domain expertise in payroll and HCM,;

*  Quality of implementation and client service;

»  Ease of implementation;

* Real-time web-based payroll processing; and

* Integration with a wide variety of third-party amaltions and systems.

We believe that we compete favorably on these faatdithin the medium-sized organization market. Mééeve our ability to remain
competitive will largely depend on the successwfantinued investment in sales and marketinggareh and development and
implementation and client services.

Research and Development

We invest heavily in research and development tdicoously introduce new applications, technologfeatures and functionality. V
are organized in small product-centric teams thiize an agile development methodology. We focusefforts on developing new
applications and core technologies and on furthbaecing the usability, functionality, reliabilitperformance and flexibility of existing
applications.

Research and development costs, including reseatllevelopment costs that were capitalized, wer® illion, $8.8 million and
$15.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2012324hd 2014, respectively. Our research and dereloppersonnel are principally located a
our headquarters, although we seek to hire higkiyegenced personnel wherever they are located.

Intellectual Property

Our success is dependent, in part, on our abdifyrotect our proprietary technology and otherliatéual property rights. We rely ot
combination of trade secrets, copyrights and tradks) as well as contractual protections to esthlaind protect our intellectual property
rights. We require our employees, consultants d@hnerdhird parties to enter into confidentialitydgoroprietary rights agreements and control
access to software, documentation and other ptapyieaformation. Although we rely on laws respegtintellectual property rights, including
trade secret, copyright and trademark laws, asagetiontractual protections to establish and pratecintellectual property rights, we believe
that factors such as the technological and creakills of our personnel, creation of new modufeatures and functionality and frequent
enhancements to our applications are more essémgatablishing and maintaining our technologylérahip position.
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Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary temlogy and our intellectual property rights, unauibed parties may attempt to
misappropriate our rights or to copy or obtain aed our proprietary technology to develop applicatiwith the same functionality as our
applications. Policing unauthorized use of our texdbgy and intellectual property rights is veryfidiflt.

We expect that providers of payroll and HCM solnfiguch as ours may be subject to third-partyriggiment claims as the market
and the number of competitors grows and the funatity of applications in different industry segn®noverlaps. Any of these or other third
parties might make a claim of infringement agairsat any time.

Employees

As of June 30, 2014, we had approximately 968tfoie employees, of which 308 were in client sersiaad operations, 242 were in
client implementation, 126 were in research anceimment, 213 were in sales and marketing and 7@ imeggeneral and administrative. None
of our employees is represented by a union orriy pa a collective bargaining agreement, and weeh@ot experienced any work stoppages.
We believe we have good relations with our empleyar&d that our culture benefits our clients angetis our growth. Our management team
is committed to maintaining and improving our ctdt@ven as we grow rapidly.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.paylocity.com and awestor relations website is located at http://gtoes.paylocity.com. We make
available free of charge on our investor relatimedsite under the heading “Financials and Filings” Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reportsamm 8-K and amendments to those reports as somasasnably practicable after such
materials are electronically filed with (or furnéhto) the SEC. Information contained on our welssié not incorporated by reference into this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition, the pulttiay read and copy materials we file with the SE@@ SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The puhbg obtain information on the operation of the RuBleference Room by calling the S
at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintamngernet site, www.sec.gov, that includes filimjsand information about issuers that file
electronically with the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business, prospects, financial condition orragiag results could be materially adversely aféetby any of these risks, as well as
other risks not currently known to us or that atgrently considered immaterial. The trading pricdecoir common stock could decline due to
any of the risks and uncertainties described bebovd you may lose all or part of your investmentassessing these risks, you should also
refer to the other information contained in thisnial Report on Form 10-K, including our consolidafanancial statements and related notes.

We have incurred losses in the past, and we maylb®able to achieve or sustain profitability forétforeseeable future.

We have incurred net losses from time to time. Wéaiired net losses of $130,000 and $7,110,00@¢alf2011 and fiscal 2014,
respectively. We have been growing our numberientsd rapidly, and as we do so, we incur significates and marketing, services and othe
related expenses. Our profitability will be sigaintly influenced by our ability to attain suffioiescale and productivity to achieve recurring
revenues that are sufficient to support the incréaleosts to obtain and support new clients. Wenid for the foreseeable future to continu
focus predominately on adding new clients, and arenot predict when we will achieve sustained pabifitty, if at all. We also expect to make
other significant expenditures and investment&gearch and development to expand and improverodugt offerings and technical
infrastructure. In addition, as a public compang,will incur significant legal, accounting and atle&penses that we do not incur as a private
company. These increased expenditures will makarider for us to achieve and maintain profitahiiye also may incur losses in the future
for a number of other unforeseen reasons. Accolglimge may not be able to maintain profitabilitydawe may incur losses for the foresee:
future.

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated the past and may continue to fluctuate, causing tveue of our common stock to decline
substantially.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate dua variety of factors, many of which are outsiflewr control. As a result,
comparing our operating results on a periogh¢oiod basis may not be meaningful. Moreover, tagksprice might be based on expectation
future performance that are unrealistic or thatmight not meet and, if our revenue or operatingltedall below such expectations, the price
of our common stock could decline substantially.

Our number of new clients increases more duringlud fiscal quarter ending March 31 than durihg test of our fiscal year,
primarily because many new clients prefer to staig our payroll and human capital managementi@wl, solutions at the beginning of a
calendar year. In addition, client funds and yead-activities are traditionally higher during obirt fiscal quarter. As a result of these factors,
our total revenue and expenses have historicatiwgrdisproportionately during our third fiscal gtearas compared to other quarters.

In addition to other risk factors listed in thisten, some of the important factors that may cdlussuations in our quarterly operati
results include:

*  The extent to which our products achieve or maintaarket acceptance;

*  Our ability to introduce new products and enhanagmand updates to our existing products on a yifasis;
»  Competitive pressures and the introduction of enédmproducts and services from competitors;

» Changes in client budgets and procurement policies;

*  The amount and timing of our investment in researuh development activities and whether such imvests are capitalize
or expensed as incurred;

e The number of our clients’ employees;

«  Timing of recognition of revenues and expenses;

*  Client renewal rates;

*  Seasonality in our business;

»  Technical difficulties with our products or inteptions in our services;
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*  Our ability to hire and retain qualified personnel;
«  Changes in the regulatory requirements and enviemimelated to the products and services which fieg;and

» Unforeseen legal expenses, including litigation seitlement costs.

We do not have long-term agreements with cliemid,@ur standard agreements with clients are gdpéeaiminable by our clients
upon 60 or fewer days’ notice. If a significant fuen of clients elected to terminate their agreesaiith us, our operating results and our
business would be adversely affected.

In addition, a significant portion of our operatiegpenses are related to compensation and othes itdnich are relatively fixed in the
short-term, and we plan expenditures based inquadur expectations regarding future needs andrtyomities. Accordingly, changes in our
business or revenue shortfalls could decreaseross @gnd operating margins and could cause signifithanges in our operating results from
period to period. If this occurs, the trading prafeour common stock could fall substantially, eitlsuddenly or over time.

Our operating results for previous fiscal quaramesnot necessarily indicative of our operatingiitsor the full fiscal years or for ai
future periods. We believe that, due to the undmglyactors for quarterly fluctuations, quartereoarter comparisons of our operations are no
necessarily meaningful and that such comparisooglémot be relied upon as indications of futureqrenance.

Failure to manage our growth effectively could inease our expenses, decrease our revenue, and ptexefiom implementing our
business strategy.

We have been rapidly growing our revenue and nurabelients, and we will seek to do the same ferfitreseeable future. However,
the growth in our number of clients puts significatmain on our business, requires significanttedixpenditures and increases our operating
expenses. To manage this growth effectively, wetmattsact, train, and retain a significant numbiegualified sales, implementation, client
service, software development, information techgpland management personnel. We also must maistairenhance our technology
infrastructure and our financial and accountingeys and controls. If we fail to effectively maname growth or we over-invest or under-
invest in our business, our business and resultperfations could suffer from the resultant weakassn our infrastructure, systems or
controls. We could also suffer operational mistakel®ss of business opportunities and employesetodf our management is unable to
effectively manage our growth, our expenses migtrteiase more than expected, our revenue coulchdemlimight grow more slowly than
expected, and we might be unable to implement osinless strategy.

The markets in which we participate are highly costjiive, and if we do not compete effectively, ayrerating results could be adversely
affected.

The market for payroll and HCM solutions is fragneeh highly competitive and rapidly changing. Oampetitors vary for each of
our solutions, and include enterprise-focused saivproviders, such as Ultimate Software Group, MWworkday, Inc., SAP AG, Oracle
Corporation and Ceridian Corporation, payroll seevproviders, such as Automatic Data Processimg, Raychex, Inc. and other regional
providers, and HCM point solutions, such as Comoeaes OnDemand, Inc.

Several of our competitors are larger, have gresare recognition, longer operating histories agdificantly greater resources than
we do. Many of these competitors are able to degmtater resources to the development, promotidrsale of their products and services.
Furthermore, our current or potential competitoes/rhe acquired by third parties with greater abddaesources and the ability to initiate or
withstand substantial price competition. As a resulr competitors may be able to develop prodaatsservices better received by our matr
or may be able to respond more quickly and effetithan we can to new or changing opportunitieshmologies, regulations or client
requirements.

In addition, current and potential competitors hastablished, and might in the future establisitnea or form other cooperative
relationships with vendors of complementary progutchnologies or services to enable them to ofer products and services, to compete
more effectively or to increase the availabilitytioéir products in the marketplace. New competitorselationships might emerge that have
greater market share, a larger client base, matelywadopted proprietary technologies, greater ptar§ expertise, greater financial resources
and larger sales forces than we have, which cautidip at a competitive disadvantage. In light esthadvantages, current or potential clients
might accept competitive offerings in lieu of puasing our offerings. We expect intense competitiooontinue for these reasons, and such
competition could negatively impact our sales, ppabflity or market share.
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If we do not continue to innovate and deliver hi-quality, technologically advanced products and @ees, we will not remain competitive
and our revenue and operating results could suffer.

The market for our solutions is characterized Ipyddechnological advancements, changes in clieguirements, frequent new
product introductions and enhancements and chamgihptry standards. The life cycles of our prodwre difficult to estimate. Rapid
technological changes and the introduction of newdpcts and enhancements by new or existing cotopetiould undermine our current
market position.

Our success depends in substantial part on ouincimg ability to provide products and servicest tim@dium-sized organizations will
find superior to our competitors’ offerings andiveibntinue to use. We intend to continue to ingghificant resources in research and
development in order to enhance our existing prsdaied services and introduce new high-quality petaithat clients will want. If we are
unable to predict user preferences or industry gbsnor if we are unable to modify our products seices on a timely basis or to effectively
bring new products to market, our sales may suffer.

In addition, we may experience difficulties withftseare development, industry standards, desigmarketing that could delay or
prevent our development, introduction or implem#ateof new solutions and enhancements. The inttioin of new solutions by competito
the emergence of new industry standards or thelal@went of entirely new technologies to replacestxg offerings could render our existing
or future solutions obsolete.

We may not have sufficient resources to make tlcessary investments in software development anchayeexperience difficulties
that could delay or prevent the successful deve@pnintroduction or marketing of new products ohacements. In addition, our products o
enhancements may not meet the increasingly congtilenxt requirements of the marketplace or achieaeket acceptance at the rate we exj
or at all. Any failure by us to anticipate or resgdadequately to technological advancements, adlemtirements and changing industry
standards, or any significant delays in the devalaqt, introduction or availability of new productsenhancements, could undermine our
current market position.

If we are unable to release periodic updates orinagly basis to reflect changes in tax, benefit apither laws and regulations that ot
products help our clients address, the market ade@pe of our products may be adversely affected andrevenues could declint

Our solutions are affected by changes in tax, beaed other laws and regulations and generallytibesipdated regularly to maint:
their accuracy and competitiveness. Although weelelour SaasS platform provides us with flexibilityrelease updates in response to these
changes, we cannot be certain that we will be tmbieake the necessary changes to our solutionsedemse updates on a timely basis, or at al
Failure to do so could have an adverse effect eriuthctionality and market acceptance of our sohgi In addition, significant changes in tax,
benefit and other laws and regulations could requsé to make significant modifications to our pretsuwhich could result in substantial
expenses.

Because of the way we recognize our revenue andexpenses over varying periods, changes in our bass may not be immediate
reflected in our financial statements.

We recognize our revenue as services are perforfifedamount of revenue we recognize in any pagigoériod is derived in
significant part based on the number of employéesioclients served by our solutions. As a result, revenue is dependent in part on the
success of our clients. The effect on our revergggoificant changes in sales of our solutiongavur clients’ businesses may not be fully
reflected in our results of operations until futperiods.

We recognize our expenses over varying periodsdbaiseéhe nature of the expense. In particular,@eegnize implementation costs
and sales commissions as they are incurred eveiglthoe recognize revenue as we perform servicaseotended periods. When a client
terminates its relationship with us, we may notehderived enough revenue from that client to cagsociated implementation costs. As a
result, we may report poor operating results dugdber implementation costs and sales commissioageriod in which we experience str
sales of our solutions. Alternatively, we may regmatter operating results due to lower impleménmtatosts and sales commissions in a perio
in which we experience a slowdown in sales. Assalteour expenses fluctuate as a percentage eftey and changes in our business
generally may not be immediately reflected in agults of operations.

If our security measures are breached or unauthaizaccess to client data or funds is otherwise ated, our solutions may be perceived
not being secure, clients may reduce the use oftmp using our solutions and we may incur significaliabilities.

Our solutions involve the storage and transmisesioour clients’ and their employees’ proprietargamonfidential information. This

information includes bank account numbers, taxrreitaformation, social security numbers, benefibimation, retirement account
information, payroll information and system passiorin addition, we collect and maintain persondimation
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on our own employees in the ordinary course oftauginess. Finally, our business involves the smeagl transmission of funds from the
accounts of our clients to their employees, taxing regulatory authorities and others. As a reanbiuthorized access or security breaches of
our systems or the systems of our clients couldltr@sthe unauthorized disclosure of confidentidibrmation, theft, litigation, indemnity
obligations and other significant liabilities. Beisa the techniques used to obtain unauthorizedsaresabotage systems change frequently
and generally are not identified until they are &yed, we may be unable to anticipate these tecisigr to implement adequate preventative
measures in advance. While we have security measmeecontrols in place to protect confidentiabiniation, prevent data loss, theft and
other security breaches, including penetratiorstesbur systems by independent third partiesuifsecurity measures are breached, our
business could be substantially harmed and we dnald significant liabilities. Any such breachwnauthorized access could negatively affec
our ability to attract new clients, cause existitignts to terminate their agreements with us, ltésueputational damage and subject us to
lawsuits, regulatory fines or other actions oriliibs which could materially and adversely affectr business and operating results.

There can be no assurance that the limitationsloility in our contracts would be enforceable dequate or would otherwise protect
us from any such liabilities or damages with respeeany particular claim related to a breach authorized access. We also cannot be sure
that our existing general liability insurance cage and coverage for errors or omissions will cardito be available on acceptable terms or
will be available in sufficient amounts to covereaor more large claims, or that the insurer will deny coverage as to any future claim. The
successful assertion of one or more large claimagus that exceed available insurance covemagbe occurrence of changes in our
insurance policies, including premium increasetherimposition of large deductible or co-insurareguirements, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

If we fail to adequately expand our direct salegde with qualified and productive persons, we mayt e able to grow our busine:
effectively.

We primarily sell our products and implementatiervices through our direct sales force. To growlmsiness, we intend to focus on
growing our client base for the foreseeable futner ability to add clients and to achieve revegrawth in the future will depend upon our
ability to grow and develop our direct sales foaoel on their ability to productively sell our satuts. Identifying and recruiting qualified
personnel and training them in the use of our srféwequire significant time, expense and attenfitve amount of time it takes for our sales
representatives to be fully-trained and to becomduyrctive varies widely. In addition, if we hirelesrepresentatives from competitors or othe
companies, their former employers may attempt sershat these employees have breached theirdégghtions, resulting in a diversion of
our time and resources.

If our sales organization does not perform as ebggeour revenues and revenue growth could suffexddition, if we are unable to
hire, develop and retain talented sales persoifrealr sales force becomes less efficient as itugror if new sales representatives are unable t
achieve desired productivity levels in a reasongkléod of time, we may not be able to grow ouerlibase and revenues and our sales and
marketing expenses may increase.

If our referral network participants reduce theiraferrals to us, we may not be able to grow our itibase or revenues in the futur

Referrals from third-party service providers, irdihg 401(k) advisors, benefits administrators, iagae brokers, third-party
administrators and HR consultants, represent aftignt source of potential clients for our prodtiand implementation services. For example
we estimate that greater than 25% of our new saléscal 2014 were referred to us from our refengtwork participants, and our referral
network may become an even more significant soofctient referrals in the future. In most casas, @lationships with referral network
participants are informal, although in some caseshave formalized relationships where we are amesended vendor for their client.

Participants in our referral network are generaltiger no contractual obligation to continue to réfigsiness to us, and we do not
intend to seek contractual relationships with thesicipants. In addition, these participantsgererally not compensated for referring
potential clients to us, and may choose to instedet potential clients to our competitors. Ouiligbto achieve revenue growth in the future
will depend, in part, upon continued referrals froor network.

There can be no assurance that we will be sucdésshaintaining, expanding or developing our redénetwork. If our relationships
with participants in our referral network were ttefiorate or if any of our competitors enter istiategic relationships with our referral
network participants, sales leads from these ppatnts could be reduced or cease entirely. If veenat successful, we may lose sales
opportunities and our revenues and profitabilituldsuffer.
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If the market for clouc-based payroll and HCM solutions among medium-siz@danizations develops more slowly than we expmect
declines, our business could be adversely affected.

We believe that the market for cloud-based paymatl HCM solutions is not as mature among mediumesizganizations as the
market for outsourced services or on-premise soéwad services. It is not certain that cloud-bas#dtions will achieve and sustain high
levels of client demand and market acceptance sGeress will depend to a substantial extent omvttiespread adoption by medium-sized
organizations of cloud-based computing in genarad, of payroll and other HCM applications in part. It is difficult to predict client
adoption rates and demand for our solutions, thedugrowth rate and size of the cloud-based mank#ie entry of competitive solutions. The
expansion of the cloud-based market depends omaewof factors, including the cost, performance] perceived value associated with
cloud-based computing, as well as the ability ofid-based solutions to address security and prigangerns. If other cloud-based providers
experience security incidents, loss of client ddisruptions in delivery or other problems, the ke&for cloud-based applications as a whole,
including our solutions, may be negatively affectédloud-based payroll and HCM solutions do nchiave widespread adoption among
medium-sized organizations, or there is a redudtiafemand for cloud-based computing caused bgladéclient acceptance, technological
challenges, weakening economic conditions, secarigrivacy concerns, competing technologies awodycts, decreases in corporate spen
or otherwise, it could result in a loss of clierdecreased revenues and an adverse impact on sinebs.

We typically pay employees and may pay taxing atties amounts due for a payroll period before aesit’s electronic funds transfers are
finally settled to our account. If client paymentge rejected by banking institutions or otherwisailfto clear into our accounts, we me
require additional sources of short-term liquidignd our operating results could be adversely affstt

Our payroll processing business involves the movermgsignificant funds from the account of a ctismemployees and relevant
taxing authorities. For example, in fiscal 2014 wrecessed almost $39 billion in payroll transactioFhough we debit a client’s account prior
to any disbursement on its behalf, due to Autom&iedring House, or ACH, banking regulations, fupdsviously credited could be reversed
under certain circumstances and timeframes aftepayment of amounts due to employees and taxidg#rer regulatory authorities. There
therefore a risk that the employer’s funds willibsufficient to cover the amounts we have alreaaid jpn its behalf. While such shortage and
accompanying financial exposure has only occumecbry limited instances in the past, should chatgfault on their payment obligations in
the future, we might be required to advance suliastaamounts of funds to cover such obligationssuich an event, we may be required to see
additional sources of short-term liquidity, whictaymnot be available on reasonable terms, if agall, our operating results and our liquidity
could be adversely affected and our banking relatips could be harmed.

Adverse changes in economic or political conditioosuld adversely affect our operating results andrdousiness

Our recurring revenues are based in part on thébeuwf our clients’ employees. As a result, wesangject to risks arising from
adverse changes in economic and political conditidihe state of the economy and the rate of emmaoymvhich deteriorated in the recent
broad recession, may deteriorate further in theréutlf weakness in the economy continues or warsaany clients may reduce their number
of employees and delay or reduce technology pueshdshis could also result in reductions in ouerawes and sales of our products, longer
sales cycles, increased price competition andtslinrchasing fewer solutions than they have eghst. Any of these events would likely
harm our business, results of operations, finarogiabition and cash flows from operations.

Trade, monetary and fiscal policies, and politeadl economic conditions may substantially change caedit markets may
experience periods of constriction and volatilityhen there is a slowdown in the economy, employrteams and interest rates may decrease
with a corresponding impact on our businessesn@limay react to worsening conditions by reducivgrtspending on payroll and other HCM
solutions or renegotiating their contracts with\l& have agreements with various large banks tout&eACH and wire transfers as part of oul
client payroll and tax services. While we have @gggncy plans in place for bank failures, a failaf@ne of our banking partners or a systemi
shutdown of the banking industry could result ia khss of client funds or impede us from accesaimdjprocessing funds on our cliertehalf
and could have an adverse impact on our busineskcaridity.

If the banks that currently provide ACH and wirednsfers fail to properly transmit ACH or terminatieir relationship with us or limit our
ability to process funds or we are not able to inase our ACH capacity with our existing and new tanour ability to process funds on
behalf of our clients and our financial results anliquidity could be adversely affected.

We currently have agreements with nine banks toweACH and wire transfers to support our cliesyrpll and tax services. If one
or more of the banks fails to process ACH transbers: timely basis, or at all, then our relatiopshith our clients could be harmed and we
could be subject to claims by a client with resgedhe failed transfers. In addition, these bamdkge no obligation to renew their agreements
with us on commercially reasonable terms, if atlathese banks terminate their relationships wighor restrict the dollar amounts of funds
they will process on behalf of our clients, thejird) so may impede our ability to process funds@ndd have an adverse impact on our
financial results and liquidity.
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We depend on our senior management team and otlegr émployees, and the loss of these persons onability to attract and retain highl
skilled employees could adversely affect our busi

Our success depends largely upon the continueétssrof our key executive officers, including Stev® Beauchamp, our President
and Chief Executive Officer. We also rely on owrdership team in the areas of research and develdpsales, services and general and
administrative functions. From time to time, theray be changes in our executive management tearttimgsrom the hiring or departure of
executives, which could disrupt our business. Wivdehave employment agreements with certain okaacutive officers, including
Mr. Beauchamp, these employment agreements deequoire them to continue to work for us for any sjpett period and, therefore, they cor
terminate their employment with us at any time. Tdss of one or more of our executive officers ey kmployees could have an adverse e
on our business.

If we are unable to recruit and retain high-skilled product development and other technicatgens, our ability to develop and support
widely-accepted products could be impaired and business could be harmed.

We believe that to grow our business and be suftdes® must continue to develop products thattacdnologically-advanced, are
highly integrable with third-party services, progidignificant mobility capabilities and have pleasand intuitive user experiences. To do so,
we must attract and retain highly qualified perssnparticularly employees with high levels of expace in designing and developing
software and Internet-related products and servicempetition for these personnel in the greatac&jo area and elsewhere is intense. If we
fail to attract new personnel or fail to retain andtivate our current personnel, our business andd growth prospects could be severely
harmed. We follow a practice of hiring the bestikmide candidates wherever located, but as we gnambusiness, the productivity of our
product development and other research and developmay be adversely affected. In addition, if ie kmployees from competitors or ot
companies, their former employers may attempt serhshat these employees have breached theirdétightions, resulting in a diversion of
our time and resources.

The sale and support of products and the performaraf related services by us entail the risk of puatior service liability claims, which
could significantly affect our financial results.

Clients use our products in connection with theppration and filing of tax returns and other retpareports. If any of our products
contain errors that produce inaccurate results uygdoh users rely, or cause users to misfile drtéafile required information, we could be
subject to liability claims from users. Our agreamsanith our clients typically contain provisiomgénded to limit our exposure to such claims
but such provisions may not be effective in limgtiour exposure. Contractual limitations we use matybe enforceable and may not provid
with adequate protection against product liabitigims in certain jurisdictions. A successful cldwn product or service liability brought
against us could result in substantial cost tongsdivert management’s attention from our operation

Privacy concerns and laws or other domestic regidas may reduce the effectiveness of our applicati@nd adversely affect our busine:

Our clients collect, use and store personal ortifyémg information regarding their employees ahdit family members in our
solutions. Federal and state government bodiesgedcies have adopted, are considering adoptingagradopt laws and regulations
regarding the collection, use, storage and disodostisuch personal information. The costs of caamgle with, and other burdens imposed by,
such laws and regulations that are applicable telents’ businesses may limit the use and adapgfoour applications and reduce overall
demand, or lead to significant fines, penaltieBatnilities for any noncompliance with such privdeyvs. Even the perception of privacy
concerns, whether or not valid, may inhibit makeéoption of our solutions.

All of these legislative and regulatory initiativesy adversely affect our clients’ ability to presghandle, store, use and transmit
demographic and personal information regarding ta@iployees and family members, which could redleraand for our solutions.

In addition to government activity, privacy advogagoups and the technology and other industriecansidering various new,
additional or different self-regulatory standardattmay place additional burdens on us. If the ggsing of personal information were to be
curtailed in this manner, our products would bs leffective, which may reduce demand for our apfibts and adversely affect our business.

Our business could be adversely affected if we db effectively implement our solutions or our clihare not satisfied with our
implementation services.

Our ability to deliver our payroll and HCM solut®epends on our ability to effectively implememdl @o transition to, and train our

clients on, our solutions. We do not recognize meresfrom new clients until they process their fipayroll. Further, our agreements with our
clients are generally terminable by the client$0rdays’ notice. If a client is not satisfied withr
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implementation services, the client could termint@agreement with us before we have recoveredasts of implementation services, which
would adversely affect our results of operationd eash flows. In addition, negative publicity reldto our client relationships, regardless ¢
accuracy, may further damage our business by afteotr ability to compete for new business withrent and prospective clients.

Our business could be affected if we are unabletwommodate increased demand for our implementatsenvices resulting from growth i
our business.

We may be unable to respond quickly enough to actodate increased client demand for implementagovices driven by our
growth. The implementation process is the firstssaibtive interaction with a new client. As a prediécto providing knowledgeable
implementation services, we must have a suffiarembber of personnel dedicated to that processiderdo ensure that we have sufficient
employees to implement our solutions, we must tyossordinate hiring of personnel with our projettales for a particular period. Because
our sales cycle is typically only three to six wedédng, we may not be successful in coordinatimggiof implementation personnel to meet
increased demand for our implementation servicesehsed demand for implementation services withaatrresponding staffing increase of
qualified personnel could adversely affect the ipalf services provided to new clients, and ousibass and our reputation could be harmed.

Any failure to offer higr-quality client services may adversely affect oetationships with our clients and our financial rests.

Once our applications are deployed, our clienteddmn our client service organization to resobseiés relating to our solutions. Our
clients are medium-sized organizations with limipexisonnel and resources to address payroll ard BBM related issues. These clients rely
on us more so than larger companies with greatemal resources and expertise. High-quality clgmvices are important for the successful
marketing and sale of our products and for thent&ie of existing clients. If we do not help ouretits quickly resolve issues and provide
effective ongoing support, our ability to sell atlatial products to existing clients would suffedasur reputation with existing or potential
clients would be harmed.

In addition, our sales process is highly dependardur applications and business reputation angositive recommendations from
our existing clients. Any failure to maintain higfality client services, or a market perception tha do not maintain high-quality client
services, could adversely affect our reputatiom,adnility to sell our solutions to existing and ppective clients, and our business, operating
results and financial position.

If we fail to manage our technical operations infstructure, our existing clients may experience sep/outages and our new clients m
experience delays in the deployment of our applioas.

We have experienced significant growth in the nunafeisers, transactions and data that our op@stidrastructure supports. We
seek to maintain sufficient excess capacity indaia center and other operations infrastructuredet the needs of all of our clients. We also
seek to maintain excess capacity to facilitaterépéd provision of new client deployments and tkpassion of existing client deployments. In
addition, we need to properly manage our technobdgiperations infrastructure in order to suppersion control, changes in hardware and
software parameters and the evolution of our apptins. However, the provision of new hosting isfracture requires significant lead time.
We have experienced, and may in the future expegiamebsite disruptions, outages and other perfocsnaroblems. These problems may be
caused by a variety of factors, including infrastame changes, human or software errors, virugesirdy attacks, fraud, spikes in client usage
and denial of service issues. In some instancespayenot be able to identify the cause or causéisesfe performance problems within an
acceptable period of time. If we do not accuragebdict our infrastructure requirements, our eRgitlients may experience service outages
that may subject us to financial penalties, finahkabilities and client losses. If our operationgastructure fails to keep pace with increased
sales, clients may experience delays as we semitan additional capacity, which could adversdfge our reputation and our revenues.

In addition, our ability to deliver our cloud-basagplications depends on the development and nmainte of Internet infrastructure
by third parties. This includes maintenance oflialoée network backbone with the necessary spestd, chpacity, bandwidth capacity, and
security. Our services are designed to operateowitimterruption. However, we have experienced expbct that we will experience future
interruptions and delays in services and availigtiitom time to time. In the event of a catastrapéwvent with respect to one or more of our
systems, we may experience an extended periodstdrayunavailability, which could negatively impacir relationship with clients. To oper
without interruption, both we and our clients mgsard against:

- Damage from fire, power loss, natural disastersahdr force majeure events outside our control;

+  Communications failures;

»  Software and hardware errors, failures and crashes;

»  Security breaches, computer viruses, hacking, tefiservice attacks and similar disruptive probterand

»  Other potential interruptions.
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We also rely on computer hardware purchased oeteasd software licensed from third parties in ptdeffer our services. These
licenses and hardware are generally commercialylae on varying terms. However, it is possilblattthis hardware and software might not
continue to be available on commercially reasonsdyi@s, or at all. Any loss of the right to use afiyhis hardware or software could result in
delays in the provisioning of our services untiliz@lent technology is either developed by usjfayailable, is identified, obtained and
integrated.

Furthermore, our payroll application is essentiabtir clients’ timely payment of wages to their doypes. Any interruption in our
service may affect the availability, accuracy ardliness of these programs and could damage outatigm, cause our clients to terminate t
use of our application, require us to indemnify olignts against certain losses due to our owrrgand prevent us from gaining additional
business from current or future clients.

Any disruption in the operation of our data centecould adversely affect our busines

We host our applications and serve all of our ¢idrom data centers located at our company heatigsan Arlington
Heights, Illinois with a backup data center atiedtparty facility in Kenosha, Wisconsin. We alsayrdecide to employ additional offsite data
centers in the future to accommodate growth.

Problems faced by our data center locations, Wightélecommunications network providers with whomaw they contract, or with
the systems by which our telecommunications pragiddocate capacity among their clients, includiisg could adversely affect the
availability and processing of our solutions andted services and the experience of our cliehtsur data centers are unable to keep up with
our growing needs for capacity, this could havadwerse effect on our business and cause us toadditional expense. In addition, any
financial difficulties faced by our third-party @atenter’s operator or any of the service proviaetis whom we or they contract may have
negative effects on our business, the nature atesheaf which are difficult to predict. Any changesservice levels at our third-party data
center or any errors, defects, disruptions or gpleeformance problems with our applications cowdeasely affect our reputation and may
damage our clients’ stored files or result in ldnyghterruptions in our services. Interruptionur services might reduce our revenues, subje
us to potential liability or other expenses or adedy affect our renewal rates.

In addition, while we own, control and have acdessur servers and all of the components of ouwvok that are located in our
backup data center, we do not control the operatidghis facility. The operator of our Wisconsinta@enter facility has no obligation to renew
its agreement with us on commercially reasonatageor at all. If we are unable to renew this agrent on commercially reasonable terms,
or if the data center operator is acquired, we bayequired to transfer our servers and otherstrinature to a new data center facility, and we
may incur costs and experience service interruptiaoing so.

Our software might not operate properly, which coullamage our reputation, give rise to claims agdias, or divert application of our
resources from other purposes, any of which coulairim our business and operating results.

Our payroll and HCM software is complex and maytaonor develop undetected defects or errors, asily when first introduced
or as new versions are released. Despite extetesitiag, from time to time we have discovered disfec errors in our products. In addition,
because changes in employer and legal requireraadtpractices relating to benefits are frequentdiseover defects and errors in our
software and service processes in the normal cairdsesiness compared against these requiremedigrantices. Material performance
problems or defects in our products and servicgghtarise in the future, which could have an adwérgact on our business and client
relationship and subject us to claims.

Moreover, software development is time-consumixgeasive and complex. Unforeseen difficulties casea We might encounter
technical obstacles, and it is possible that weadier problems that prevent our products from apeggroperly. If they do not function
reliably or fail to achieve client expectationgémms of performance, clients could cancel theieaments with us and/or assert liability claims
against us. This could damage our reputation, imgai ability to attract or maintain clients andthaour results of operations.

Defects and errors and any failure by us to idgmtifd address them could result in delays in proedioductions and updates, loss of
revenue or market share, liability to clients dress, failure to achieve market acceptance or esipandiversion of development and other
resources, injury to our reputation, and increasgdice and maintenance costs. Defects or errariproduct or service processes might
discourage existing or potential clients from pasihg from us. Correction of defects or errors dqarbve to be impossible or impracticable.
The costs incurred in correcting any defects asrsror in responding to resulting claims or ligiilinight be substantial and could adversely
affect our operating results.
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Because of the large amount of data that we cadledtmanage, it is possible that hardware failaressrors in our systems could
result in data loss or corruption, or cause therinktion that we collect to be incomplete or camtaaccuracies that our clients, their
employees and taxing and other regulatory autlesrittgard as significant. The costs incurred inecting any errors or in responding to
regulatory authorities or to resulting claims ability might be substantial and could adversefgctfour operating results.

We maintain insurance, but our insurance may beeigaate or may not be available in the future @epiable terms, or at all. In
addition, our policy may not cover all claims madminst us and defending a suit, regardless afétst, could be costly and divert
management’s attention.

Our clients might assert claims against us in tiieré alleging that they suffered damages duedefect, error, or other failure of our
product or service processes. A product liabillgima and errors or omissions claim could subjedibusignificant legal defense costs and
adverse publicity regardless of the merits or evalndutcome of such a claim.

Client funds that we hold are subject to markettémnest rate, credit and liquidity risks. The loséthese funds could have an adverse impact
on our business.

We invest funds held for our clients in liquid, @stment-grade marketable securities, money magketisies, and other cash
equivalents. Nevertheless, our client fund assetsabject to general market, interest rate, gradi liquidity risks. These risks may be
exacerbated, individually or in unison, during pés of unusual financial market volatility. Any $oef or inability to access client funds could
have an adverse impact on our cash position amndtses operations and could require us to obtduittonal sources of liquidity.

In addition, these funds are held in consolidatesttaccounts, and as a result the aggregate asiouthe accounts exceed the
applicable federal deposit insurance limits. Wedwel that since such funds are deposited in tmustedalf of our clients, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, or the FDIC, would treasthfunds as if they had been deposited by eadfedflients themselves and insure each
client’s funds up to the applicable deposit insgelimits. If the FDIC were to take the positiomtlt is not obligated to provide deposit
insurance for our clients’ funds or if the reimemeent of these funds were delayed, our businessandients could be materially harmed.

If we are required to collect sales and use taxesdditional jurisdictions, we might be subject kiability for past sales and our future sale
may decrease. Adverse tax laws or regulations cdadcenacted or existing laws could be applied toousur clients, which could increase
the costs of our services and adversely impact lousiness.

The application of federal, state, and local taxsléo services provided electronically is evolvibgw income, sales, use or other tax
laws, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinancesddoe enacted at any time (possibly with retra@céffect), and could be applied solely or
disproportionately to services provided over thiernet. These enactments could adversely affectaas activity due to the inherent cost
increase the taxes would represent and ultimagslylt in a negative impact on our operating resants cash flows.

In addition, existing tax laws, statutes, rulegjutations or ordinances could be interpreted, chdnmodified or applied adversely to
us (possibly with retroactive effect), which coudgtjuire us or our clients to pay additional tax anis, as well as require us or our clients to
pay fines or penalties and interest for past ansunt

For example, we might lose sales or incur signifi@xpenses if states successfully impose broaddelines on state sales and use
taxes. A successful assertion by one or more statgsring us to collect sales or other taxes anlitensing of our software or provision of our
services could result in substantial tax liabisitfter past transactions and otherwise harm oumnbssi Each state has different rules and
regulations governing sales and use taxes, and thss and regulations are subject to varyingpmétations that change over time. We rev
these rules and regulations periodically and, wiierbelieve we are subject to sales and use taxepanticular state, we may voluntarily
engage state tax authorities in order to detertnave to comply with that state’s rules and regulagioNe cannot assure you that we will not b
subject to sales and use taxes or related penfdtipast sales in states where we currently believsuch taxes are required.

Vendors of services, like us, are typically helsp@nsible by taxing authorities for the collectaord payment of any applicable sales
and similar taxes. If one or more taxing authositietermines that taxes should have, but havédaeh paid with respect to our services, we
might be liable for past taxes in addition to tagefg forward. Liability for past taxes might alislude substantial interest and penalty
charges. Our clients typically pay us for applieaddles and similar taxes. Nevertheless, our sli@ight be reluctant to pay back taxes and
might refuse responsibility for interest or peredtassociated with those taxes. If we are requiredllect and pay back taxes and the
associated interest and penalties, and if ourtslitil or refuse to reimburse us for all
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or a portion of these amounts, we will incur unplagh expenses that may be substantial. Moreovensitipn of such taxes on us going
forward will effectively increase the cost of owftsvare and services to our clients and might asklgraffect our ability to retain existing
clients or to gain new clients in the areas in Wtsach taxes are imposed.

Any future litigation against us could be costly driime-consuming to defend.

We may become subject, from time to time, to lggateedings and claims that arise in the ordinatyse of business such as claims
brought by our clients in connection with commerdiaputes or employment claims made by our curoeribrmer employees. Litigation mic
result in substantial costs and may divert managé&mattention and resources, which might seriotslym our business, overall financial
condition, and operating results. Insurance migttoover such claims, might not provide sufficipayments to cover all the costs to resolve
one or more such claims and might not continuesta\ailable on terms acceptable to us. A claim dginbagainst us that is uninsured or
underinsured could result in unanticipated cokesr,gby harming our operating results and leadiradyats or potential investors to lower their
expectations of our performance, which could redhedrading price of our stock.

Any failure to protect our intellectual property ghts could impair our ability to protect our propetary technology and our branc

Our success is dependent, in part, upon proteotingproprietary technology. We rely on a combinaid copyrights, trademarks,
service marks, trade secret laws and contractatrictions to establish and protect our proprietagiits in our products and services. Our
proprietary technologies are not covered by angrmiair patent application. However, the steps We ta protect our intellectual property may
be inadequate. We will not be able to protect ateliectual property if we are unable to enforce rights or if we do not detect unauthorized
use of our intellectual property. Despite our preizas, it may be possible for unauthorized thiadties to copy our products and use
information that we regard as proprietary to cremtelucts and services that compete with ours. Sim@ese provisions protecting against
unauthorized use, copying, transfer and disclosticair products may be unenforceable under the &fwertain jurisdictions and foreign
countries.

We enter into confidentiality and invention assigamhagreements with our employees and consultadtgmter into confidentiality
agreements with the parties with whom we haveegiiatrelationships and business alliances. No assarcan be given that these agreement:
will be effective in controlling access to and distition of our products and proprietary informatidhe confidentiality agreements on which
we rely to protect certain technologies may be dited and may not be adequate to protect our ptapyitechnologies. Further, these
agreements do not prevent our competitors frompgaddently developing technologies that are suliathnéquivalent or superior to our
solutions. In addition, we depend, in part, on tetbgy of third parties licensed to us for our s$ioins, and the loss or inability to maintain
these licenses or errors in the software we licensdd result in increased costs, reduced sereiel$ or delayed sales of our solutions.

In order to protect our intellectual property righive may be required to spend significant resaui@enonitor and protect these rig|
Litigation may be necessary in the future to erdarar intellectual property rights and to proteet vade secrets. Litigation brought to protect
and enforce our intellectual property rights caogdcostly, time consuming and distracting to mareggg and could result in the impairmen
loss of portions of our intellectual property. Fugtmore, our efforts to enforce our intellectuaprty rights may be met with defenses,
counterclaims and countersuits attacking the ugligind enforceability of our intellectual properights. Our inability to protect our propriete
technology against unauthorized copying or us&yedkas any costly litigation or diversion of ouamagement’s attention and resources, coul
delay further sales or the implementation of odutsans, impair the functionality of our solutiordglay introductions of new solutions, result
in our substituting inferior or more costly techogies into our solutions, or injure our reputatibnaddition, we may be required to license
additional technology from third parties to devetom market new solutions, and we cannot assuréhawve could license that technology
commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Althouwghdo not expect that our inability to license tigishnology in the future would have a
material adverse effect on our business or operaéisults, our inability to license this technolamuld adversely affect our ability to compete.

We may be sued by third parties for alleged inframgent of their proprietary rights.

There is considerable patent and other intellegit@perty development activity in our industry. Guiccess depends, in part, upon
not infringing upon the intellectual property righif others. Our competitors, as well as a numbether entities and individuals, may own or
claim to own intellectual property relating to andustry. From time to time, third parties may siahat we are infringing upon their
intellectual property rights, and we may be foumdé¢ infringing upon such rights. In the futurdyexs may claim that our applications and
underlying technology infringe or violate theirétiectual property rights. However, we may be urraw the intellectual property rights that
others may claim cover some or all of our technplogservices. Any claims or litigation could cawseto incur significant expenses and, if
successfully asserted against us, could requiterthgay substantial damages or ongoing royaltyn@ags, prevent us from offering our
services, or require that we comply with other unfable terms. We may also be obligated to indeyrmiir clients or business partners or pay
substantial settlement costs, including royalty
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payments, in connection with any such claim ogdition and to obtain licenses, modify applicatimrs,efund fees, which could be costly.
Even if we were to prevail in such a dispute, atigdtion regarding our intellectual property colle costly and time-consuming and divert the
attention of our management and key personnel donbusiness operations.

The use of open source software in our products aadutions may expose us to additional risks andtaour intellectual property rights.

Some of our products and solutions use or incotparaftware that is subject to one or more opemcgolicenses. Open source
software is typically freely accessible, usable amtlifiable. Certain open source software licemsgsire a user who intends to distribute the
open source software as a component of the usitigsase to disclose publicly part or all of the soeicode to the user’s software. In addition,
certain open source software licenses require $be af such software to make any derivative wofkb® open source code available to others
on potentially unfavorable terms or at no cost.

The terms of many open source licenses to whicareubject have not been interpreted by U.S.reidn courts. Accordingly, there
is a risk that those licenses could be construednranner that imposes unanticipated conditiomssirictions on our ability to commercialize
our solutions. In that event, we could be requiteseek licenses from third parties in order toticmre offering our products or solutions, to re-
develop our products or solutions, to discontiralesof our products or solutions, or to releasepooprietary software code under the termr
an open source license, any of which could harnmbasimess. Further, given the nature of open saofte/are, it may be more likely that third
parties might assert copyright and other intellakcpoperty infringement claims against us basedwruse of these open source software
programs.

While we monitor the use of all open source sofenarour products, solutions, processes and teoggalnd try to ensure that no
open source software is used in such a way agjtoresus to disclose the source code to the refateduct or solution when we do not wish to
do so, it is possible that such use may have inésividy occurred in deploying our proprietary s@uas. In addition, if a third-party software
provider has incorporated certain types of opemcgosoftware into software we license from suctdtparty for our products and solutions
without our knowledge, we could, under certain winstances, be required to disclose the sourcetoanld products and solutions. This could
harm our intellectual property position and ouribass, results of operations and financial conditio

If third -party software used in our products is not adeqeigtmaintained or updated, our business could betenglly adversely affected.

Our products utilize certain software of third-yasbftware developers. For example, we licensentlclyy from bswift as part of our
Paylocity Web Benefits solution. Although we bebethat there are alternatives for these produnissignificant interruption in the availabil
of such third-party software could have an advargmct on our business unless and until we caracephe functionality provided by these
products at a similar cost. Additionally, we relly,a certain extent, upon such third partasilities to enhance their current products, toeties
new products on a timely and cost-effective bas@ta respond to emerging industry standards amer éeéchnological changes. We may be
unable to replace the functionality provided by tthied-party software currently offered in conjuioct with our products in the event that such
software becomes obsolete or incompatible withrutiersions of our products or is otherwise nogadéely maintained or updated.

Changes in laws and regulations related to the Imiet or changes in the Internet infrastructure itffiemay diminish the demand for our
applications, and could have a negative impact air business.

The future success of our business depends upamttimued use of the Internet as a primary medamsommerce, communication
and business applications. Federal, state or florgdyernment bodies or agencies have in the pagted, and may in the future adopt, laws ol
regulations affecting the use of the Internet asramercial medium. Changes in these laws or regakatould require us to modify our
applications in order to comply with these changesddition, government agencies or private orzgions may begin to impose taxes, fee
other charges for accessing the Internet or comermnducted via the Internet. These laws or chargels limit the growth of Internet-related
commerce or communications generally, resultingeductions in the demand for Internet-based apjies such as ours.

In addition, the use of the Internet as a busit@siscould be adversely affected due to delay®éndevelopment or adoption of new
standards and protocols to handle increased denudiatiernet activity, security, reliability, costase of use, accessibility, and quality of
service. The performance of the Internet and itepiance as a business tool has been adversatiedftay “viruses,” “worms” and similar
malicious programs, and the Internet has experctaoariety of outages and other delays as a resdiimage to portions of its infrastructure.
If the use of the Internet is adversely affectedimse issues, demand for our applications coufdrsu
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Furthermore, the availability or performance of applications could be adversely affected by a remalb factors, including clients’
inability to access the Internet, the failure of aatwork or software systems, security breachesoability in user traffic for our services. For
example, our clients access our solutions throbghr tnternet service providers. If a service pdavifails to provide sufficient capacity to
support our applications or otherwise experieneegice outages, such failure could interrupt oientk’ access to our solutions, adversely
affect their perception of our applications’ reliéiip and reduce our revenues. In addition to ptgtiability, if we experience interruptions in
the availability of our applications, our reputaticould be adversely affected and we could losntdi

Regulatory requirements placed on our software asetvices could impose increased costs on us, detgyrevent our introduction of nev
products and services, and impair the function alwe of our existing products and service

Our products and services may become subject teasing regulatory requirements, and as theserssgants proliferate, we may be
required to change or adapt our products and s@comply. Changing regulatory requirements tighder our products and services
obsolete or might block us from developing new picdd and services. This might in turn impose addéi costs upon us to comply or to
further develop our products and services. It mabb make introduction of new products and sesvinere costly or more time-consuming
than we currently anticipate. It might even previaetrbduction by us of new products or servicesause the continuation of our existing
products or services to become more costly.

We might require additional capital to support bugiss growth, and this capital might not be availabl

We intend to continue to make investments to supparbusiness growth and might require additidnatls to respond to business
challenges or opportunities, including the needewelop new products and services or enhance a@atirexservices, enhance our operating
infrastructure, and acquire complementary busirseard technologies. Accordingly, we might neednigage in equity or debt financings to
secure additional funds. In addition, we will néeeé@xpand our ACH capacity as we grow our businésge raise additional funds through
further issuances of equity or convertible debusées, our existing stockholders could suffemsiigant dilution, and any new equity securi
we issue could have rights, preferences and pgedesuperior to those of holders of our commonrkstany debt financing or ACH facility
secured by us in the future could involve restriettovenants relating to our capitalsing activities and other financial and openaiomatters
which might make it more difficult for us to obtadditional capital and to pursue business oppiitsrand to grow our business. In addition,
we might not be able to obtain additional financimgterms favorable to us, if at all. If we are bieato obtain adequate financing or financing
on terms satisfactory to us when we require it,ahility to continue to support our business groeutid to respond to business challenges cou
be significantly limited.

Our services present the potential for embezzlemitgntity theft, or other similar illegal behavidby our associates with respect to third
parties.

Certain services offered by us involve collectimymll information from individuals, and this fregputly includes information about
their checking accounts. Our services also invtiheeuse and disclosure of personal and businemsmafion that could be used to impersonat:
third parties, commit identity theft, or otherwigain access to their data or funds. If any of asoaiates take, convert, or misuse such funds,
documents or data, we could be liable for damaaes our business reputation could be damaged togled. Moreover, if we fail to
adequately prevent third parties from accessinggrexl and/or business information and using tHatnmation to commit identity theft, we
might face legal liabilities and other losses than have a negative impact on our business.

We rely on a thirdparty shipping provider to deliver printed checks dur clients, and therefore our business could hegatively impacted
disruptions in the operations of this third-partyrpvider.

We rely on third-party couriers such as the UnRauglcel Service, or UPS, to ship printed checksutacbients. Relying on UPS and
other third-party couriers puts us at risk fronrdions in their operations, such as employe&estriinclement weather and their ability to
perform tasks on our behalf. If UPS or other ttpatty couriers fail to perform their tasks, we abinlcur liability or suffer damages to our
reputation, or both. If we are forced to use othed-party couriers, our costs could increasewadnay not be able to meet shipment
deadlines. Moreover, we may not be able to obtims$ as favorable as those we currently use, wduald further increase our costs. These
circumstances may negatively impact our businésanfial condition and results of operations.

Our reported financial results may be adverselyeadfed by changes in accounting principles generalcepted in the United States.
Generally accepted accounting principles in theté¢hBtates are subject to interpretation by tharkgial Accounting Standards
Board, or FASB, the Securities and Exchange Comanisand various bodies formed to promulgate atemet appropriate accounting

principles. A change in these principles or intetations could have a significant effect on ouorégd financial results, and could affect the
reporting of transactions completed before the annement of a change.
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We may acquire other companies or technologies,ehthiould divert our management’s attention, resuitadditional dilution to our
stockholders and otherwise disrupt our operationsaadversely affect our operating resul

We may in the future seek to acquire or investtireobusinesses or technologies. The pursuit @fmia acquisitions or investments
may divert the attention of management and cause insur various expenses in identifying, inveatigg and pursuing suitable acquisitions,
whether or not they are consummated.

In addition, we have limited experience in acqugrather businesses. If we acquire additional bssieg we may not be able to
integrate the acquired personnel, operations astthtdogies successfully, or effectively managedtmbined business following the
acquisition. We also may not achieve the anticighéenefits from the acquired business due to a euwitfactors, including:

« Inability to integrate or benefit from acquiredti@ologies or services in a profitable manner;
» Unanticipated costs or liabilities associated itk acquisition;

* Incurrence of acquisition-related costs;

Difficulty integrating the accounting systems, agérns and personnel of the acquired business;

Difficulties and additional expenses associatedh witpporting legacy products and hosting infrastmecof the acquired
business;

« Difficulty converting the clients of the acquireddiness onto our applications and contract temadding disparities in the
revenues, licensing, support or professional sesvinodel of the acquired company;

« Diversion of management’s attention from other bess concerns;

*  Adverse effects to our existing business relatiggstvith business partners and clients as a restiite acquisition;
»  The potential loss of key employees;

*  Use of resources that are needed in other padsrdfusiness; and

»  Use of substantial portions of our available casbansummate the acquisition.

In addition, a significant portion of the purchas&e of companies we acquire may be allocateddquised goodwill and other
intangible assets, which must be assessed for impat at least annually. In the future, if our asiions do not yield expected returns, we
may be required to take charges to our operatisigiteebased on this impairment assessment proghis) could adversely affect our results
operations.

Acquisitions could also result in dilutive issuas@d equity securities or the incurrence of delfticlv could adversely affect our
operating results. In addition, if an acquired hesk fails to meet our expectations, our operaiaglts, business and financial position may
suffer.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

Insiders have substantial control over us, which ynlamit our stockholder’ ability to influence corporate matters and delay prevent a
third party from acquiring control over us.

As of August 15th, our directors, executive off&cand holders of more than 5% of our common stioglether with their respective
affiliates, beneficially owned, in the aggregatepmximately 79.0% of our outstanding common stddkis significant concentration of
ownership may adversely affect the trading pricgeofer common stock because investors often percigaglvantages in owning stock in
companies with controlling stockholders. In additithese stockholders will be able to exerciseigrite over all matters requiring stockholder
approval, including the election of directors appmval of corporate transactions, such as a mengether sale of our company or its assets.
This concentration of ownership could limit theldyiof our other stockholders to influence corperenatters and may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change in control, inahgda merger, consolidation, or other business coatioin involving us, or discouraging a
potential acquirer from making a tender offer drestvise attempting to obtain control, even if tbladnge in control would benefit our other
stockholders.
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Our stock price may be subject to wide fluctuations

The trading price of our common stock could be scttjo wide fluctuations in response to variousdes; some of which are beyond
our control. These factors include those discugséhis “Risk Factors” section of this Annual Repon Form 10-K and others such as:

»  Our operating performance and the operating pedaa of similar companies;
*  Announcements by us or our competitors of acquissti business plans or commercial relationships;
*  Any major change in our board of directors or semanagement;

»  Publication of research reports or news storiesib®, our competitors, or our industry, or pogitor negative
recommendations or withdrawal of research covebgggecurities analysts;

e The public’s reaction to our press releases, dugrgbublic announcements and our filings with tRCS

e  Sales of our common stock by our directors and @kee officers;

»  Adverse market reaction to any indebtedness weintay or securities we may issue in the future;

»  Short sales, hedging and other derivative tranmagiin our common stock;

*  The market’s reaction to our reduced disclosure i@Esult of being an emerging growth company utiieJOBS Act;
e  Threatened or actual litigation; and

e Other events or factors, including changes in gdreemditions in the United States and global ecaies or financial
markets (including those resulting from ongoing dgeichegotiations and intermittent government shatdoin the United
States, acts of God, war, incidents of terrorisnregponses to such events).

In addition, the stock market in general and theketsfor Internet-related companies in particutaye experienced extreme price anc
volume fluctuations that have often been unrelatedisproportionate to the operating performanctho$e companies. Securities class action
litigation has often been instituted against coniggfollowing periods of volatility in the overatharket and in the market price of a company’
securities. This litigation, if instituted againg, could result in substantial costs, divert oanagemens attention and resources, and harm
business, operating results, and financial corlitio

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on aaommon stock and, consequently, your ability to aale a return on your investment will
depend on appreciation in the price of our commadock.

We have only declared or paid cash dividends orcommmon stock once since 2008 and do not currémtéyd to do so for the
foreseeable future. We currently intend to investfature earnings, if any, to fund our growth. Tdfere, you are not likely to receive any
dividends on your common stock for the foreseeélilge, and the success of an investment in shudresr common stock will depend upon
future appreciation in its value, if any. There@gsguarantee that shares of our common stock pglteciate in value or even maintain the price
at which our stockholders purchased their shares.

Future sales of shares of our common stock by erigtstockholders could depress the market priceoaf common stock.

As of August 15, 2014, we had an aggregate of 407/3® outstanding shares of common stock. The sisatd in our IPO were
immediately tradable without restriction. The reniag 41,455,742 shares, or approximately 83.6%uofaitstanding shares are currently
restricted as a result of lock-up agreements. @kbares will be available for sale into the publarket on September 15, 2014, subject to
certain exceptions and also to potential extensimaer certain circumstances, and will be subgebtume and other sale restrictions. The
representatives of the underwriters may, in thalie sliscretion and at any time without notice, aske all or any portion of the securities subjec
to lock-up agreements.

Also, in the future, we may issue additional se@siin connection with investments and acquisgticthe amount of our common

stock issued in connection with an investment guésition could constitute a material portion of dwen outstanding stock. Due to these
factors, sales of a substantial number of sharesiofommon stock in the public market could oatainy time. These

25




Table of Contents

sales, or the perception in the market that thddrslof a large number of shares intend to setleshaould reduce the market price of our
common stock.

If we are unable to implement and maintain effeatiinternal controls over financial reporting in théuture, investors may lose confiden
in the accuracy and completeness of our financiajports and the market price of our common stock nieynegatively affected.

As a public company, we are required to maintaierimal controls over financial reporting and toaemny material weaknesses in
such internal controls. Section 404 of the Sarb#&hdsy Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, ieegithat we evaluate and determine the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting and, beginning with our annual refortthe fiscal year ending June 30, 2015,
provide a management report on the internal cateér financial reporting, which must be attesteldy our independent registered public
accounting firm to the extent we are no longer@mérging growth company,” as defined by the Junnp€tar Business Startups Act of 2012,
or the JOBS Act. If we have a material weaknesmuiminternal controls over financial reporting, may not detect errors on a timely basis anc
our financial statements may be materially misstaéée are in the process of designing and impleimgihe internal controls over financial
reporting required to comply with this obligatiamhich process will be time consuming, costly anthpbicated. If we identify material
weaknesses in our internal controls over finangpbrting, if we are unable to comply with the riegments of Section 404 in a timely mant
if we are unable to assert that our internal cdsitower financial reporting are effective, or ifrandependent registered public accounting firm
is unable to express an opinion as to the effeatige of our internal controls over financial repaytinvestors may lose confidence in the
accuracy and completeness of our financial reortsthe market price of our common stock coulddigatively affected, and we could
become subject to investigations by the stock exgban which our securities are listed, the SEGter regulatory authorities, which could
require additional financial and management resssirc

We have incurred and will continue to incur signdantly increased costs and devote substantial mamagnt time as a result of operating
a public company.

As a public company, we have incurred and will gwre to incur significant legal, accounting andestbxpenses that we did not incur
as a private company. For example, we are now sutge¢he reporting requirements of the Securigshange Act of 1934, as amended, ol
Exchange Act, and will be required to comply witle applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-OxléyaAd the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, as well assratel regulations subsequently implemented by B@ &1d the NASDAQ Global Select
Market including the establishment and maintenaradfective disclosure and financial controls ahénges in corporate governance
practices. We expect that compliance with thesairements will increase our legal and financial ptiance costs and will make some
activities more time consuming and costly. In additwe expect that our management and other peetavill need to divert attention from
operational and other business matters to devitgtaatial time to these public company requiremdntparticular, we expect to incur
significant expenses and devote substantial managesffort toward ensuring compliance with the liegments of Section 404 of the
Sarbane®xley Act, which will increase when we are no longa emerging growth company, as defined by theS@&. We will need to hil
additional accounting and financial staff with aggmiate public company experience and technicab@aaiing knowledge and may need to
establish an internal audit function. We cannotijmteor estimate the amount of additional costawes incur as a result of becoming a public
company or the timing of such costs.

If securities or industry analysts do not continde publish research or publish unfavorable or miglding research about our business, o
stock price and trading volume could declir

The trading market for our common stock depengsait on the research and reports that securitiesgdastry analysts publish about
us or our business. If one or more of the analysis covers us downgrades our stock or publishemvonéble or misleading research about
business, our stock price would likely declineorie or more of these analysts ceases coverage cbmpany or fails to publish reports on us
regularly, we could lose visibility in the markeirfour stock and demand for our stock could deereshich could cause our stock price or
trading volume to decline.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents andl®&are law could discourage, delay, or prevent anlge in control of our compar
and may affect the trading price of our common skoc

We are a Delaware corporation and the anti-takepraiisions of the Delaware General Corporation LaWwich apply to us, may
discourage, delay or prevent a change in contrgrbhibiting us from engaging in a business comtmnawith an interested stockholder for a
period of three years after the stockholder beccaanédaterested stockholder, even if a change itrobwould be beneficial to our existing
stockholders. In addition, our restated certifiaaftencorporation and amended and restated bylamysdiscourage, delay or prevent a chang
our management or control over us that stockholaferg consider favorable. Our amended and restateificate of incorporation and bylaws:
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»  Authorize the issuance of “blank check” convertipteferred stock that could be issued by our boédirectors to thwart a
takeover attempt;

»  Establish a classified board of directors, as alte$ which the successors to the directors whesas have expired will be
elected to serve from the time of election andifjoation until the third annual meeting followirigeir election;

* Require that directors only be removed from offmecause and only upon a supermajority stockholdég;

*  Provide that vacancies on the board of directaduding newly-created directorships, may be fikedy by a majority vote
of directors then in office rather than by stocklek;

»  Prevent stockholders from calling special meetitagst

»  Prohibit stockholder action by written consent,uieiqg all actions to be taken at a meeting ofgtoekholders.

We are an emerging growth company and we cannotésain if the reduced disclosure requirements aiggble to emerging growth
companies will make our common stock less attragtio investors.

We are an emerging growth company. Under the JO&Sefnerging growth companies can delay adoptimgarerevised accounting
standards until such time as those standards &pjpisivate companies.

For as long as we continue to be an emerging groasthpany, we intend to take advantage of certdiaraxemptions from various
reporting requirements that are applicable to oftuddlic companies including, but not limited todueed disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports@nacty statements, exemptions from the requiremefi®lding a nonbinding advisory vote
on executive compensation and stockholder appafahy golden parachute payments not previouslyegal, and exemptions from the
requirements of auditor attestation reports oreffectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting. We cannot predict if investors v
find our common stock less attractive because vile@ly on these exemptions. If some investors fimd common stock less attractive as a
result, there may be a less active trading madkeddir common stock and our stock price may be nolatile.

Although we are eligible under the JOBS Act to gieddoption of new or revised financial accountitansglards until they are
applicable to private companies, we have electédonavail ourselves of this exclusion. This eleatby us is irrevocable.

We will remain an emerging growth company until galiest of (i) the end of the fiscal year in whibe market value of our comn
stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700an as of December 31 of that fiscal year, {fig end of the fiscal year in which we have
total annual gross revenue of $1 billion or moreémusuch fiscal year, (iii) the date on which wsue more than $1 billion in non-convertible
debt in a three-year period or (iv) five years frivtarch 19, 2014.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

As of June 30, 2014, our corporate headquartenspded approximately 117,000 square feet in Arlimgitteights, lllinois under a leg
expiring in August 2020. As of June 30, 2014, wendkased facilities in New York, New York, Lake MaFlorida and Oakland, California.

For additional information regarding obligationsden operating leases, see Note 10 of the Notesmsdlidated Financial Statements
included in Part Il, Item 8: “Financial Statemeatsl Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report omi-a0-K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we may become involved in litiga related to claims arising from the ordinaryis®e of our business. We believe
that there are no claims or actions pending ofatiereed against us, the ultimate disposition of tviwould have a material adverse effect on u:

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market Information
Our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ &l8elect Market under the symbol “PCTY” since Mai®, 2014. Prior to that
date, there was no public trading market for oumecmn stock. Our common stock priced at $17.00 paresin our initial public offering on

March 18, 2014. The following table sets forth tloe periods indicated the high and low intra-ddg gpaices per share of our common stock a:
reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market:

Year ended June 30, 2014 High Low
Third Quarter (from March 19, 2014) $ 31.00 $ 22.11
Fourth Quarte $ 25.07 $ 15.24

On August 15, 2014, the last reported sale pricguofcommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Markas $24.34 per share, and
there were 17 holders of record of our common stdblke actual number of holders of common stockéaigr than these numbers of record
holders and includes stockholders who are bengbeiaers, but whose shares are held in street fgnbeokers and nominees. The number of
holders of record also does not include stockhsladrose shares may be held in trust by other estiti

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering of Comon Stock

On March 24, 2014, we completed our initial pulditering, or IPO, of 8,101,750 shares of commonlstat a price of $17.00 per share,
before underwriting discounts and commissions. \ofe 5,366,667 of such shares and existing stocldnsldold an aggregate of 2,735,083 of
such shares, including 366,667 shares sold by di$8®,083 shares sold by selling stockholdersrasudt of the underwriters’ exercise of their
over-allotment option to purchase additional shafég offer and sale of all of the shares in the {#ere registered under the Securities Act
pursuant to a registration statement on Form Si¢ o. 333193661), which was declared effective by the SE®anch 18, 2014. Followin
the sale of the shares in connection with the otpsif our IPO, the offering terminated. DeutsclaniBSecurities Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, William Blair & Compar..L.C., IMP Securities LLC, Raymond James & Asates, Inc. and Needham &
Company, LLC acted as the underwriters. The |IP@ted net proceeds to us of $81.9 million, afeetucting underwriting discounts.
Expenses incurred by us for the IPO were $2.9 onilind were recorded against the proceeds reckedhe IPO. We did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of shares by the sellingkbtders in the IPO.

Of the expenses incurred by us in connection withiIBO, $75,000 were paid to the underwriters forgte air travel.

With the proceeds of the IPO, we repaid amountstantiing under a note issued by us to Commerce Bankist Company on March
2011, which totaled $1.1 million; paid the $6.5lrai required at closing on May 23, 2014 on thechase of certain assets of BFKMS Inc.;
and paid $2.3 million upon finalization on July 2D14 of the purchase price on the purchase dhicesssets of BFKMS Inc.

There have been no material changes in the plamsedf proceeds from our IPO from that describetiénfinal prospectus filed with tl
SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) on March 19, 2014.

Dividend Policy

We declared and paid a one-time, special cashatiddn our common stock in the aggregate amous3,600,000 in May 2008.
Neither Delaware law nor our amended and restaddicate of incorporation requires our board o&dtors to declare dividends on ¢
common stock. Any future determination to declashcdividends on our common stock will be madéeaiscretion of our board of directors
and will depend on our financial condition, reswfperations, capital requirements, general lassirtonditions and other factors that our
board of directors may deem relevant. We do natigate paying cash dividends on our common stockHe foreseeable future.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
Information regarding the securities authorizedissuance under our equity compensation planseilhcluded in our Proxy Statement

relating to our 2014 annual meeting of stockholderse filed with the SEC within 120 days after #ral of our fiscal year ended June 30,
2014, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary iy ehour filings with the SEC, the following infation shall not be deemed “filed”
with the SEC or “soliciting materialunder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and siwdlbe incorporated by reference into any suéhdd

irrespective of any general incorporation languagmtained in such filing.

The following graph compares the total cumulatiteekholder return on our common stock with theltotamulative return of the S&P
500 Index and the S&P 1500 Application Softwareebduring the period commencing on March 19, 2@id jnitial trading day of our
common stock, and ending on June 30, 2014. Théhgsgumes that $100 was invested at the beginhithg @eriod in our common stock and
in each of the comparative indices, and the reinvest of any dividends. Historical stock price peniance should not be relied upon as an
indication of future stock price performance.

Companson of Cunmlative Total Eetumn
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Base
Period
3/19/2014 3/31/2014  4/30/2014 5/30/2014  6/30/2014

Company/Index

Paylocity Holding Corporatio $100 $100.04 $78.66 $80.99 $89.98
S&P 500 Inde» $100 $100.62 $101.2¢ $103.37 $105.3¢
S&P 1500 Application Software Indt $100 $96.71 $92.25 $95.16 $101.2¢
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
Consolidated Selected Financial Data

You should read the following selected consoliddileaincial data together with our consolidated fficial statements and related nc
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on ForrKlfnd the information under the section titled ‘M@ement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”r @i&cal year ends on June 30. The statementserbtipns data presented below for each o
the three fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 20t32@14 and the balance sheet data as of Jun®BB,ahd 2014 has been derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements. His&briesults are not necessarily indicative of fut@sults.

Year Ended June 30
2011 2012 2013 2014
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Revenues
Recurring fee: $36,44: $51,211 $71,30¢  $100,36:
Interest income on funds held for clients 1,100 1,263 1,459 1,582
Total recurring revenues 37,548 52,474 72,76€ 101,94¢
Implementation services and other 1,941 2,622 4,526 6,743
Total revenues 39,484 55,09¢€ 77,294 108,68
Cost of revenue:
Recurring revenue 16,32¢ 22,054 28,862 37,31¢
Implementation services and other 5,416 7,04C 10,802 17,77t
Total cost of revenues 21,74E 29,094 39,66€ 55,094
Gross profit 17,73¢ 26,002 37,62€ 53,59:¢
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 9,293 12,82¢ 18,69< 28,27¢
Research and developme 1,565 1,788 6,825 10,35t
General and administrative 6,868 8,618 12,07¢ 21,98C
Total operating expenses 17,72€ 23,234 37,597 60,611
Operating income (loss) 13 2,768 31 (7,018)
Other income (expense) (179) (196) (16) 163
Income (loss) before income taxes (166) 2,572 15 (6,855)
Income tax (benefit) expense (36) 884 (602) 255
Net income (loss) $(130) $1,68¢ $617  $(7,110
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhi $(774) $998  $(2,291 $(9,392)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to comstookholders
Basic $(0.02) $0.02 $(0.07) $(0.26)
Diluted $(0.02) $0.02 $(0.07) $(0.26)

Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢toss) per share attributable
to common stockholder

Basic 37,53¢ 43,87:< 31,98¢ 36,707
Diluted 37,53¢ 44,317 31,98¢ 36,707
Other Financial Data:
Adjusted Gross Profit(1 $19,962  $28,72¢  $40,69¢ $57,02¢
Adjusted Recurring Gross Profit( $23,437 $33,147 $46,97: $67,45¢
Adjusted EBITDA(1) $4,02¢ $7,66( $6,301 $5,44¢
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As of June 30,
2011 2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalel $7,990 $9,031 $7,594 $78,84¢
Working capital(2] 4,488 2,786 2,305 67,137
Funds held for client 298,97¢ 263,255 355,90k 417,261
Total asset 316,492 284,942 377,91€ 528,151
Debt, current portiol 312 1,625 625 —
Client fund obligation: 298,97¢ 263,25E 355,90k 417,261
Long-term debt, net of current portic 3,188 1,563 938 —
Redeemable convertible preferred st 9,339 36,573 36,573 —
Stockholder equity (deficit) (2,254) (27,646) (26,592) 91,134

1)

We use Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted RecurringgsiProfit, and Adjusted EBITDA to evaluate ourrapiag results. We prepare
Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring GrossfiPemd Adjusted EBITDA to eliminate the impactitdms we do not consider
indicative of our ongoing operating performancewdwoer, Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurrin@$ar Profit and Adjusted
EBITDA are not measurements of financial perforngannder generally accepted accounting principleésarinited States, or GAA
and these metrics may not be comparable to siytiléd measures of other companies.

We define Adjusted Gross Profit as gross profibbefamortization of capitalized internal-use sofeyatock-based compensation
expenses and one-time founder funded bonus payibats/. We define Adjusted Recurring Gross Prafittotal recurring revenues
after cost of recurring revenues and before anaiitin of capitalized internal-use software, stoekdsl compensation expenses and
one-time founder funded bonus pay-outs, if any.d&®ne Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) befioterest expense (income),
income tax expense (benefit), depreciation and aipadion, stock-based compensation expenses antimadounder funded bonus
pay-outs.

We disclose Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted ReagriGross Profit and Adjusted EBITDA, which are TBAAP measures, because
we believe these metrics assist investors and stisaly comparing our performance across report@rgp@ds on a consistent basis by
excluding items that we do not believe are indi@abf our core operating performance. We belieesaimetrics are commonly used
in the financial community to aid in comparisonsshilar companies, and we present them to enhiawestors’'understanding of ot
operating performance and cash flows.

Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring GrossfiPamd Adjusted EBITDA have limitations as anatgi tools. Some of these
limitations are:

« Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expendsuyor future requirements, for capital expendsur
+  Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, ohcaesjuirements for, our working capital needs;
«  Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our income tax expe or the cash requirement to pay our taxes;

«  Although depreciation and amortization are non-adsdrges, the assets being depreciated and angomiag have to be replaced
in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflany cash requirements for such replacements; and

«  Other companies in our industry may calculate AdjdsGross Profit, Adjusted Recurring Gross Prafil &djusted EBITDA
differently than we do, limiting their usefulnessacomparative measure.

Additionally, stock-based compensation will be &meent of our overall compensation strategy, altfiowe exclude it from Adjusted
Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring Gross Profit ardjusted EBITDA as an expense when evaluating ogoiny operating
performance for a particular period.

Because of these limitations, you should not carsidijusted Gross Profit as an alternative to gpeéit, Adjusted Recurring Gross
Profit as an alternative to total recurring reves)ue Adjusted EBITDA as an alternative to net imeo(loss) or cash provided by
operating activities, in each case as determined¢dordance with GAAP. We compensate for thesddiions by relying primarily on
our GAAP results, and we use Adjusted Gross Prafljusted Recurring Gross Profit and Adjusted EBATBnly as supplemental
information.
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Directly comparable GAAP measures to Adjusted GRrsgit, Adjusted Recurring Gross Profit and AdesEBITDA are gross prof
and net income (loss), respectively. We reconcd@usted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring Gross iPesfd Adjusted EBITDA as
follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2012 2013 2014

(in thousands)

Reconciliation from Gross Profit to Adjusted GrossProfit

Gross profit $17,73¢ $26,00z2 $37,62¢ $53,59:
Amortization of capitalized research and developncests 2,223 2,727 3,067 2,195
Stocl-based compensation expel — — — 920
One-time founder funded bonus pay-outs — — — 321

Adjusted Gross Profit $19,96:2 $28,72¢ $40,69¢ $57,02¢

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2012 2013 2014

(in thousands)

Reconciliation from Total Recurring Revenues to Adjisted
Recurring Gross Profit

Total recurring revenue $37,54: $52,47¢ $72,76¢ $101,94¢
Cost of recurring revenues (16,329 (22,054 (28,863 (37,319

Total recurring revenues 21,214 30,42C 43,90¢ 64,62¢
Amortization of capitalized research and developncests 2,223 2,727 3,067 2,195
Stocl-based compensation expel — — — 496
One-time founder funded bonus pay-outs — — — 142

Adjusted Recurring Gross Profit $23,43i $33,14i $46,972 $67,45¢

Year Ended June 30
2011 2012 2013 2014

(in thousands)

Reconciliation from Net Income (Loss) to Adjusted BITDA

Net income (loss $(130) $1,68¢ $617 $(7,110;
Interest expens 238 261 192 67
Income tax (benefit) expen (36) 884 (602) 255
Depreciation and amortization 3,779 4,624 5,571 6,336

EBITDA 3,851 7,457 5,778 (452)
Stocl-based compensation expel 177 203 523 4,929
One-time founder funded bonus pay-outs — — — 971

Adjusted EBITDA $4,02¢ $7,66C $6,301 $5,44¢

(2) Working capital is defined as current assets maurgent liabilities.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

The statements included herein that are not baskdyson historical facts are “forward looking stnents.” Such forward-looking statements
are based on current expectations and assumpthatsare subject to risks and uncertainties. Oumattesults could differ materially from
those anticipated by us in these forward-lookiradeshents as a result of various factors, includimgse discussed below and elsewhere in thi
prospectus, particularly under the section tit“Risk Factors.”

Overview

We are a cloud-based provider of payroll and huoggital management or HCM software solutions fodimm-sized organizations,
which we define as those having between 20 and)le@tployees. Our comprehensive and easy-to-ust@enable our clients to manage
their workforces more effectively. Our solutionsghdrive strategic human capital decision-making amprove employee engagement by
enhancing the HR, payroll and finance capabilitiesur clients.

Effective management of human capital is a coretfan in all organizations and requires a significeommitment of resources.
Medium-sized organizations operating without tHfesistructure, expertise or personnel of largerrpmiges are uniquely pressured to manage
their human capital effectively.

Our solutions were specifically designed to meetghayroll and HCM needs of medium-sized organipati®Ve designed our cloud-
based platform to provide a unified suite of apgiiens using a multi-tenant architecture. Our sohs are highly flexible and configurable and
feature a modern, intuitive user experience. Oatf@im offers automated data integration with Q@0 related third-party systems, such as
401(k), benefits and insurance provider systems.

Our Paylocity Web Pay product is our core payroligon and was the first of our current offeringgoduced into the market. We
believe payroll is the most critical system of nector medium-sized organizations and an essegditdway to other HCM functionality. We
have invested in, and we intend to continue toshirg research and development to expand our ptadferings and advance our platform.

We believe there is a significant opportunity towgrour business by increasing our number of cliants we intend to invest in our
business to achieve this purpose. We market ahdwesolutions primarily through our direct safesce. We have increased our sales and
marketing expenses as we have added sales re@tasestind related sales and marketing personrein®nd to continue to grow our sales
and marketing organization across new and exigf@agraphic territories. In addition to growing awmber of clients, we intend to grow our
revenue over the long term by increasing the nurabhdrquality of products that clients purchase fu@enTo do so, we must continue to
enhance and grow the number of solutions we offaidivance our platform.

We believe that delivering a positive service eigrae is an essential element of our ability tb @et solutions and retain our clients.
We seek to develop deep relationships with ountdi¢hrough our unified service model, which hasrbéesigned to meet the service needs o
medium-sized organizations. We expect to contiouavest in and grow our implementation and clsgnvice organization as our client base
grows.

We believe we have the opportunity to continuertamgour business over the long term, and to doesdave invested, and intend to
continue to invest, across our entire organizafldrese investments include increasing the numbpersfonnel across all functional areas,
along with improving our solutions and infrastruettio support our growth. The timing and amourthese investments vary based on the rat
at which we add new clients, add new personnekanatt our application development and other amiitMany of these investments will
occur in advance of experiencing any direct beffiefin them which will make it difficult to determanif we are effectively allocating our
resources. We expect these investments to incoeasmsts on an absolute basis, but as we growwwaber of clients and our related
revenues, we anticipate that we will gain econorofescale and increased operating leverage. Asudtyeve expect our gross and operating
margins will improve over the long term.

As our business has grown, we have become incgdgsinbject to the risks arising from adverse cleasng domestic and global
economic conditions. If general economic conditioese to deteriorate further, including declinepiivate sector employment growth and
business productivity, increases in the unemploymae and changes in interest rates, we may expegidelays in our sales cycles, increase
pressure from prospective customers to offer distsoand increased pressure from existing custotngenew expiring recurring revenue
agreements for lower amounts. Our interest incomiinds held for clients continues to be negativwelgacted by historically low interest
rates.
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Our operating subsidiary Paylocity Corporation Wweerporated in July 1997 as an lllinois corpomatim November 2013, we form
Paylocity Holding Corporation, a Delaware corpamatiof which Paylocity Corporation is now a whotiyned subsidiary. Paylocity Holding
Corporation had no operations prior to the restntiieg. All of our business operations have hist@lhcbeen, and are currently, conducted by
Paylocity Corporation, and the financial resulteganted herein are entirely attributable to theltesf its operations.

Key Metrics

We regularly review a number of metrics, includthg following key metrics, to evaluate our busin@ssasure our performance,
identify trends affecting our business, formulateficial projections and make strategic decisions.

Recurring Revenue Growth

Our recurring revenue model and high annual reveetgstion rates provide significant visibility anbur future operating results and
cash flow from operations. This visibility enablesto better manage and invest in our businessirReg revenue, which is comprised of
recurring fees and interest income on funds haldlents, increased from $52.5 million in fisc&l12 to $72.8 million in fiscal 2013,
representing a 39% year-over-year increase. Regurevenue increased from $72.8 million in fiscal2 to $101.9 million in fiscal 2014,
representing a 40% year-over-year increase. Regurevenue represented 95%, 94% and 94% of tatahte in fiscal 2012, 2013, and 2014,
respectively.

Client Count Growth

We believe there is a significant opportunity towgrour business by increasing our number of cliéis have increased our number
of clients from approximately 5,500 as of June L2 to approximately 8,500 as of June 30, 20tesenting a compound annual growth
rate of approximately 24%. The table below setthfour client count for the periods indicated, rded to the nearest fifty.

Year Ended June 30
2012 2013 2014
Client Count 5,50( 6,85( 8,500

The rate at which we add clients is highly varigideiod-toperiod and highly seasonal as many clients swibbltisns during the firs
calendar quarter of each year. Although many diéatve multiple divisions, segments or locations,only count such clients once for these
purposes.

Annual Revenue Retention Rate

Our annual revenue retention rate has been in exte€32% during each of the past three fiscal ya&fes calculate our annual revenue
retention rate as our total revenue for the prempdP months, less the annualized value of revirsieluring the preceding 12 months, divi
by our total revenue for the preceding 12 months.dAlculate the annualized value of revenue lostUoyming the recurring fees paid by lost
clients over the previous twelve months prior teithermination if they have been a client for aimium of twelve months. For those lost
clients who became clients within the last twelvenths, we sum the recurring fees for the periotlttiey have been a client and then
annualize the amount. We exclude interest incomienads held for clients from the revenue retentiattulation. We believe that our annual
revenue retention rate is an important metric tasnee overall client satisfaction and the genauality of our product and service offerings.

Recurring Fees From New Clients

We calculate recurring fees from new clients agptreentage of year-tdate recurring fees from all clients on our solsiovhich hac
not been on or used any of our solutions for ayfedlr as of the start of the current fiscal yaate believe recurring fees from new clients is an
important metric to measure the expansion of oistiewg client base as well as the growth in ouerdlibase. Our recurring fees from new
clients for both fiscal 2013 and 2014 were 44%.

Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring Gross Ht@nd Adjusted EBITDA

We disclose Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted ReagriGross Profit and Adjusted EBITDA because wethem to evaluate our
performance, and we believe Adjusted Gross Pmdfijusted Recurring Gross Profit and Adjusted EBITBgsist in the comparison of our
performance across reporting periods by excludertam items that we do not believe are indicati’eur core operating performance. We
believe these metrics are used in the financialmanity, and we present it to enhance investorseustdnding of our operating performance
and cash flows.
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Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring GrossfiPamd Adjusted EBITDA are not measurements oafiicial performance under
generally accepted accounting principles in thetd¢hBtates, or GAAP, and you should not considgugtdd Gross Profit as an alternative to
gross profit, Adjusted Recurring Gross Profit asalarnative to total recurring revenues, or AGasEBITDA as an alternative to net income
(loss) or cash provided by operating activitiesg@th case as determined in accordance with GAARddition, our definition of Adjusted
Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring Gross Profit ardjusted EBITDA may be different than the definitiotilized for similarly-titled measures
used by other companies.

We define Adjusted Gross Profit as gross profibbefamortization of capitalized internal-use sofeyatock-based compensation
expenses and one-time founder funded bonus payibats/. We define Adjusted Recurring Gross Prafittotal recurring revenues after cost
of recurring revenues and before amortization gftetized internal-use software, stock-based corsgton expense and one-time founder
funded bonus payouts. We define Adjusted EBITDAetsincome (loss) before interest expense (incpmedme tax expense (benefit),
depreciation and amortization, stock-based compiemsexpenses and one-time founder funded bonusptsy The table below sets forth our
Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring GrossfiPamd Adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented.

Year Ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)
Adjusted Gross Prof $28,72¢ $40,69! $57,02¢
Adjusted Recurring Gross Pro $33,14° $46,97: $67,458
Adjusted EBITDA $7,66( $6,30: $5,448

For a further discussion of Adjusted Gross Préfitjusted Recurring Gross Profit and Adjusted EBIT,0cluding a reconciliation of
Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Recurring GrossfiPamd Adjusted EBITDA to GAAP, see Part Il, ItéBn“Consolidated Selected Financial
Data.”

Basis of Presentation
Revenues
Recurring Fees

We derive the majority of our revenues from reagtiees attributable to our cloud-based payroll ld@d/ software solutions.
Recurring fees for each client generally includmae fee in addition to a fee based on the nunflsieot employees and the number of
products a client uses. We also charge fees atihilrito our preparation of W-2 documents and almeggired filings on behalf of our clients.
Over the past three years, our clients have camilgthad on average between 95 and 115 employeslerive revenue from a client basec
the solutions purchased by the client, the numbelient employees as well as the amount, typetamithg of services provided in respect of
those client employees. As such, the number ehtimployees on our system is not a good indiadtour financial results in any period.
Recurring fees attributable to our clobdsed payroll and HCM solutions accounted for axprately 93%, 92% and 92% of our total reven
during the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2&dgectively.

Our agreements with clients do not have a spedified and are generally cancellable by the clien8® days’ or less notice. Our
agreements do not include general rights of resmchdo not provide clients with the right to takesgession of the software supporting the
services being provided. We recognize recurring feehe period in which services are provided whén collection of fees is reasonably
assured and the amount of fees is fixed or detexihén

Interest Income on Funds Held for Clients

We earn interest income on funds held for clievits.collect funds for employee payroll payments exdted taxes in advance of
remittance to employees and taxing authoritie@rRao remittance to employees and taxing autharitiee earn interest on these funds through
financial institutions with which we have automatdelaring house, or ACH, arrangements.

Implementation Services and Other

Implementation services and other revenues prignaoihsist of implementation fees charged to neents for professional services
provided to implement and configure our payroll &@M solutions. Implementations of our payroll g@uas typically require only three to
four weeks at which point the new client’s payisifirst run using our solution, our implementat&ervices are deemed completed, and we
recognize the related revenue. We implement additil CM products as requested by clients and |gpeetiae data within our payroll solution
to accelerate our implementation processes. Impitatien services and other revenues may fluctugtefieantly from quarter to quarter
based on the number of new clients, pricing angtbduct utilization.
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Cost of Revenues
Cost of Recurring Revenues

Costs of recurring revenues are generally expeasédcurred, and include costs to provide our ghgiral other HCM solutions
primarily consisting of employee-related expenseduding wages, stock-based compensation, borarsbenefits, relating to the provision
of ongoing client support, payroll tax filing angulibution of printed checks and other materid@lsese costs also include third-party reseller
costs, delivery costs, computing costs and amaidizaf capitalized software costs, as well as bi@els associated with client fund transfers.
We expect to realize cost efficiencies over thelterm as our business scales, resulting in imgtoperating leverage and increased margins

We capitalize a portion of our costs for softwaeseloped for internal use, which are then all aimedtas a cost of recurring reveni
We amortized $2.7 million, $3.1 million and $2.2lian of capitalized internal-use software costdigeal 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Cost of Implementation Services and Other

Cost of implementation services and other consist®st entirely of employee-related expenses iredin the implementation of our
payroll and other HCM solutions for new clients plementation costs are generally fixed in the sterh and exceed associated
implementation revenue charged to each client. Mgnd to grow our business through acquisitionesf glients, and doing so will require
increased personnel to implement our solutionsré&fbee our cost of implementation services andrathexpected to increase in absolute
dollars for the foreseeable future.

Operating Expenses
Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarilyni@yee-related expenses for our direct sales ar#teting staff, including wages,
commissions, stock-based compensation, bonuselseaadits, marketing expenses and other related.c8stmmissions are primarily earned
and recognized in the month when implementatiaomplete and the client first utilizes a serviggijc¢ally by running its first payroll.
Bonuses paid to sales staff for attainment of aegarformance criteria are accrued in the fisegnin which they are earned and are
subsequently paid annually in the first fiscal deiaof the following year.

We will seek to grow our number of clients for foeeseeable future and therefore our sales andetiagkexpense is expected to
continue to increase in absolute dollars as we gromsales organization and expand our marketitigites.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist prinsheiyployee-related expenses for our researcldanelopment and product
management staff, including wages, stock-based easgtion, benefits and bonuses. Additional expeinskgle costs related to the
development, maintenance, quality assurance atidged new technologies and ongoing refinemerawfexisting solutions. Research and
development expenses, other than software develuperpenses qualifying for capitalization, are exgesl as incurred.

We capitalize a portion of our development cosi@tee to internal-use software. The timing of oapitalized development projects
may affect the amount of development costs expeinsady given period. The table below sets forthdmounts of capitalized and expensed
research and development expenses for each of #8ta, 2013 and 2014.

Year Ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)
Capitalized portion of research and developn $3,71¢ $1,96° $4,67-
Expensed portion of research and development 1,78¢ 6,82¢ 10,35¢
Total research and development $5,50¢ $8,79: $15,02!

We expect to grow our research and developmenttefés we continue to broaden our product offerarys extend our technological
leadership by investing in the development of neghhologies and introducing them to new and exjatlients. We expect research and
development expenses to continue to increase mlwbgollars but to vary as a percentage of teatnue on a period-to-period basis.
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General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist piliynafrother employee-related costs, including wapesnefits, stock-based
compensation and bonuses for our administratinenfie, accounting, and human resources departmeldgional expenses include
consulting and professional fees, insurance aner @tbrporate expenses.

We expect our general and administrative expemsiggtease in absolute dollars as a result of peration as a public company.
These expenses will also include costs associated®gulations governing public companies, incegbasosts of directors’ and officers’
liability insurance and increased professional ises/expenses.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) consists primarily of irdenrecome and expense. Interest income repreggertest received on our cash and
cash equivalents. Interest expense consists phintdrihe interest incurred on outstanding borraygimunder our note payable prior to its
retirement in March 2014 using proceeds of oufdhgublic offering.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our statements afragions data for each of the periods indicated.

Year Ended June 30,
2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Revenues
Recurring fee: $51,21: $71,30¢ $100,36:
Interest income on funds held for clients 1,26: 1,45¢ 1,58
Total recurring revenues 52,47 72,76¢ 101,94
Implementation services and other 2,622 4,52¢ 6,74
Total revenues 55,09¢ 77,29¢ 108,68’
Cost of revenue:
Recurring revenue 22,05¢ 28,86 37,31¢
Implementation services and other 7,04( 10,80: 17,77¢
Total costs of revenues 29,09 39,66¢ 55,09
Gross profit 26,00 37,62¢ 53,59¢
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 12,82¢ 18,69: 28,27t
Research and developme 1,78¢ 6,82t 10,33t
General and administrative 8,61¢ 12,07¢ 21,98(
Total operating expenses 23,23¢ 37,59° 60,61’
Operating income (loss) 2,76¢ 31 (7,018
Other income (expense) (196 (16) 162
Income (loss) before income taxes 2,572 15 (6,855
Income tax (benefit) expense 884 (602 25E
Net income (loss) $1,68¢ $617 $(7,110
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The following table sets forth our statements cdraions data as a percentage of revenue for ddbb periods indicated.

Year Ended June 30
2012 2013 2014

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Revenues
Recurring fee! 93% 92% 92%
Interest income on funds held for clients 2% 2% 2%
Total recurring revenues 95% 94% 94%
Implementation services and other 5% 6% 6%
Total revenues 100% 100% 100%
Cost of revenues
Recurring revenue 40% 37% 34%
Implementation services and other 13% 14% 17%
Total costs of revenues 53% 51% 51%
Gross profit A7% 49% 49%
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 23% 24% 26%
Research and developme 3% 9% 10%
General and administrative 16% 16% 20%
Total operating expenses 42% 49% 56%
Operating income (loss) 5% 0% (%
Other income (expense) (0)% 0% 0%
Income (loss) before income taxes 5% 0% (%
Income tax (benefit) expense 2% ()% 0%
Net income (loss) 3% 1% (N%

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012, ZDand 2014

Revenue:
Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 201: 2013 to 201¢
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
Recurring fees $51,211 $71,30¢  $100,36z $20,09¢ 39% $29,052 41%
Percentage of total revent 93% 92% 92%
Interest income on funds held for clie $1,263 $1,459 $1,582 $196 16% $123 8%
Percentage of total revent 2% 2% 2%
Implementation services and otl $2,622 $4,526 $6,743 $1,904 73% $2,217 49%
Percentage of total revent 5% 6% 6%

Recurring Fees

Recurring fees for the year ended June 30, 20¥é4ased by $29.1 million, or 41%, to $100.4 millfoom $71.3 million for the year
ended June 30, 2013. Recurring fees increased filiraa a result of the continued growth of ouenli base in fiscal 2014, as well as increase
revenue per client. Our client count at June 3Q42@creased by 24% to approximately 8,500 fronraxmately 6,850 at June 30, 2013.

Recurring fees for the year ended June 30, 20¥8ased by $20.1 million, or 39%, to $71.3 milliwarh $51.2 million for the year
ended June 30, 2012. Recurring fees increased filyraa a result of the continued growth of ouenli base in fiscal 2013, as well as increase
revenue per client. Our client count at June 3032@creased by 25% to approximately 6,850 fromreximately 5,500 at June 30, 2012.

Interest Income on Funds Held for Clients

Interest income on funds held for clients for tlearyended June 30, 2014 increased by $0.1 mithio8%, to $1.6 million from

$1.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2013.regeincome increased primarily as a result ofnengased average daily balance of funds he
due to the addition of new clients to our cliensdaartially offset by declining interest creditirsdes during fiscal 2014.
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Interest income on funds held for clients for tlearyended June 30, 2013 increased by $0.2 mithioh6%, to $1.5 million from
$1.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2012.regeincome increased primarily as a result ofnengased average daily balance of funds he
due to the addition of new clients to our cliensdaluring fiscal 2013.

Implementation Services and Other

Implementation services and other revenue for #a gnded June 30, 2014 increased by $2.2 mibio#9%, to $6.7 million from
$4.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2013. émq@ntation services and other revenue increasemply as a result of the continued gro
of our new client base during fiscal 2014.

Implementation services and other revenue for #a gnded June 30, 2013 increased by $1.9 mibion3%, to $4.5 million from
$2.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2012. empntation services and other revenue increasewply as a result of the continued gro
of our new client base during fiscal 2013.

Cost of Revenues

Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 201 2013 to 201«
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
Cost of recurring revenues $22,054 $28,863 $37,31¢ $6,809 31% $8,456 29%
Percentage of recurring revent 42% 40% 37%
Recurring gross margi 58% 60% 63%
Cost of implementation services and ot $7,040  $10,803  $17,77% $3,763 53% $6,972 65%
Percentage of implementation services and
other 268% 239% 264%
Implementation gross marg (168)% (139)% (164)%

Cost of Recurring Revenues

Cost of recurring revenues for the year ended 3002014 increased by $8.5 million, or 29%, to 83fillion from $28.9 million for
the year ended June 30, 2013. Cost of recurringnuess increased primarily as a result of the caatirgrowth of our business, in particular
$4.0 million in additional employeeslated costs resulting from additional personagirbvide services to new and existing clients5$illion
stock-based compensation associated with our bWyased IPO grant to all employees, $0.4 milliondifigonal costs attributable to resellers,
and $3.5 million other processing-related fees.ur@wy gross margin increased by 3% from 60% iodi®013 to 63% in fiscal 2014 primarily
due to a 2% reduction in amortization expense @ereentage of total recurring revenue and a 1%ctamuin costs attributable to resellers as «
percentage of total recurring revenue.

Cost of recurring revenues for the year ended 30n2013 increased by $6.8 million, or 31%, to $28illion from $22.1 million for
the year ended June 30, 2012. Cost of recurringnuess increased primarily as a result of the caatirgrowth of our business, in particular
$2.9 million in additional employeeslated costs resulting from additional personagirbvide services to new and existing clients2 $iillion
of additional costs attributable to resellers, $8dl million of other processing-related fees. Reng gross margin increased by 2% from 58%
in fiscal 2012 to 60% in fiscal 2013 primarily ditcea 1% reduction in amortization expense as agng¢age of total recurring revenue and a 1Y
reduction in personnel-related and other costsp@ntage of total recurring revenue.

Cost of Implementation Services and Other

Cost of implementation services and other for tharyended June 30, 2014 increased by $7.0 mitho65%, to $17.8 million from
$10.8 million for the year ended June 30, 20131 @Gbsnplementation services and other increasedaoily due to an increase in new clients
during fiscal 2014, and a corresponding increask5of million in employee-related and other costsrtplement our solutions for new clients
and $0.4 million stock-based compensation assatiaith our broad based IPO grant to all employees.

Cost of implementation services and other for tharyended June 30, 2013 increased by $3.8 miiob3%, to $10.8 million from

$7.0 million for the year ended June 30, 2012. @bgnhplementation services and other increasedanily due to an increase in new clients
during fiscal 2013, and a corresponding increask8dd million in employee-related and other costsrtplement our solutions for new clients.
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Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing

Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 201¢ 2013 to 201«
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
Sales and marketing $12,82¢ $18,692 $28,27¢€ $5,865 46% $9,583 51%
Percentage of total revent 23% 24% 26%

Sales and marketing expenses for the year ended3lyr2014 increased by $9.6 million, or 51%, t8.82nillion from $18.7 million
for the year ended June 30, 2013. The increasaés and marketing expenses in fiscal 2014 wasapilyrthe result of $8.5 million of
additional employeeelated costs from the expansion of our sales feamding management, direct sales and sales aslration personnel t
62 personnel, the addition of 24 sales lead geinarpersonnel, whose function was previously outsed and recorded in sales and marketing
as lead generation expense rather than employaiededxpense in prior periods and other miscellamsales and marketing related expenses
The increase was also attributable to $0.8 milibatock-based compensation associated with owdbbased IPO grant to all employees.

Sales and marketing expenses for the year ended3lyr2013 increased by $5.9 million, or 46%, t8.8Imillion from $12.8 million
for the year ended June 30, 2012. The increasaés and marketing expenses in fiscal 2013 wasapiliyrthe result of $5.2 million of
additional employee-related costs from the expansfaur direct sales force by 23 personnel, thiadiof additional sales management and
administrative personnel to support our growingifiess and other miscellaneous sales and marketiagd expenses.

Research and Development

Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 2013 2013 to 2014
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
Research and development $1,788 $6,825 $10,35E $5,037 282% $3,530 52%

Percentage of total revent 3% 9% 10%

Research and development for the year ended Jurg®38 increased by $3.5 million, or 52%, to $1®illion from $6.8 million for
the year ended June 30, 2013. Research and devatbposts increased in fiscal 2014 primarily dug3d million of additional employee-
related expenses related to 27 additional develappersonnel, $0.6 million of stock-based compeasatssociated with our broad based IPC
grant to all employees and $0.5 million relatethi® one-time founder funded bonus pay-outs. This effset by an increase of $2.7 million in

our capitalized internally developed software castsve developed significant additional functiotyalh our human capital management
applications during the year.

Research and development for the year ended Jurg®38 increased by $5.0 million, or 282%, to $@iBion from $1.8 million for
the year ended June 30, 2012. Research and dewaibposts increased in fiscal 2013 primarily dug83@ million of additional employee-
related expenses related to 39 additional developpersonnel. Additionally, in fiscal 2013 one afr@ore payroll applications transitioned
beyond the development stage into the maintenamténaremental improvements stage, and thereforeapitalized internally developed
software costs decreased by $1.7 million in fi€3 as compared to fiscal 2012.

General and Administrative

Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 2013 2013 to 2014
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
General and administrative $8,618 $12,07¢ $21,98C $3,461 40% $9,901 82%

Percentage of total revent 16% 16% 20%

General and administrative expenses for the yedgddune 30, 2014 increased by $9.9 million, or 82%22.0 million from
$12.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2013.4ea@nd administrative expenses increased priynasila result of $4.3 million of additional
employee-related expenses relating to 18 additipeedonnel, $2.1 million of additional stock-basethpensation costs associated with IPO
related grants of options and restricted stocksyugit.7 million in additional professional fees &@d6 million of increased occupancy costs
incurred as a result of our requirement for addaimffice space.
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General and administrative expenses for the yededdune 30, 2013 increased by $3.5 million, or 409%12.1 million from
$8.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2012. Garend administrative expenses increased primasilg result of $2.2 million of additional
employee-related expenses relating to 17 additipeedonnel, as well as $0.7 million of increaseclipancy costs incurred as a result of our
requirement for additional office space.

Other Income (Expense)

Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 2013 2013 to 2014
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
Other income (expense) $(196) $(16) $163 $180 * $179 *
* * *

Percentage of total revent

* Not Meaningful

Other income (expense) for the year ended Jun2(30} increased by $0.2 million as compared to #& gnded June 30, 2013. Ot
income for the year ended June 30, 2014 primadhsists of interest income earned on our cash asid equivalents, partially offset by
interest expense incurred on our note payable #rat debt, which was repaid in full in March 2014.

Other income (expense) for the year ended Jun2@@ increased by $0.2 million as compared to #& gnded June 30, 2012. Ot
expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 prinwoilgists of interest expense incurred on our nayalple and other debt, which was reducec
as compared to the year ended June 30, 2012 dineréased principal payments in fiscal 2013.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

Change from Change from
Year Ended June 30 2012 to 201 2013 to 201«
2012 2013 2014 $ % $ %
Effective tax rate 34% * (4)%
Income tax (benefit) expen 884 (602) 255  (1,486) * (857) *
Percentage of total revent 2% ()% *

* Not Meaningful

Income tax (benefit) expense for the year ended 3002014 increased by $0.9 million, as compavetd year ended June 30, 2013
primarily due to the expiration of federal reseaacil development tax credit allowances resulting $.5 million decline in amount claimed
and an increase in non-deductible expenses asildoésur growing business. The Company alsogec®ed a valuation allowance as of
June 30, 2014 on substantially all of its net defétax assets, many of which were generated ithtee month period ended June 30, 2014,
given its determination that it was more likelyrihzot that the Company would not recognize the titsnaf its net operating loss carryforwal
prior to their expiration.

Income tax (benefit) expense for the year ended 3002013 decreased by $1.5 million, as comparéuet year ended June 30, 2012
The decrease in income tax provision was primahiéyresult of income before taxes of $0 for therwraled June 30, 2013, as compared to
income before taxes of $2.6 million for the yeades June 30, 2012. Additionally, our income taxvjsion for the year ended June 30, 2013
was reduced by $0.7 million due to the applicabbmarious research and development tax credits.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgmats and Estimates

In preparing our financial statements and accogritin the underlying transactions and balancesao@ance with GAAP, we apply
various accounting policies that require our manag# to make estimates, judgments and assumptiahaffect the amounts reported in our
financial statements. We consider the policiesudised below as critical to understanding our fir@rstatements, as their application places
the most significant demands on managensgatigment. Management bases its estimates, judgraad assumptions on historical experie
current economic and industry conditions and oiouarother factors deemed to be reasonable undaintumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the d@agryalues of assets and liabilities that are ratlily apparent from other sources. Because
the use of estimates is an integral part of therfamal reporting process, actual results coulcedifind such differences could be material.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenues predominantly from recurringereies associated with our cloud-based payroll aDill idoftware applications
and one-time service fees for implementation ofsmiutions. Our agreements with clients do notudelgeneral rights
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of return and do not provide clients with the rigihtake possession of the software supportingéngices being provided. As such, revenue is
recognized as services are performed.

We recognize revenue when all of the followingemia are achieved:

«  There is persuasive evidence of an agreement;

«  The service has been provided to the client;

«  Collection of the fees is reasonably assured; and

«  The amount of fees to be paid by the client isdire determinable.

For arrangements with multiple-elements, we recognévenues in accordance with Accounting Standadpdate (ASU) 2009-13,
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangementsor each agreement, we evaluate whether theichgil/deliverables qualify as separate units of
accounting. If one or more of the deliverables dugishave standalone value upon delivery, the dedivies that do not have standalone value
are generally combined and treated as a singleofiaitcounting. Revenue for arrangements treatedsasgle unit of accounting is generally
recognized within the same month that the senacesendered given that the agreements are cableeliéth 60 days’ or less notice.

In determining whether revenues from implementasiervices can be accounted for separately fronrrieaguwevenues, we consider
the nature of the implementation services and viadability of the implementation services from ethvendors. We established standalone
value for implementation primarily due to the numbgpartners that perform these services and attdou such implementation services
separate from the recurring revenues.

If we determine that the services have standalaheswpon delivery, we account for each separatetirevenues are recognized as
the services are delivered with allocation of cdasition based on the relative selling price metidat method requires the selling price of
each element in a multiple deliverable arrangerteebe based on, in descending order: (i) vendaeifip objective evidence of fair value, or
VSOE, (ii) third-party evidence of fair value, oPI, or (iii) management’s best estimate of thargglbrice, or BESP.

We are not able to demonstrate VSOE of sellingeprith respect to our recurring fees paid for amlutons because the deliverables
are sold across an insufficiently narrow rangerafgs on a stand-alone basis. We are also notaldlemonstrate TPE for subscription fees
because no third-party offerings are reasonablypasable to our product offerings. We thus estal®iE$P by service offering, requiring the
use of significant estimates and judgment. To deite BESP, we consider numerous factors, incluthieghature of the deliverables
themselves, the geography for the sale, internstscand pricing and discounting practices utilibgdur direct sales force. Arrangement
consideration is allocated to each deliverable dhasethe established BESP and subject to the liimitahat because the arrangements are
cancellable with 60 days’ or less notice, recurniegenue is not allocated to any deliverable uhélconsideration has been earned, typically
with each payroll cycle or monthly, depending oe service.

Property and Equipment and Long-Lived Assets

We state property and equipment at cost. We cakdkpreciation on property and equipment usirtgeéght-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generalBetim seven years for most classes of assetseotl@/term of the related lease for leasehold
improvements. We recognized depreciation expen$d 8fmillion, $2.5 million and $4.1 million durirthe years ended June 30, 2012, 2013,
and 2014, respectively.

We review long-lived assets, such as property ajipenent, for impairment whenever events or chamgegcumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not bavezable. If circumstances require a long-liveceiss asset group be tested for possible
impairment, we first compare the undiscounted ¢ksts expected to be generated by that asset et gesup to its carrying amount. If the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset or assetigiis not recoverable on an undiscounted cashlflasis, we recognize impairment to the
extent that the carrying amount exceeds its fdirezdNe determine fair value through various vabratechniques including discounted cash
flow models, quoted market values and third-partiependent appraisals, as considered necessary.

Capitalized Internal-Use Software Costs

We apply ASC 350-40]ntangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Softavato the accounting for costs of internede software
Software development costs are capitalized whelicgpipn development begins, it is probable that pinoject will be completed, and the
software will be used as intended. Costs associtidpreliminary project stage activities, traigirmaintenance and all other post
implementation stage activities are expensed asred. We also capitalize certain costs relatesperific upgrades and enhancements when
is probable the expenditures will result in sigrafit additional functionality. The capitalizatioaligy provides for the capitalization of certain
payroll costs for employees who are directly asgted with developing internal-use software as weltertain external direct costs. Capitalize:
employee costs are limited to the time directlyrgma such projects.
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Internal-use software is amortized on a straighg-asis over 18 to 24 months. We evaluate theiusefs of these assets on an
annual basis and tests for impairments whenevertgwe changes in circumstances occur that coybdatnthe recoverability of these assets.
There were no impairments to capitalized softwaneetbped for internal use during the years ended 30, 2012, 2013 or 2014. We
capitalized $3.7 million, $2.0 million, and $4.7llein of software development costs for the yeardesl June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively including stock-based compensatiosanfs$0.3 million in the year ended June 30, 200 amortized $2.7 million,
$3.1 million, and $2.2 million of capitalized resetaand development costs for the years ended3Wyr2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. In
fiscal 2014, we developed significant additionaidtionality in several of our applications. Thisvrdepment resulted in an increase in
capitalized internallydeveloped software costs in fiscal 2014 as comparédcal 2013. In fiscal 2013, one of our solagdransitioned beyol
the development stage into the maintenance andrmamtal improvements stage, which resulted in laaeitalized internally-developed
software costs in fiscal 2013 as compared to fi2g6ap.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is an asset representing the future ecaoadenefits arising from other assets acquiredbusiness combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognizefe have recorded goodwill in connection with thqusition of BFKMS, Inc. Goodwill is
not amortized, but instead is tested for impairnagri¢ast annually. ASU 2011-0Besting Goodwill for Impairmergrovides an entity the
option to perform a qualitative assessment to deter whether it is more-likely-than-not that thé faalue of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount prior to performing the two-stepairment test. If it is the case that the estihdiddr value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, including goodwill, the two-stepogiwill impairment test is required. Otherwisefagher analysis is required.

If the two-step goodwill impairment test is requirdirst the fair value of the reporting unit isnapared with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the fair value of the regiorg unit is less than its carrying amount, an éadiion of goodwill impairment exists for the
reporting unit and we perform step two of the innpeint test. Under step two, an impairment losedésgnized for any excess of the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’'s goodwill over theglied fair value of the goodwill. The implied faialue of goodwill is determined by
allocating the fair value of the reporting unitainmanner similar to a purchase price allocationtaedesidual fair value after this allocation is
the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodtlwiFair value of the reporting unit is determingsing a discounted cash flow analysis. If the
fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its cargyamount, step two does not need to be performed.

We will perform its annual impairment review of ghwall in our fiscal fourth quarter and when a tregging event occurs between
annual impairment tests. However, given that vderdit have recorded goodwill until its fiscal fduquarter of 2014, no impairment tests w
required to be completed.

Intangible assets are comprised primarily of climttacquisitions and are reported net of accutedlamortization on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Client relationshégstiie straight-line method of amortization oveneacelerated nine year time frame, while
the non-solicitation agreement uses the straigletiinethod of amortization over the three yeardffthe agreement. Amortization expense
associated with our intangible assets was $0,/80$80 during the years ended June 30, 2012, 20d 2@14, respectively. We test intangible
assets for potential impairment when events or gbain circumstances indicate that the carryingevaf such assets may not be recoverable.
There were no such events or changes in circunesatharing the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 2

Income Taxes

We account for federal income taxes under the asgktiability method. Deferred tax assets andiliigds are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differehetaeen the financial statement carrying amouhéxisting assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tdit cearyforwards. Deferred tax assets and lidbgiaire measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearghith those temporary differences are expectdrkteecovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changexirates is recognized in income in the period ithdudes the enactment date.

Deferred tax assets may be reduced by a valuatmmamce to the extent we determine it is morelfikban not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realiZitke valuation of deferred tax assets requiregmht in assessing the likely future tax
consequences of events that have been recogniznent financial statements or tax returns and fupudditability. Our accounting for deferred
tax consequences represents the best estimatesef filture events. Changes in current estimatestadunanticipated events or otherwise,
could have an adverse impact on our financial dmdand results of operations.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowancesomsider both positive and negative evidenceedltd the likelihood of realization
of the deferred tax assets. The weight given tdtipesand negative evidence is commensurate wighetttent to which the
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evidence may be objectively verified. As suchsigenerally difficult for positive evidence regangliprojected future taxable income exclusive
of reversing taxable temporary differences to oigive@bjective negative evidence of recent finanmglorting losses. Cumulative losses in
recent years are significant negative evidenceishdifficult to overcome in determining that awation allowance is not needed against
deferred tax assets.

We recognize the effect of income tax positiong/dgiithose positions are more likely than not ofngesustained. Recognized income
tax positions are measured at the largest amoanisiyreater than 50% likely of being realizeda@dpes in recognition or measurement are
reflected in the period in which the change in jmggt occurs.

Stock-Based Compensation

We maintain a 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2608n") and a 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2®14n”) pursuant to which we
have issued options to purchase shares of our constook and grants of restricted stock awards tpleyees, officers, directors and
consultants. The 2014 Plan serves as the sucdes$a 2008 Plan and permits the granting of ogtimnpurchase common stock and other
equity incentives at the discretion of the comp&asacommittee of our board of directors. We wiidit grant any additional awards under our
2008 Plan, though our 2008 Plan will continue toaga the terms and conditions of all outstandingitycawards granted under the 2008 Plan.

As of June 30, 2014, options to purchase 4,387sha2es of our common stock were outstanding, 1@Ir&@&ricted stock units were
outstanding and 2,581,513 shares of our commoik stece reserved for future grant.

The following table presents data related to staions granted on the dates indicated:

Aug. 21, Sept. 17, July 8, Aug. 26, Mar. 18,
2012 2012 2013 2013 2014
Options granted 893,33: 33,33: 466,66: 50,00( 2,065,54.
Fair value of stocl $4.8¢ $4.8¢ $7.0¢ $7.0¢ $17.0(
Exercise price $4.8¢ $4.8¢ $7.0¢ $7.0¢ $17.0(
Fair value of optior $1.2¢ $1.22 $1.71 $1.71 $7.62

Equity-classified awards are measured at the grant diateaiae of the award and expense is recognizedhfreesssumed forfeitures,
a straight-line basis over the requisite serviagopeor each separately vesting portion of the rawslVe estimate grant date fair value using the
Black-Scholes Option-Pricing Model, or Black-Schmlehich requires the use of certain subjectiveragsions. Below is a table of the key
weighted-average assumptions used in the optiaratiah calculation for options issued on the datdsated. We did not grant stock options
in fiscal 2012.

Aug. 21, Sept. 17, July 8, Aug. 26, Mar. 18,
2012 2012 2013 2013 2014
Valuation assumption:
Weighted average expected dividend y — — — — —
Weighted average expected volatil 30.7% 30.7% 29.5% 29.5% 44.5%
Weighted average expected term (ye 4.C 4.C 4.C 4.C 6.C
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 0.6% 0.6% 0.5% 0.5% 1.94%

We use a dividend yield assumption of zero as we mat paid regular cash dividends on our commocksand presently have no
intention of paying any such cash dividends. Smaeshares were not publicly traded prior to Ma26i4, expected volatility is estimated
based on the average historical volatility of samgntities with publicly traded shares. We caltaitae expected term using company specific
historical data, such as employee option exeraiseemployee post-vesting departure behavior. Sepgraups of employees that have similar
historical exercise behavior are considered seglgrfdr valuation purposes. The risk-free ratetfa expected term of the option is based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve at the date of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense was $0.2 mi#ias, million and $4.9 million for the years endeahd 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively. If factors change and we employ diffie assumptions, stock-based compensation expemgéiffer from what we have recorded
in the past. If there is a difference between gsimptions used in determining stock-based compenssxpense and the actual factors which
become known over time, we may change the inptivfaeised in determining stotlased compensation costs for future grants. THessge:
if any, may adversely impact our results of operaiin the period such changes are made. We etqechtinue to grant stock options in the
future, and to the extent that we do, our actualksbased compensation expense recognized in fparreds will likely increase.
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One significant factor in determining the fair valof our options granted through August 2013, wirging Black-Scholes, is the fair
value of the common stock underlying those stodioap. Prior to March 2014, we were a private conypaith no active public market for ¢
common stock. Therefore, the fair value of the camrstock underlying our stock options was deterhimg our board of directors, which
considered in making its determination of fair valuvariety of factors including contemporaneousopé valuation studies from an
independent and unrelated third-party valuatiom fiNow that we have a public market for our stae&,observe the fair value of our common
stock on the date of grant in accordance with éheg$ of the award.

Based on the closing stock price on June 30, 20$2163, the aggregate intrinsic value of outsitamaptions to purchase shares of
our common stock as of June 30, 2014 was $51.@milbf which $20.9 million related to vested optsoand $30.1 million to unvested
options. The aggregate intrinsic value of outsitagndestricted stock units as of June 30, 2014 $2a2 million, of which all were unvested.

Third-Party Valuation Methodology

In performing its analysis, the valuation firm eggd in discussions with management, analyzed iéataand forecasted financial
statements, and reviewed our corporate documehésyaluation consultant utilized the guidelinedinatl in the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Practice AMaluation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensatiofihe valuation
study was prepared using a combination of four galyeaccepted approaches to determining the faitket value of a business: the discour
cash flows, or DCF, method, the guideline publimpany method, the prior transaction method andrtheket transactions method. The
discounted cash flows method forecasted future ftagils utilizing a terminal value based on our estpéion of long-term growth to arrive at a
valuation. The guideline public company methodzgs a market approach which estimates the fairevaf a company by applying to that
company the market multiples of publicly-traded pamies to arrive at a valuation. The prior trarisadinethod looks to recent arms-length
transactions in a company'’s capital stock to araiva valuation. The market transactions methdidesi a market approach which estimates th
fair value of a company by applying to that comp#rgymarket multiples of publicly-traded and prevabmpanies to arrive at a valuation.

Fiscal 2013

The independent thirgarty valuation as of June 30, 2012 was perfornsétguthe DCF method, the guideline public compareyhod
and the prior transaction method. The valuatiom fionsidered our nature and history, the condaiot outlook of the industry in which we
operate, our financial condition, our current opieress and earning capacity, our relative positidtiin the industry in which we operate, prior
transactions involving our stock, our strategi@diion and management and our goodwill and intdegidlue. The valuation firm took into
account our financial statements for fiscal 200@uigh 2012.

In applying the guideline public company methoa, taluation firm analyzed the prices that investoeswilling to pay for the
publicly-traded common stock of companies thatcamparable to us. The valuation firm then calculattal market value of invested capital
multiples based on each of (i) TTM earnings befoterest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatioh;T{liM earnings before interest and taxes,
(i) TTM net sales and (iv) book value. The valoatfirm applied the average of the public compahiel M net sales multiple to our TTM net
sales. The valuation firm then adjusted the rasyitialue downward by 35% to reflect our smalleeslinited access to capital, historical and
future growth expectations, and differences iniligy, profitability and leverage among the guidelicompanies.

In applying the DCF method, the valuation firm gzald financial projections prepared by our managerfue fiscal 2013 through
2016. The valuation firm calculated our net caskvi to invested capital by taking our debt-freeinedme, as estimated by management,
adding depreciation expenses and subtracting laqtitat expenditures, as estimated by managemesinaremental working capital needs,
which were estimated based on a review of an imgasterage. For the terminal year, the valuatiom fapplied a revenue multiple, calculated
using the guideline public company method. A distoate of 35% was then applied. To determine theodint rate, the valuation firm
reviewed published investment hurdle rates typjaatiuired by institutional investors for companiégsomparable size and risk.

In applying the prior transaction method, the vabrafirm reviewed three armiength transaction in our capital stock. The mesen
transaction occurred on June 28, 2012, two days fwithe date of the valuation, in which we sdidres of Series B preferred stock for
approximately $4.88 per share.

Our value was then allocated among our sharesr@sS& preferred stock, our shares of Series Beprefl stock and our shares of
common stock using the option pricing equity altemamethod, using Black-Scholes. In utilizing Black-Scholes method, our volatility was
estimated at 31% which was based on the averagélitplof the guideline public companies over oyesr, two-year and five-year period. The
assumed time to expiration was three years, whimh lvased on the estimated timing of a potentialdity event. Finally, the valuation firm
applied a marketability discount of 10% to refléet lack of an active market in shares of our comistock, which resulted in a fair market
value of $4.88 per share.

45




Table of Contents

Our board of directors considered this third paajuation and the other factors discussed abodet@rmining that the fair market
value of our common stock was $4.88 on August R122and September 17, 2012.

Fiscal 2014

The independent thirgarty valuation as of May 31, 2013 was performadgithe DCF method, the guideline public companyhoe
and the market transactions method. The valuationdonsidered our nature and history, the condliind outlook of the industry in which we
operate, the book value of our stock and our firdmondition, the earning capacity of our businéiss dividend-paying capacity of our
business, prior transactions involving our stobk, market price of public traded stock of compaeiggage in the same or a similar line of
business and our goodwill and intangible value. \Fdeation firm took into account our financial tetaents for fiscal 2009 through 2012, as
well as interim financial statements for the elemsmmths ended May 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012.

In applying the guideline public company methoe, taluation firm analyzed the prices that investweswilling to pay for the
publicly-traded common stock of companies thatcamparable to us. The valuation firm then calcddttal market value of invested capital
multiples based on TTM earnings before interegetadepreciation and amortization and TTM reventiks valuation firm considered our
smaller size, limited access to capital, historarad future growth expectations, and differencdgindity, profitability and leverage among t
guideline companies before selecting a TTM multthlt was slightly above the average of the TTMenaes multiples for the companies
determined to be most comparable to us.

In applying the DCF method, the valuation firm aald financial projections prepared by our managerue a five year period. The
valuation firm calculated our net cash flows todsted capital by taking our debt-free net incorseestimated by management, adding
depreciation expenses and subtracting both capitsnditures, as estimated by management, andrieatal working capital needs, which
were estimated based on a review of an industrgagee For the terminal year, the valuation firmlaggpa revenue multiple, calculated using
the guideline public company method. A discoun i@t35% was then applied. To determine the distcaia, the valuation firm reviewed
published investment hurdle rates typically recpiiog institutional investors for companies of comgtde size and risk. The 35% discount rate
was equal to the discount rate applied in the D@#yasis conducted as of June 30, 2012.

In applying the market transactions method, theatadn firm reviewed publicly available data regagdtransactions that have
occurred in the industry, as well as prior armgthriransactions in our capital stock. The valuafiom applied a revenue multiple that was
slightly above the median revenue multiple of @hsactions and in-line with the sale of our SelBigseferred stock in June 2012.

Our value was then allocated among our sharesr@sSg preferred stock, our shares of Series Bepredl stock and our shares of
common stock using the option pricing equity altemamethod, using Black-Scholes. In utilizing Black-Scholes method, our volatility was
estimated at 31% which was based on the averagélitglof the guideline public companies over eefiyear period. The assumed time to
expiration was four years, which was based on ¢hienated timing of a potential liquidity event. Blly, the valuation firm applied a
marketability discount to reflect the lack of artiee market in shares of our common stock, whiclted in a fair market value of $6.90 per
share.

Our board of directors considered this third-padjuation and the other factors discussed abodet@rmining that the fair market
value of our common stock was $7.04 on July 8, 2B August 26, 2013.

Reverse Stock Split

On March 5, 2014, we effected a three-for-two regestock split on our Common Stock.
Initial Public Offering

In March 2014, we completed our initial public affey or IPO in which we issued and sold 5,367 shafecommon stock and existi
shareholders sold 2,735 shares of common stockualblac offering price of $17 per share. We did receive any proceeds from the sale of
common stock by the existing shareholders. Weivedenet proceeds of $81.9 million after deductimglerwriting discounts and commissic
of $6.4 million and other offering expenses of $idlion.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary liquidity needs are related to the fimgdof general business requirements, includingkimgr capital requirements,

research and development, and capital expenditdeest June 30, 2014, our principal sources ofitigy were $78.8 million of cash and cash
equivalents.
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In order to grow our business, we intend to inaeeas personnel and related expenses and to n@kifiGant investments in our
platform, data centers and infrastructure generd@e timing and amount of these investments vaithwbased on the rate at which we can adc
new clients and new personnel and the scale oapplication development, data center and othevities. Many of these investments will
occur in advance of our experiencing any direcefiefrom them which could negatively impact ouquidity and cash flows during any
particular period and may make it difficult to deténe if we are effectively allocating our resowscelowever, we expect to fund our
operations, capital expenditures and other investsnarincipally with cash flows from operationsdan the extent that our liquidity needs
exceed our cash from operations, we would lookutocash on hand and available borrowings to satigfge needs.

Our cash flows from investing activities and ousltdlows from financing activities are influencegithe amount of funds held for
clients which varies significantly from quartergoarter. The balance of the funds we hold dependsioclients’ payroll calendar, and
therefore such balance changes from period to gpémiaccordance with the timing with each payrgltle. Funds held for clients are restricted
solely for the repayment of client fund obligations

We believe our current cash and cash equivalemntsash flow from operations will be sufficient teeet our working capital, capital
expenditure and other investment requirementstftarast the next 12 months.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth data regarding cd@lvs for the periods indicated:
Year Ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
Net cash provided by operating activit $8,564 $6,22¢ $7,19¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capitalized internall-developed software cos (3,716) (1,967) (4,349)
Purchases of property and equipm (3,446) (3,987) (6,667)
Payments for acquisitior — — (6,450)
Net change in funds held for clients 35,724 (92,650 (61,356)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 28,562 (98,604, (78,822
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in client funds obligati (35,724, 92,65( 61,35€
Principal payments on lo-term deb: (312) (1,625) (1,563)
Proceeds from IPO, net of issuance ¢ — — 82,03z
Capital contributior — — 1,052
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertilsles38 preferred stoc 27,234 — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir 88 76 —
Payments for redemption of common stock (27,371 (162) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (36,085 90,93¢ 142,871
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $1,041 $(1,437 $71,25¢

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $8ileon, $6.2 million and $7.2 million for the yeaended June 30, 2012, 2013 and
2014, respectively.

The increase in net cash provided by operatingities from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014 was the painity the result of the change of
$2.3 million in working capital partially offset lihe increase in net loss and increases in nonitesk including stock-based compensation
and depreciation and amortization. The declinesincash provided by operating activities from fi@12 to fiscal 2013 was primarily the
result of a decrease of $1.1 million in net incoamewell as a decline of $0.9 million in workingpdal, partially offset by increased
depreciation and amortization.

Investing Activities

Changes in net cash (used in) provided by investatiyities are significantly influenced by the aimo of funds held for clients at the
end of a reporting period. Changes in the amoufurads held for client from period to period withry substantially. Our payroll processing
activities involves the movement of significant fisnfrom the account of an employer to employeesraledtant taxing authorities. During the
year ended June 30, 2014 we processed almost 88 i payrolltransactions. Though we debit a client’s accouiatr fio any disbursement
on its behalf, there is a delay between our paymeamounts due to employees and taxing and odgedatory authorities and when the
incoming funds from the client to cover these antsyrayable actually clear into our operating act@uVe currently have agreements with
nine banks to execute ACH and wire transfers te@stipur client payroll and tax services. We badiee have sufficient capacity under these
ACH arrangements to handle our transactions fofdreseeable future.
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Other investing activities that influence our nasle (used in) provided by investing activities @ue capitalization of internally
developed software costs and purchases of propadyequipment.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities $28.6 million, $(98.6) million and $(78.9) hah, for the years ended June 30,
2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Excluding the net change in funds held for clients, net cash (used in) provided by investing @@ was $(7.2) million,
$(6.0) million and $(17.5) million, for the yeamded June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The decrease in net cash used by investing aetwiti $19.7 from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014 wasnariily due to the timing of receipts
and disbursements of cash and cash equivalentédeiisfy client funds obligations of $31.3 nati partially offset by payments of $6.5
million to acquire certain assets of one of ouelless, increased purchases of property and equipbye$2.7 million and increased
capitalization of internally developed softwaretsdsy $2.4 million.

The increase of $127.2 million in net cash useidwesting activities from fiscal 2012 to fiscal Z0ivas primarily the result of the
timing of receipts and disbursements of cash ast eguivalents held to satisfy client fund obligat of $128.4 million partially offset by a
decrease of $1.7 million in capitalized internalgveloped software costs.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiess $(36.1) million, $90.9 million and $142.9 naili for the years ended June 30,
2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The increase in net cash provided by financingvaigs from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014 was primgitihe result of the $82.0 million in
proceeds received from our IPO, net of issuancescohis was partially offset by the $31.3 milliohange on the net change in funds held for
clients. The decrease in net cash used in finaragtigities from fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2013 wasrpairrily the result of a $128.4 million chang:
the net change in funds held for clients, partiaffget by a net increase of $1.3 million of pripeli payments on long-term debt.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Our principal commitments consist of operating éeabligations and consideration due to one of eselters to complete the purchi
of certain of its assets. The following table sumnes our contractual obligations at June 30, 2014:

Payment Due By Perioc

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3Years 3 -5 Years 5 years
Operating lease obligations $17,35(C $3,35¢ $6,74¢ $5,611 $1,637
Unconditional purchase obligatio 1,224 406 818 — —
Consideration related to acquisition 2,985 2,985 — — —
$21,55¢ $6,744 $7,567 $5,611 $1,637

Each of our two reseller agreements provided tleasike required upon a termination of the agreemeestquire the assets of the
reseller. One of the agreements provided that refithgy may terminate the agreement by electingmotnew the agreement beyond its
original term ending in February 2016 unless rerteWée, but not the reseller, also had the righetminate the agreement at any time
following the completion of an initial public offieg by the Company. We paid this reseller $1.7iamill $2.4 million and $2.5 million for the
full fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectivlg exercised our right to terminate the agreenmeApril 2014 and closed on the purchase
of the reseller’s client base in May 2014 at altptaichase price of $9.4 million.

The second reseller agreement provides that tielaemay terminate the agreement by providing mre@ths’prior notice or upon &
initial public offering by the Company. We amendbid agreement in December of 2013 to providettiatreseller may not give a nine-month
termination notice until after the earlier of (ix snonths following the closing of an initial publoffering by us or (ii) December 31, 2014. In
addition, we, but not the reseller, now have tggatrto terminate the agreement at any time afeedtte that is six months following the
completion of an initial public offering by us.dftermination were to occur, the purchase pridh®fissets would be equal to 3.3 times the ne
revenues of the reseller for the 12 months precgifiie termination effective date. We paid this les&1.3 million, $1.8 million and
$2.1 million for the full fiscal years 2012, 20182014, respectively.

48




Table of Contents
Capital Expenditures

We expect to increase capital spending as we amntimgrow our business and expand and enhanaataicenters and technical
infrastructure. Future capital requirements wilbeied on many factors, including our rate of salesvth. In the event that our sales growth or
other factors do not meet our expectations, we atiayinate or curtail capital projects in order t@tigate the impact on our use of cash. Caj
expenditures were $3.4 million, $4.0 million and&#fillion for the years ended June 30, 2012, 20i2014, respectively, exclusive of
capitalized internally developed software cost$2f7 million, $2.0 million, and $4.3 million for ¢hsame periods, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatfifive or are reasonably likely to have a cuwefuture effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity iteexpenditures or capital resources that
be material to investors.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Blo@ASB) issued ASU 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with Custom@rspic
606) (“ASU 2014-09"). ASU 2014-09 supersedes a migjof existing revenue recognition guidance und& GAAP, and requires companies
to recognize revenue when it transfers goods eiceer to a customer in an amount that reflectctmsideration to which a company expects
to be entitled. Companies may need to apply matgment and estimation techniques or methods whdegnizing revenue, which could
result in additional disclosures to the financiatements. Topic 606 allows for either a “full opective” adoption or a “modified
retrospective” adoption. The Company is currentigleating which adoption method it will use. Eaalyplication is not permitted. The
Company plans on adopting ASU 2014-09 beginning JuR017 and is currently assessing the poteefiatts of these changes to its
consolidated financial statements.

Although we are eligible under the JOBS Act to gie@doption of new or revised financial accountitansgards until they are
applicable to private companies, we have electédonavail ourselves of this exclusion. This dleetoy us is irrevocable.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures adout Market Risk.

We have operations solely in the United Statessmacxposed to market risks in the ordinary coafsrir business. These risks
primarily include interest rate and certain expesas well as risks relating to changes in the gg@m@onomic conditions in the United States.
We have not used, nor do we intend to use, deviemitio mitigate the impact of interest rate or otheposure or for trading or speculative
purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

Funds held for clients are held in interest-beadogounts at financial institutions. As a resulbof investing activities, we are
exposed to changes in interest rates that may maléteaffect our results of operations. In a faflirate environment, a decline in interest rates
would decrease our interest income.
Inflation Risk

We do not believe that inflation has had a matefifdct on our business, financial condition owuitssof operations. Nonetheless, if
our costs were to become subject to significatéiivinary pressures, we may not be able to fulfgeifsuch higher costs through price

increases. Our inability or failure to do so coddm our business, financial condition and resefltsperations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the consolidated financial statés and accompanying notes set
forth on pages F-1 through F-23 of this Annual Repa Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedure

The term “disclosure controls and procedures,”efidd in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under #teh&nge Act refers to controls
and procedures that are designed to ensure tlatiafion required to be disclosed by a companpéreports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegadted, within the time periods specified in 8#C's rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitatioantrols and procedures designed to ensure dichtiaformation is accumulated and
communicated to a company’s management, includéngrincipal executive and principal financial offrs, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Clagécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, hasluated the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures as of Jan2®L4, the end of the period covered by this AhReport on Form 18- Based upon suc
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chi&idancial Officer have concluded that our disclostoatrols and procedures were effectiv
of such date.

Managemen's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repdrtg and Attestation Report of the Registered PubMiccounting Firm

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includeport of management’s assessment regarding ithtsongol over financial
reporting or an attestation report of our registgrablic accounting firm due to a transition perexiablished by rules of the SEC for newly
public companies and our status as an “emergingthroompany” under the JOBS Act.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportmn

There were no changes in our internal control éwamncial reporting during the quarter ended June2®14, which were identified in
connection with management’s evaluation require®Rbles 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) under the Excharggeti®at have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, oureimtal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Controls

Our disclosure controls and procedures and intexmrarol over financial reporting are designed tovirde reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives as specified above. Manaent does not expect, however, that our disatosomtrols and procedures or our internal
control over financial reporting will prevent ortdet all error and fraud. Any control system, naterahow well designed and operated, is
based upon certain assumptions and can providereaspnable, not absolute, assurance that itstolgsavill be met. Further, no evaluation
controls can provide absolute assurance that ressents due to error or fraud will not occur orttldcontrol issues and instances of fraud, if
any, within the Company have been detected.

Iltem 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporge Governance

Information required by Part Ill, Item 10, will liecluded in our Proxy Statement relating to our£2@hnual meeting of stockholders
to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after #ral of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, aimd@porated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by Part Ill, Item 11, will liecluded in our Proxy Statement relating to our£2@hnual meeting of stockholders
to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after &mal of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, aimdt@gporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet

Information required by Part Ill, ltem 12, will liecluded in our Proxy Statement relating to our£@hnual meeting of stockholders
to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after #ral of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, aimd@porated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence.

Information required by Part Ill, Item 13, will liecluded in our Proxy Statement relating to our£2@hnual meeting of stockholders
to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after #ral of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, aimd@porated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information required by Part Ill, Item 14, will liecluded in our Proxy Statement relating to our£@hnual meeting of stockholders
to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after &mal of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, amtgporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@ Documents Filed with Report

(1) Financial Statements.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 201304 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yemded June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemalolec@ible Preferred Stock and Stockholddtguity (Deficit) for

the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yesded June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems F-7
(2) Exhibits.

The information required by this Item is set footihthe exhibit index that follows the signature @ag this Annual Report on Form K-
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Date: August 22, 2014

PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION

By: /s/ Steven R. Beauchar
Steven R. Beauchan
President and Chief Executive Offic
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SIGNATURES AND POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appearswbledseby authorizes and appoints Steven R. Beaytlaoh Peter J. McGrail, and each of
them, with full power of substitution and resuhstian and full power to act without the other, &sdr her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and
agent to act in his or her name, place and steddicaexecute in the name and on behalf of eactopensdividually and in each capacity stated
below, and to file any and all amendments to tmsdal Report on Form 10-K, and to file the samehall exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission, granting unto saadreys-in-fact and agents, and each of
them, full power and authority to do and perforraleand every act and thing, ratifying and confirgnail that said attorneys-in-fact and agent:
or any of them or their or his substitute or substs may lawfully do or cause to be done by vithereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblptine following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date

President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Exeea
/s/ Steven R. Beauchar Officer) and Directo August 22, 201«
Steven R. Beauchar

/sl Peter J. McGra Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige August 22, 2014
Peter J. McGiralil

/s/ Steven |. Sarowit Chairman of the Board of Directors August 22, 2014
Steven |. Sarowil

/sl Jeffrey T. Dieh Director August 22, 2014
Jeffrey T. Dieh

/s/ Mark H. Mishlel Director August 22, 2014
Mark H. Mishler

/s/ Ronald V. Waters, |l Director August 22, 2014
Ronald V. Waters, I
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 201304 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemallec@ible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Eq(igficit) for the years ended
June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2C

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeadsd June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Paylocity Holding Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Paylocity Holding Corporation (the fitgany”) and subsidiary as
of June 30, 2013 and 2014, and the related cordeticstatements of operations, changes in redeernaivertible stock and stockholders’
equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of thangein the three-year period ended June 30, 2Thése consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s managementr i@sponsibility is to express an opinion on thesesolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, orsahasis, evidence supporting the amounts andodiss in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statements presentation. We believedhatudits provide a reasonable basis for ouriopin

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
Paylocity Holding Corporation and subsidiary adwfie 30, 2013 and 2014, and the results of theiratipns and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended June(@i, 2n conformity with U.S. generally accepted@aatting principles.

/s KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
August 22, 2014
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PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Prepaid expenses and otl
Deferred income tax assets, net

Total current assets before funds held for cli
Funds held for clients

Total current assets

Long-term prepaid expens:
Capitalized software, ni
Property and equipment, r
Intangible assets, n
Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stockand Stockholder¢ Equity (Deficit)

Current liabilities:

Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl

Taxes payabl

Consideration related to acquisiti
Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities before client fund obligans
Client fund obligations

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Deferred ren
Deferred income tax liabilities, net

Total liabilities

Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.00Valae, 18,000 authorized as of June 30, 2013 arshaes
authorized as of June 30, 2C
Series A, 6% cumulative dividend, 9,500 sharessidsand outstanding at June 30, 2013 and no st
and outstanding at June 30, 2(
Series B, 8% cumulative dividend, 8,400 shareeidsund outstanding at June 30, 2013 and no slsaesd
and outstanding at June 30, 2(

Stockholder' equity (deficit)

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 66,667 shares apdiap 31,988 shares issued and outstanding at3lyne
2013; and 155,000 shares authorized, 49,564 sissugsd and outstanding at June 30, z

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, no shares améthrissued and outstanding at June 30, 2013 @90 5
authorized, no shares issued and outstanding at3mr201¢

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)

Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferstdck, and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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As of June 30,

2013 2014
$7,594  $78,84¢
740 756
1,875 2,694
602 706
10,811 83,004
355,908 417,261
366,71€  500,26E
— 313
2,614 5,093
8,586 13,125
— 6,32C
— 3,035
$377,91¢  $528,15!
$625 $—
880 2,133
207 5
— 2,985
6,794 10,744
8,506 15,867
355,905 417,261
364,411  433,12¢
938 —
2,317 3,175
269 714
$367,93  $437,01
$9,33¢ $—
27,234 —
32 50
437 125,25t
(27,061 (34,171
(26,592~ $91,13¢
$377,91¢ _ $528,15!
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Revenue:
Recurring fee:

PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Interest income on funds held for clients

Total recurring revenue
Implementation services and other

Total revenue
Cost of revenue
Recurring revenue
Implementation services and other

Total cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenst
Sales and marketir
Research and developme
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating income (los!
Other income (expense)

Income (loss) before income tax

Income tax (benefit) expense

Net income (loss

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhi

Net income (loss) per share attributable to comstookholders

Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average shares used in computing net ia¢tons) per share attributable to common

stockholders
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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For the Years Ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
$51,211  $71,30¢  $100,36:
1,263 1,459 1,582
52,474 72,76 101,94/
2,622 4,526 6,743
55,096 77,294 108,681
22,054 28,865  37,31¢
7,040 10,805  17,77F
20,094 39,666 55,094
26,002 37,626 53,597
12,826 18,69  28,27€
1,788 6,825  10,35F
8,618  12,07¢  21,98C
23234 37,597 60,611
2,768 31 (7,018)
(196) (16) 163
2,572 15  (6,855)
884 (602) 255
$1,68¢ $617  $(7,110
$998  $(2,291  $(9,392
$0.02  $(0.07)  $(0.26)
$0.02  $(0.07)  $(0.26)
43,875 31,98t 36,707
44317 31,986 36,707
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PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemabler@ertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity(Deficit)

Balances at June 30, 201

Stocl-based compensation expel

Stock options exercise

Issuance of Preferred Series B Shi

Redemption of Common Stor

Net income

Balances at June 30, 201

Stocl-based compensation expel

Stock options exercise

Redemption of Common Stor

Net income

Balances at June 30, 201

Initial public offering, net of issuance
costs

Conversion of redeemable converti
preferred stocl

Capital contributior

Vesting of restricted shar

Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balances at June 30, 201

(in thousands)

Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

Total

Stockholders
Preferred— Preferred— Additional

Series A Series B Common Stock Paid-in  Accumulatec Equity

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit (Deficit)
9,500 $9,33¢ — $— 37,53¢ $38 $4,304 $(6,596) $(2,254)
— — — — — — 203 — 203
— — — — 67 — 88 — 88
— — 8,400 27,234 — — — — —
— — — — (5,618) (6) (4,595) (22,770) (27,371)
— — — — — — — 1,688 1,688
9,500 9,339 8,400 27,234 31,98¢€ 32 — (27,678 (27,646)
— — — — — — 523 — 523
— — — — 33 — 76 — 76
— — — — (33) — (162) — (162)
— — — — — — — 617 617
9,500 $9,33¢ 8,400 $27,234 31,98¢€ $32 $437 $(27,061; $(26,592
— — — — 5,367 6 81,921 — 81,927
(9,500) (9,339) (8,400) (27,234) 11,932 12 36,561 — 36,573
— — — — — — 1,052 — 1,052
— — — — 276 — — — —
— — — — — — 5,284 — 5,284
— — — — — — — (7,110) (7,110)
— $— — $— 49,564 $50 $125,25¢ $(34, 171 $91,134

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended June 3C

2012 2013 2014
Cash flows provided by operating activiti
Net income (loss $1,68¢ $617 $(7,110
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Stocl-based compensatic 203 523 4,92¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,624 5,571 6,33€
Deferred income tax (benefit) exper 838 (822) 341
Provision for doubtful accoun 60 60 62
Loss on disposal of equipme — — 98
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 287 (295) (78)
Prepaid expenst (247) (1,061 (1,132
Trade accounts payak 102 138 465
Accrued expenses 1,00¢ 1,497 3,28¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,564 6,22¢ 7,19¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capitalized internally developed software cc (3,716 (1,967, (4,349
Purchases of property and equipm (3,446 (3,987, (6,667
Payments for acquisitic — — (6,450
Net change in funds held for clients 35,72¢ (92,650 (61,356
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 28,56: (98,604 (78,822
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in client funds obligati (35,724 92,65( 61,35¢
Principal payments on lo-term debt (312) (1,625 (1,563
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of isega cost: — — 82,03z
Capital contributior — — 1,052
Proceeds from issuance of Redeemable Convertibferfed Series B Shar 27,23¢ — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 88 76 —
Payments for redemption of Common Shares (27,371 (162) —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (36,085 90,93¢ 142,87
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival 1,041 (1,437, 71,25¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents—Beginning of Year 7,99C 9,031 7,594
Cash and Cash Equivalents—End of Year $9,031 $7,59/ $78,84¢
Supplemental Disclosure of N-Cash Investing and Financing Activiti
Build-out allowance received from landlord $338 $32¢ $1,16:2
Purchase of property and equipment, accrued bytaidt $392 $27 $89¢€
Unpaid initial offering costs — — $75
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informal
Cash paid for income taxes $7 $69 $10€
Cash paid for interest $161 $38E $70

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(all amounts in thousands, except per share data)

(1) Organization and Description of Business

Paylocity Holding Corporation (the “Company”) i€l@ud-based provider of payroll and human capital managesoftware solutior
for medium-sized organizations. Services are pexit a Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) delivery ehadilizing the Company’s cloud-based
platform. Payroll services include collection, régamce and reporting of payroll liabilities to thppropriate federal, state and local authorities.

The Company was formed on November 6, 2013 at winieh Paylocity Corporation became a wholly-owneldssdiary resulting in
the inclusion of Paylocity Corporation in the colidated financial statements of Paylocity Holdingr@oration. All holders of Paylocity
Corporation equity instruments at the time weraéssPaylocity Holding Corporation equity instrungewith identical rights and obligations in
exchange for their Paylocity Corporation equitytinments. Upon the completion of these transactiBaglocity Holding Corporation became
the sole stockholder of Paylocity Corporation.

In March 2014, the Company amended its Certificdteacorporation to execute a reverse three forsteck split on its common
stock. All share and per share amounts in the Goryip audited consolidated financial statementsratds to the financial statement reflect
the impact of this change on the number of shauttsaized, issued, and outstanding and earningshzee.

Initial Public Offering

In March 2014, the Company completed its initiablpeioffering (“IPO”) in which it issued and sold3&7 shares of common stock
and existing shareholders sold 2,735 shares of aonstock at a public offering price of $17 per ghafhe Company did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of common stock by theiaegisthareholders. The Company received net precee$i81,927 after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions of $6,38Y ather offering expenses of $2,925. Upon theintpsf the IPO, all shares of the
Company’s then-outstanding redeemable convertitdéeped stock automatically converted into 11,9B88res of its $0.001 par value commor
stock.

In connection with the IPO, in March 2014, the Campamended its Certificate of Incorporation ta@ase the number of authorized
common stock to 155,000 and reduce the numberthbemed preferred stock to 5,000.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation, Consolidation, and Use oftigmtes

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeinise Company have been prepared pursuant taitbe and regulations of the
United States Securities and Exchange Commisdien“*@EC”).

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acamgprinciples (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabiities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constditiéinancial statements and the reported amoudnts/enues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those ssttes. Significant items subject to such estimatesassumptions include the allowance for
doubtful accounts, software developed for intetsa, valuation and useful lives of long-lived assédéfinite-lived intangibles, goodwill, stock-
based compensation, valuation of net deferred iectam assets and the best estimate of selling foiaevenue recognition purposes. Future
events and their effects cannot be predicted véttamty; accordingly, accounting estimates regthieeexercise of judgment. Accounting
estimates used in the preparation of these cordetidinancial statements change as new events,@cmore experience is acquired, as
additional information is obtained and as the ofiegeenvironment changes.

The consolidated financial statements reflect tharfcial position and operating results of Paylotfblding Corporation and include
its wholly-owned subsidiary Paylocity Corporatidntercompany accounts and transactions have beamated in consolidation.

(b) Concentrations of Risk

The Company regularly maintains cash balancestt@ed Federal Depository Insurance CorporatioitdirNo individual client
represents 10% or more of total revenues. Forealbfds presented, 100% of total revenues were gtkeby clients in the United States.
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(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith a maturity of three months or less when pasgt to be cash equivalents.
(d) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoicedusmtand do not bear interest. Amounts collectettanfe accounts receivable are
included in net cash provided by operating ac#giiin the statements of cash flows. The Companytaias an allowance for doubtful accot
reflecting estimated potential losses in its act®uaceivable portfolio. In establishing the regdiallowance, management considers historice
losses adjusted to take into account current madditions and our clients’ financial conditiotise amount of receivables in dispute, the
current receivables aging and current payment pasttd he Company reviews its allowance for doukdftdounts quarterly. Past due balances
over 60 days and over a specified amount are redendividually for collectability. All other balaxes are reviewed on a pooled basis.
Account balances are charged off against the atioeafter all commercially reasonable means okctithn have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote. Then@any does not have any off-balance-sheet crefdsxe related to its clients.

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts wasfollows:

For the Years Ended June 3C

2012 2013 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year $8C $11¢ $11¢
Charged to expens 60 60 62
Write-offs (26) (56) (54)
Balance at the end of the year $114 $11¢ $12¢

(e) Prepaid expenses and other assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets coheffice space security deposits, deposits withdegs, prepaid licensing fees,
supplies, and time clocks available for sale osdea

(f) Property and Equipment and Long-Lived Assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depi@tian property and equipment is calculated orstngight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generalBetim seven years for most classes of assetseotlm/term of the related lease for leasehold
improvements.

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipraeatieviewed for impairment whenever events or gharin circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not bavezable. If circumstances require a long-liveceiss asset group be tested for possible
impairment, the Company first compares the undistaiicash flows expected to be generated by that as asset group to its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of the long-livedetsor asset group is not recoverable on an uratided cash flow basis, an impairment is
recognized to the extent that the carrying amoxogeds its fair value. Fair value is determineduigh various valuation techniques including
discounted cash flow models, quoted market valndsfaird-party independent appraisals, as consitleeeessary.

(9) Internal-Use Software

The Company applies ASC 350-46tangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Softevato the accounting for costs of internal-
use software. Software development costs are tiapifavhen application development begins, it shable that the project will be completed,
and the software will be used as intended. Costscéted with preliminary project stage activitigajning, maintenance and all other post
implementation stage activities are expensed asred. The Company also capitalizes certain cettdead to specific upgrades and
enhancements when it is probable the expendituteseault in significant additional functionality'he capitalization policy provides for the
capitalization of certain payroll costs for emplegavho are directly associated with developingrivgkeuse software as well as certain externa
direct costs. Capitalized employee costs are liibethe time directly spent on such projects.

Capitalized internal-use software costs are anadton a straight-line basis over the estimatedulieés, generally 18 to 24 months,

depending on the expected life of the applicatiomamcement. Management evaluates the useful libese assets on an annual basis and
tests for impairment whenever events or changesBéomstances occur that could impact the recovi@sabf these assets.
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(h) Goodwill and other intangible assets, net of accuniated amortization

Goodwill is an asset representing the future ecaoodenefits arising from other assets acquiredbusiness combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognizes described in Note 5, the Company has recordedwill in connection with the
acquisition of BFKMS, Inc. Goodwill is not amortizebut instead is tested for impairment at leasuafly. ASU 2011-08Testing Goodwill fc
Impairmentprovides an entity the option to perform a quairmbassessment to determine whether it is moréylitean-not that the fair value |
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amourdro performing the twatep impairment test. If it is the case that thtingated fair value of
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount]uding goodwill, the two-step goodwill impairmeest is required. Otherwise no further
analysis is required.

If the two-step goodwill impairment test is requiydirst the fair value of the reporting unit isapared with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the fair value of the repimrg unit is less than its carrying amount, an éadiion of goodwill impairment exists for the
reporting unit and the Company must perform stepdfthe impairment test. Under step two, an immpant loss is recognized for any excess
of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’'s gadtiover the implied fair value of the goodwillThe implied fair value of goodwill is
determined by allocating the fair value of the mtipg unit in a manner similar to a purchase pettecation and the residual fair value after
allocation is the implied fair value of the repodiunit goodwill. Fair value of the reporting uisitdetermined using a discounted cash flow
analysis. If the fair value of the reporting uexiceeds its carrying amount, step two does not teebd performed.

The Company will perform its annual impairment ewviof goodwill in its fiscal fourth quarter and wha triggering event occurs
between annual impairment tests. However, givahttie Company did not have recorded goodwill utgtifiscal fourth quarter of 2014, no
impairment tests were required to be completed.

Intangible assets are comprised primarily of cliesttacquisitions and are reported net of accutedlamortization on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Client relationshsgstioe straight-line method of amortization ovenacelerated nine year time frame, while
the non-solicitation agreement uses the straiglet+inethod of amortization over the three yeardffthe agreement. The Company tests
intangible assets for potential impairment wheméver changes in circumstances indicate thatdiyiag value of such assets may not be
recoverable.

(i) Deferred Rent

The Company has operating lease agreements foffite space, which contain provisions for futueatrincreases, periods of rent
abatement and build-out allowances. The Compargrdeanonthly rent expense for each lease equhkttotal payments due over the lease
term, divided by the number of months of the leasm. Build-out allowances are recorded as paieadehold improvements and the incentive
is amortized over the lease term against depreaiaiihe difference between recorded rent experndé¢henamount paid is reflected as
“Deferred Rent” in the accompanying balance sheets.

() Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lial@htiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit cawrgiuls. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aresmesal using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled.

The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilitfess change in tax rate is recognized in incomdégeriod that includes the enactment
date. Accordingly, the impact of the American TaygraRelief Act of 2012, which was enacted on Jan@a013, on deferred tax assets and
liabilities and current taxes for the last six menof the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was néped in the year ended June 30, 2013.
Research and development tax credits are recogusiagd the flow-through method in the year the itradses.

Valuation allowances are provided when necessamgdoce deferred tax assets to the amount motg tiken not to be realized.
Significant management judgment is required in mheiténg the period in which the reversal of a véila allowance should occur. The
Company is required to consider all available ew@#e both positive and negative, such as histolesals of income and future forecasts of
taxable income among other items, in determiningtiver a full or partial release of its valuatiolvaance is required. The Company is also
required to schedule future taxable income in ataoce with accounting standards that address intaxes to assess the appropriateness of
valuation allowance, which further requires thereise of significant management judgment.
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The Company recognizes the effect of income takipas only if those positions are more likely thaot of being sustained.
Recognized income tax positions are measured datgest amount that is greater than 50% likelpaihg realized. Changes in recognition or
measurement are reflected in the period in whiehctiange in judgment occurs. The Company recotdeeist and penalties as an element of
income tax expense.

(k) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance wiinEial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accougitstandards
Cadification (ASC) 605-25Revenue Recognition—Multiple Element Arrangemefiteounting Standards Update No. 2009{d8tiple-
Deliverable Revenue Arrangeme(* ASU 2009-13), and Staff Accounting Bulletin 10Revenue RecognitiarRevenue is recognized when
there is persuasive evidence that an arrangemests edelivery has occurred, the fee is fixed dedainable and collection of the revenue is
probable.

The Company derives its revenue predominantly frecurring fees and non-recurring service fees. Rexufees are collected under
agreements for payroll, timekeeping, HR-relatedidtbased computing services and monthly time cteokals, all of which are generally
cancellable by the client on 60 days’ notice osl@$on-recurring service fees consist mainly oflanpentation and custom reporting services.
Such fees are billed to clients and revenue isrdesmbupon completion of the service. The Compaagi®ements do not include general rights
of return and do not provide clients with the rigihtake possession of the software supportingéngices being provided. As such, the
agreements are accounted for as service contracts.

Interest income collected on funds held for cligatsecognized in recurring revenues when earnédeasollection, holding and
remittance of these funds are critical componeffgaviding these services.

Most multiple-element arrangements include a singptementation services phase which involves estaibly the client within and
loading data into the Company’s cloud-based apiitina. Such activities are performed by eitherGoenpany or a third party vendor. Major
recurring fees included in multiple-element arrangats include:

- Payroll processing and related services, inclugiagroll reporting and tax filing services deliveraa a weekly, biweekly, semi-
monthly, or monthly basis depending upon the pafretuency of the client and on an annual basésdlient selects W-2
preparation and processing services,

- Time and attendance reporting services, includimg tlock rentals, delivered on a monthly basis, an

«  Cloud-based HR software solutions, including emetgdministration and benefits enroliment and athtnation, delivered on a
monthly basis.

For each agreement, the Company evaluates whéthardividual deliverables qualify as separateuaftaccounting. If one or more
of the deliverables does not have standalone vgloe delivery, which is typical of the payroll ahdman capital management (“HCM”)
services our customers contract for, the deliveratiiat do not have standalone value are generaitpined and treated as a single unit of
accounting by frequency of occurrence for the pobdategory involved such as biweekly payroll omindy timekeeping services. Revenues
for arrangements treated as a single unit of adoayare generally recognized within the same mdindi the services are rendered given that
the agreements are cancellable with 60 days’ srietice.

In determining whether implementation services lsamccounted for separately from recurring reverthesCompany considers the
nature of the implementation services and the aliity of the implementation services from othendors. The Company was able to esta
standalone value for implementation activities blase the activity of third-party vendors that penficthese services and accounts for such
implementation services separate from the recunéngnues.

If the recurring services have standalone valuagsivery, the Company accounts for each sepgratel revenues are recognize:
services are delivered with allocation of consitlerabased on the relative selling price methodstablished in ASU 2009-13. That method
requires the selling price of each element in atiplaldeliverable arrangement to be based on, seceleding order: (i) vendor specific objective
evidence of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) third-partwilence of fair value (“TPE”") or (iii) managemenbsst estimate of the selling price
(“BESP").

The Company is not able to establish VSOE becdwesdéliverables are sold across an insufficierdlyow range of prices on a stand:
alone basis and is also not able to establish TE&use no third-party offerings are reasonably evatge to the Company’s offerings. The
Company thus established its BESP by service offerequiring the use of significant estimates jadgment. The Company considers
numerous factors, including the nature of the detibles themselves; the geography of the salepacidg and discounting practices utilized
by the Company’s sales force. Arrangement consiiderés allocated to each deliverable based oretti@blished BESP and subject to the
limitation that because the arrangements are cabteith 60 days’ or
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less notice, recurring revenue is not allocateahip deliverable until the consideration has beenezh typically with each payroll cycle or
monthly, depending on the service.

Revenues generated from sales through partneitdiping partner services are recognized in accocgawith the appropriate
accounting guidance of Accounting Standards Caatifim 605-45Principal Agent ConsiderationsThe Company reports revenue generated
through partners or utilizing partner serviceshatgross amount billed to clients when (i) the Camypis the primary obligor, (ii) the Company
has latitude to establish the price charged andt{g Company bears the credit risk in the tratisac

Sales taxes collected from clients and remittegbteernmental authorities where applicable are attealfor on a net basis and
therefore are excluded from revenues in the statswd operations.

() Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists primarily of the coseetfirring revenues and implementation serviceshvhie expensed when incurred.
Cost of revenues for recurring revenues consigtsapily of costs to provide recurring services angport to our clients, and includes
amortization of capitalized software. Cost of ravesn for implementation services and other conpidtsarily of costs to provide
implementation services and costs related to sdilpayroll-related forms and time clocks.

(m) Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsingicosts amounted to $32, $27 and $24 for thesy@aled June 30, 2012, 2013
and 2014, respectively.

(n) Equity Incentive Plan

The Company recognizes all employee stock-basegeonsation as a cost in the financial statementsitf=glassified awards are
measured at the grant date fair value of the awaddexpense is recognized, net of assumed forsiton a straightne basis over the requis
service period for each separately vesting pofaihe award. The Company estimates grant dateéhiile using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model and periodically updates the assufodditure rates for actual experience over thesting terms.

Excess tax benefits of awards that are recognizedyity related to stock option exercises arectdld as financing cash inflows. The
total excess income tax benefits recognized farksbased compensation arrangements was $206 and i$6& fgears ended June 30, 2012
2013, respectively. There were no excess incombeaefits recognized for stock-based compensati@mangements for the year ended June
30, 2014.

(0) Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising fromiohs, assessments, litigation, fines, and penadtigsother sources are recorded wh
is probable that a liability has been incurred eiredamount can be reasonably estimated. Legal twstered in connection with loss
contingencies are expensed as incurred.

(p) Segment Information

The Company’s chief operating decision maker resiéive financial results of the Company in total wiegaluating financial
performance and for purposes of allocating resaurthe Company has thus determined that it opeiragesingle cloud-based software
solution reporting segment.

(q) Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Blo@ASB) issued ASU 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with Custom@rspic
606) (“ASU 2014-09"). ASU 2014-09 supersedes a migjof existing revenue recognition guidance und& GAAP, and requires companies
to recognize revenue when it transfers goods eiceey to a customer in an amount that reflectctmsideration to which a company expects
to be entitled. Companies may need to apply maigment and estimation techniques or methods wédegnizing revenue, which could
result in additional disclosures to the financiatements. Topic 606 allows for either a “full opective” adoption or a “modified
retrospective” adoption. The Company is currentigleating which adoption method it will use. Eaalyplication is not permitted. The
Company plans on adopting ASU 2014-09 beginning JuR017 and is currently assessing the poteefiatts of these changes to its
consolidated financial statements.
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From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdassaued by the FASB or other standard settingdsaithiat are adopted by the
Company as of the specified effective date. Unbtkerwise discussed, the Company believes thatrthact of recently issued standards that
are not yet effective will not have a material irapan the Company’s consolidated financial statasiapon adoption.

(3) Funds Held for Clients and Client Fund Obligatdbns

The Company obtains funds from clients in advarfqggedorming payroll and payroll tax filing servie®n behalf of those clients.
Funds held for clients represent assets that @@ sdely for the purposes of satisfying the ollayes to remit funds relating to payroll and
payroll tax filling services. Funds held for clisrgre held in demand deposit and money market atsatimajor financial institutions. The
Company has classified funds held for clients asreent asset since these funds are held solepéopurposes of satisfying the client fund
obligations.

Client fund obligations represent the Company’stianual obligations to remit funds to satisfy ol payroll and tax payment
obligations and are recorded in the accompanyitenba sheets at the time that the Company obtamdsffrom clients. The client fund
obligations represent liabilities that will be rébavithin one year of the balance sheet date.

(4) Fair Value Measures

The Company applies the fair value measurementeatbsure provisions of ASC 82Bair Value Measurements and Disclosures
and ASU 2011-04kair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IF. Fair value is defined as the price that woulddoived to sell an asset or paid to transfertdlitiain an
orderly transaction between market participants@imeasurement date. A thiegel fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputsed to measul
fair value. The hierarchy requires entities to maxe the use of observable inputs and minimizeugeeof unobservable inputs. The three le
of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows

«  Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for ideadtizssets and liabilities.

- Level 2—Quoted prices in active markets for simiélasets and liabilities, or other inputs that doseovable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for subettially the full term of the financial instrument.

«  Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supportedttdy br no market activity and that are significémthe fair value of the
assets and liabilities. This includes certain pganodels, discounted cash flow methodologies anifas techniques that use
significant unobservable inputs.

Substantially all of the Company’s assets thataeasured at fair value on a recurring basis aresaned using Level 1 inputs. The
Company considers the recorded value of its firdradgsets and liabilities, which consist primaafycash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable, to approximatéaih value of the respective assets and liagditit June 30, 2013 and 2014 based upon th
short-term nature of the assets and liabilities.

(5) Business Combinations

On May 23, 2014, the Company closed on the acunsitf certain assets sufficient to sell the Conymproducts in the Southern
California marketplace of one of its resellers digsxl in Note 16, BFKMS Inc., as part of the Comygariong term strategy of simplifying its
sales channels. The total consideration, all tpdid in cash, was $9,435 of which $6,450 has ba@hgs of June 30, 2014. Of the remaining
amount, $2,385 was paid in July 2014 with two farthayments due in November 2014 and February 80lifon settlement of any
indemnification related issues, totaling $600. T¢llwing table summarizes the provisional fairwelof the assets acquired at the date of
acquisition:

At May 23, 2014

Intangible asset $6,40C
Goodwill 3,035
Total purchase pric $9,43¢
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The Company recorded the acquisition using theiaitiqun method of accounting and recognized assetiseir fair value as of the
date of acquisition. The $6,400 of amortizablengihle assets consists of $6,180 in client relatigws and $220 in a non-solicitation
agreement. The fair value of the client relatiopsiias been estimated using the excess earningsdnatform of the income approach, and
cash flow projections. The non-solicitation agreati@s been estimated using an avoided loss ofriaaoethod, which is a form of the
income approach. Goodwill will be amortized overegiod of 15 years for income tax purposes. ©ie purchase price and allocation of the
purchase price to assets acquired are provisi@malipg conclusion of the indemnification period aadeipt of the final valuation report fror
third party valuation expert.

The balance of the acquired intangibles, net ofréiradion, is stated separately on the consolidbtddnce sheet. Direct costs related
to the acquisition were recorded as general andrastnative expense as incurred.

(6) Software Developed for Internal Use

Capitalized software and accumulated amortizatierevas follows:

Year ended June 30

2013 2014
Internally developed softwal $15,18¢ $19,86:
Accumulated amortizatio (12,575 (14,770
Capitalized software, n $2,614 $5,09:

There were no impairments to software developedhternal use in any of the periods covered ingHegancial statements.
Amortization of capitalized internal-use softwamsts amounted to $2,727, $3,067 and $2,195 foyehes ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and
2014, respectively and is included in Cost of Ressn—Recurring Revenues.

(7) Property and Equipment
The major classes of property and equipment afellasvs as of June 30:

Year ended June 30

2013 2014

Office equipment $1,35C $1,44¢
Computer equipmet 4,665 7,726
Furniture and fixture 1,433 2,317
Automobiles 36 —
Software 3,791 4,963
Leasehold improvemen 3,917 6,059
Time clocks rented by clients 1,649 2,360

16,841 24,874
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (8,255) (11,749
Property and equipment, net $8,58¢€ $13,12¢

There were no impairments to property and equipnmeany of the periods covered in these finandetesnents. Depreciation
expense amounted to $1,897, $2,504 and $4,06thdarears ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 ctasghe

(8) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Gooduwill represents the excess of cost over théamgfible and identifiable intangible assets ofuaieg businesses. Goodwill amot
are not amortized, but rather tested for impairna¢h¢ast annually. Identifiable intangible assetguired in business combinations are
recorded based on fair value at the date of adouisaind amortized over their estimated usefuldiv€ee Note 5 for further information
regarding the acquisition completed in 2014.

The Company had $0 and $3,035 of goodwill recomtedf June 30, 2013 and 2014 respectively.
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The Company’s amortizable intangible assets, beforertization expense, have estimated useful kge®llows:

Weighted
Average
As of June Useful
30, 2014 Life
Client relationships $6,18C 9 years
Nor-solicitation agreement 220 3 years
Total 6,400
Accumulated amortization (80)
Intangible assets, net $6,32C

There was no amortization expense for acquirechgiltde assets for the years ended June 30, 2012Gk8 Amortization expense
for acquired intangible assets was $80 for the gaded June 30, 2014. Future amortization expensequired intangible is as follows, as of
June 30, 2014:

Year ending June 30:

2015 $760
2016 760
2017 752
2018 687
2019 687
Thereafter 2,674

Total $6,320

(9) Accrued Expenses
The components of accrued expenses are as follows:

Year ended June 30

2013 2014
Accrued payroll and personnel costs $5,54¢ $8,78:
Reseller fee 25¢ 6
Current portion of deferred re 23C 577
Other 75€ 1,38(
Total Accrued Expenses $6,79¢  $10,74-

(10) Leases

The Company leases office space in lllinois, Catifa, Florida and New York under non-cancelablerafieg leases expiring on
various dates from August 2014 through July 202 [Bases provide for increasing annual base amt®blige the Company to fund
proportionate share of operating expenses andrtain cases, real estate taxes.

In July 2013, the Company leased sales office sppalew York, New York, commencing in the firstds quarter of 2014. The
Company extended this lease in the fourth fiscaligu of 2014 through June 2015.

In June 2014, the Company leased approximately06€Qare feet of additional office space at itdiqearters in Arlington Heights,
lllinois commencing in the third fiscal quarter215 through July 2022. The lease calls for a pbasenstruction build-out with leasehold
improvements to be amortized over the life of #esk. Upon the completion of the project, the Camppaceives a seven month rent holiday.

The Company leases various types of office andymtiah related equipment under non-cancellableaipey leases expiring on
various dates from June 2015 through May 2019.

Minimum rent payments under operating leases amgrézed on a straight-line basis over the terrmeflease including any periods
of free rent. Rental expense for operating leasekjding amortization of leasehold improvementasw1,519, $2,347 and $3,035 for the y
ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-canceltgigeating leases (with initial or remaining letesgns in excess of one year) as
of June 30, 2013 are:

Year ending June 30:;

2015 $3,352
2016 3.549
2017 3,200
2018 3,117
2019 2,494
Later years, through 2023 1,637

Total minimum lease payments $17,35(C

(11) Line of Credit and Long-Term Debt

The Company maintained a line of credit agreeméifit asbank. Under this agreement, the Company heess of up to $2,500 of
which $166 was earmarked for a letter of credierdest was payable monthly at the bank’s basg3a26% at June 30, 2013) plus 1.50%, with
a floor of 5.50%. A commitment fee on the averagidydundisbursed amount was assessed quarterlyade af 0.375% per anum. The line of
credit was collateralized by all of the Companyssets and a personal guarantee of a Company stdeklamd was cross-collateralized to the
Company’s note payable—bank (see below). The lireaglit was due to expire on December 31, 2018itlwas increased to $3,500 and
extended until December 31, 2015. The Company texted the line of credit on March 31, 2014. Theezeano outstanding borrowings under
this line of credit as of June 30, 2013.

Long-term debt at June 30, 2013 and 2014 consistdk following:

Year ended June 30

2013 2014
Note payabl—bank $1,562 —
Note payabl—related parties — —
Total long-term debt 1,563 —
Less current installments 625 —
Long-term debt, excluding current installments $938 —

The note payable—bank agreement called for paynudritéerest payable monthly at 6.50% with montbifincipal payments in the
amount of $52 commencing January 31, 2012 througgumty. The note was collateralized by substalytiall of the Company assets and a
personal guarantee of a Company stockholder. Tteewas crossollateralized to the line of credit. The note wgabject to certain prepayme
penalties, as defined in the agreement. The Compgraid this note on March 31, 2014 as part dhisnded use of IPO proceeds, and no
prepayment penalties were assessed in accordatitéheiterms of the agreement. Interest experiatedeto this agreement was $175, $123
and $67 for the three years ended June 30, 2013, &td 2014, respectfully.

In accordance with the terms of the line of creditl note payable—bank agreements, the Companyagase&d to comply with
certain financial and non-financial covenants. Tmenpany was in compliance with all covenants ferytbar ended June 30, 2013.

The notes payable—related parties bore intereés0806. Principal and interest were paid in fulMarch of 2013. The notes were

unsecured and were subordinated to the line oftcaad note payable—bank. Interest expense on thetes was $87 and $69 for the years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2013, respectively.
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(12) Income Taxes
(a) Income Taxes

Income tax (benefit) expense for the years endad 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 consists of the follgwin

Year ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
Current taxe:
U.S. federa $12 $126 $(125)
State and loce 34 94 39
Deferred taxes
U.S. federa 738 (516) 160
State and local 100 (306) 181
Total income tax (benefit) expense $884 $(602) $255

(b) Tax Rate Reconciliation

Income tax (benefit) expense differed from the am®@omputed by applying the U.S. federal incomedge of 34% to pretax
income from continuing operations as a result efftilowing:

Year ended June 30

2012 2013 2014

Income tax provision at statutory federal rate $875 $6  $(2,331
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting fr

Research and development credit, net of federahirectax benefi (A73) (650) (189)

Non-deductible expenst 25 53 284

Change in valuation allowan: — — 2,878

State and local income taxes, net of federal inctaméenefit 157 (11) (387)

$884 $(602) $255

(c) Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities at
June 30, 2013 and 2014 are presented below.

Year ended June 30,

2013 2014
Deferred tax asset
Deferred ren $43¢ $56¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun 46 48
Accrued expense 582 761
Stocl-based compensatic 33: 2,14¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 35¢ 1,641
Research and development cre 832 1,11¢
AMT Credits 13¢ 11
Intangible assets — 5
Total deferred tax assets 2,72¢ 6,30(C
Valuation allowance — (2,878
Net deferred tax assets 2,72¢ 3,422
Deferred tax liabilities
Research and development cc (1,024 (1,950
Prepaid expenst (66) (74)
Depreciation (1,306 (1,406
Total deferred liabilities (2,396 (3,430
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $33: $(8)
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sseanagement considers whether it is more litedy not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized thinaihg generation of future taxable income. Thendte realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxablenmecduring the periods in which those temporarfedéhces become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal ofrddftax liabilities (including the impact of avatile carryback and carryforward periods),
projected future taxable income and tax-planningtsgies in making this assessment. Taxable in¢toss) for the years ended June 30, 2012
2013 and 2014 was approximately $842, $1,941 aB@%$7), respectively, prior to utilization or edtabment of net operating loss
carryforwards. Based upon the same three yeargpretax book income, the Company is in a threm-gamulative loss position. As a result
of this and other assessments in the year ended3yr?2014, management concluded that a full vialnalowance is required for all deferred
tax assets and liabilities except for deferredighilities associated with indefinite-lived intaibte assets.

At June 30, 2014, the Company has net operatirggdagyforwards for Federal income tax purposesppfroximately $3,967 which
are available to offset future Federal taxable mepif any, through 2034, excluding excess tax fisrnfeom stock option exercises of
approximately $331 which will be credited to adulital paid-in capital when realized. The Company &aiss gross federal and state research
and development tax credit carryforwards of apprmtely $1,116 which expire between 2017 and 2a84dHition, the Company has
alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of eppmately $11, which are available to reduce fatbederal regular income taxes, if any,
over an indefinite period.

The Company had no unrecognized tax benefits darad 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The Company files income tax returns with the Whifates federal government and various statedjatisns. Certain tax years
remain open for federal and state tax reportiniggictions in which the Company does business dueet operating loss carryforwards and ta
credits unutilized from such years or utilized ipexiod remaining open for audit under normal séatd limitations relating to income tax
liabilities. The Company’s tax years ended June2B08 to June 30, 2014 remain open for federalgsap. The Company’s tax returns filed in
states in which it is required to do so remain ofgera range of tax years including those ende@ A 2008 to June 30, 2014 depending upo
the jurisdiction and the applicable statute of tations.

(13) Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to one votespare and to receive dividends. The holders havareemptive or other
subscription rights and there are no redemptiosirkding fund provisions with respect to such sha@snmon stock was subordinate to the
redeemable convertible preferred stock with resfmedividend rights and rights upon liquidationnding up and dissolution of the Company.
(14) Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

Prior to its IPO, the Company had two series ofdeedable Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A ane$B.

Upon the closing of the IPO, the Series A and SdBi®edeemable Convertible Preferred Stock autcalbticonverted into 11,933
shares of the Company’s $0.001 par value commarksto

(15) Benefit Plans
(a) Equity Incentive Plan

The Company maintains a 2008 Equity Incentive Rlaa “2008 Plan”) and a 2014 Equity Incentive Ridre ‘2014 Plan”pursuant ti
which the Company has reserved 7,071 shares oditenon stock for issuance to its employees, direc@nd non-employee third parties. The
2014 Plan serves as the successor to the 200&upthpermits the granting of options to purchasemomstock and other equity incentives at
the discretion the compensation committee of the@my’s board of directors. No new awards will §guied under the 2008 Plan as of the
effective date of the 2014 Plan. Outstanding awardier the 2008 Plan continue to be subject ttetimes and conditions of the 2008 Plan.

Under the 2008 and 2014 Plans, the exercise pfieaah option is not less than the fair value share of common stock on the grant
date. As of June 30, 2014, the Company had 2,58%Fsfallocated to the 2014 Plan, but not yet issuadbject to outstanding options or
awards. Generally, the Company issues previoushsued shares for the exercise of stock optiomwgker, previously acquired shares may
be reissued to satisfy future issuances. The mptigpically vest ratably over a three or four yeariod and expire 10 years from the grant
date. Compensation expense for the fair valud@bptions at their grant date is recognized rgtabér the vesting schedule.
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Stock-based compensation expense related to spiiine and the vesting of restricted stock awatBSAs”) and restricted stock
units (“RSUs") is included in the following linegitns in the accompanying audited consolidated stattsof operations:

Year ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
Cost of revenue - recurring $— $— $49¢
Cost of revenu~ nor-recurring — — 424
Sales and marketir — — 76E
Research and developmt — 61t
General and administrative 20: 528 2,62¢
Total stock-based compensation $20: $52¢ $4,92¢

In addition, the Company capitalized $325 of stooknpensation costs in its internal use softwat@ényear ended June 30, 2014. Nc
such amounts were capitalized in internal use sofin years ended June 30, 2012 and 2013.

The Company values stock options using the Bladiefes option-pricing model, which requires the inplusubjective assumptions,
including the risk-free rate, expected life, expelcstock price volatility and dividend yield. Thsek-free interest rate assumption is based upc
observed interest rates for U.S. Treasury secsiitiasistent with the expected term of the Comaegiployee stock options. The expected
life represents the period of time the stock ofgtiare expected to be outstanding and is basedeairtiplified method. Under the simplified
method, the expected life of an option is presutodie the mid-point between the vesting date aacktid of the contractual term. The
Company utilizes the simplified method due to #heklof sufficient historical exercise data to pde/a reasonable basis upon which to
otherwise estimate the expected life of the stqatioas. The Company has a limited history of tngdas a public company. Therefore, the
expected volatility is based on historical vol&it for publicly traded stock of comparable conipamver the estimated expected life of the
stock options. The Company assumed no dividerd piecause it does not expect to pay dividendseémear future, which is consistent with
the Company’s history of not paying dividends.

The following table summarizes the assumptions fisedstimating the fair value of stock optionsrgeal for the years ended June

Year ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
Valuation assumption:
Expected dividend yiel N/A—no grant 0% 0%
Expected volatility N/A—no grant 30.7%  29.5%- 44.5%
Expected term (year: N/A—no grant 4.C 4.0-6.C
Risk-free interest rat N/A—no grant 0.61%  0.52%- 1.94%

Stock option activity during the periods indicateds follows:

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Weighted average
Shares average remaining Aggregate
Available for Number of exercise contractual intrinsic
Grant shares price term value
Balance at June 30, 2013 812 1,859 $3.25 8.22 $7,02¢
Additional shares authorized, r 4,406 —
RSU’s grantec (108) —
Options grante: (2,582) 2,582 15.01 9.58
Options forfeitec 53 (53) 17.00 —
Exercised — — — —
Balance at June 30, 2014 2,581 4,388 $10.0C 8.58 $51,017
Options exercisable at June 30, 2014 1,083 $2.29 6.65 $20,947
Options vested and expected to vest at June 3@, 201 3,853 $10.17 8.53 $44,16:
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The weighted average grant date fair value of agtgranted during the years ended June 30, 2013Gintiwas $1.22 and $6.39,
respectively. There were no options granted irafig012. The total intrinsic value of options esieed during the years ended June 30, 2012
and 2013 was $241 and $87, respectively. There neoptions exercised in the year ended June(3@..2

The Company may also grant RSAs and RSUs undé?limewith terms determined at the discretion ofGloenpensation Committee
of the Company’s Board of Directors. Prior to tR&®|, the Company had 269 RSAs outstanding to ceztaployees. The RSAs vested and
were issued as common shares as a result of ik&aston of the vesting criteria upon the commletof the IPO in March 2014 at which time
the Company recorded compensation expense in thargrof $351 which is included in the compensaégpense recognition table above.
Concurrent with the IPO in March 2014, the Compgranted 108 RSUs primarily to certain employeesrarchbers of its Board of Directors
of which 93 vest over a period of six months comanggon the date of the IPO, 6 vested immediatelest one year from the date of the |
and 5 vest two years from the date of the IPO. @mmation expense related to these newly issued RSdflected in general and
administrative expense, included in the compensatigense table above, is based on the fair vdilthednstruments on the date of grant and
is recognized in the period between the date aftgzad the date of vesting as the vesting is bandtie passage of time. In addition,
approximately 2 of the 6 RSUs that vested immeljiatere issued to consultants that provided pradesd services directly related to the IPO
and, thus, the Company recognized the $30 costiassd with those RSUs as an offering cost offsgtthe net proceeds from the IPO.

At June 30, 2014, there was $11,231 of total urgeized compensation cost, net of estimated forfegturelated to unvested stock
option and restricted stock awards granted undePtan. That cost is expected to be recognized@waighted average period of 1.62 years.

(b) 401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan with a safédramatching provision that covers all eligible dayges. The Company matches
50% of the employees’ contributions up to 6% ofrtigeoss pay. Contributions were approximately $38220 and $1,122 for the years ended
June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

(16) Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with cesfaia key officers. The agreements allow for minimannual compensation
increases, participation in equity incentive pland bonuses for annual performance as well asicetiange of control events as defined in
agreements.

(b) Litigation

From time to time, the Company is subject to litiga arising in the ordinary course of businessniyiaf these proceedings are
covered in whole or in part by insurance. In thengm of the Company’s management, the ultimatpasion of any matters currently
outstanding or threatened will not have a matexilerse effect on the Company’s financial positiesults of operations, or liquidity.

(c) Reseller Agreements

The Company had agreements with two resellerspbmnich was terminated in March 2014. The initedm of the first reseller
agreement commenced in February 2007 and was sgpie in February 2016 unless renewed. The In#ian of the second reseller
agreement commenced in June 2009 and is set toearplune 2016 unless renewed. Each of the Congeaseller agreements provides that
the Company is required upon a termination of ire@ment to acquire the assets of the reseller.

The first reseller agreement provided that eitlatypmay terminate the agreement by electing no¢new the agreement beyond its
original term. The Company, but not the reselllsp &ad the right to terminate the agreement atiamy following the completion of an initial
public offering by the Company. The Company exegtiis right to terminate the agreement in April2@nd closed on the purchase of the
reseller’s client base in May 2014. See Note Fddher information. The Company paid the firseler $1,693, $2,377 and $2,495 during
fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The second reseller agreement provided that tledleesnay terminate the agreement by providing miaaths’ prior notice or upon
an initial public offering by the Company. The Caeng amended this agreement in December of 2018tade that the reseller may not give
a nine-month termination notice until after thelieaof (i) six months following the closing of amitial public offering by the Company or
(i) December 31, 2014. In addition, the Company, ot the reseller, now has the right to termirthéesagreement at any time after the date
that is six months following the completion of aitial public offering by the Company. If a
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termination were to occur, the purchase price efrsellers assets to be acquired would be eq@aBtibimes the net revenues of the reseller fc
the 12 months preceding the termination effectaedThe Company paid the second reseller $1,32483 and $2,081 during fiscal years
2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

(17) Earnings Per Share

For the periods presented prior to the Company®; asic and diluted net income (loss) per comnmamesis presented in conformity
with the two-class method required for participgtsecurities. Concurrently with the closing of @@mpany’s IPO on March 24, 2014, all
shares of outstanding Preferred Stock automaticalhwerted into 11,933 shares of the Company’s comstock. Following the date of the
IPO, the two-class method was no longer requirdti@€ompany has one class of securities issueduasthnding.

Prior to the conversion of the Redeemable Converfoeferred Stock, holders of Series A and S&iPseferred Stock each were
entitled to liquidation preferences payable priod & preference to any dividends on any shar¢seo€ompany’s common stock. In the even
a dividend was paid on common stock, the holdeRreferred Stock were entitled to a proportionagea of any such dividend as if they were
holders of common stock (on an as-if convertedd)ashe holders of the Company’s Preferred Stodkndt have a contractual obligation to
share in the losses of the Company. The Comparsidened its Preferred Stock to be participatingigées and, in accordance with the two-
class method, earnings allocated to Preferred @tndkhe related number of outstanding shareseféRed Stock have been excluded from
computation of basic and diluted net income (I@ges)common share.

Under the two-class method, net income (loss)aattizible to common stockholders is determined ycating undistributed earnings,
calculated as net income less current period RedelenConvertible Preferred Stock cumulative dividigrbetween common stock and
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock. In compudituted net income (loss) attributable to commtatkholders, undistributed earnings
are re-allocated to reflect the potential impaafibftive securities.

Basic net loss per common share is computed ussg/eighted-average number of common shares odistaduring the period.
Since the Series A and Series B Redeemable ColbolecRtieferred Stock were entitled to participateusth any common stock dividends have
been declared but were not obligated to participatsy losses generated by the Company, basiac@ine per share is computed using the
weighted-average number of common shares outstguadiring the period plus the Series A and Seri€eBeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock on a weighted-average basis.

Diluted net loss per share is computed using thighwed-average number of common shares outstamidirigg the period and, if
dilutive, potential common shares outstanding dutive period. Since the Series A and Series B Redele Convertible Preferred Stock were
entitled to participate should any common stockd#imds be declared but were not obligated to ppatie in any losses generated by the
Company, diluted net income per share is compusetyithe weighted-average number of common shdweshpe Series A and Series B
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock on a wedgawerage basis and, if dilutive, potential commbares outstanding during the period.
The Company’s potential common shares consisteofritremental common shares issuable upon theisg@tstock options. The dilutive
effect of outstanding stock options is reflectedlilnted earnings per share by application of thagury stock method.

The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net income (loss) per share:

Year ended June 30

2012 2013 2014
Basic net income (loss) per she
Numerator:
Net Income (Loss $1,68t¢ $617 $(7,110
Less: Preferred dividend rights attributable taipgrating securitie: (690 (2,908 (2,282
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhial $99¢ $(2,291 $(9,392
Denominator
Weighted-average shares used in computing net ia¢tons) per share attributable to common
stockholders
Basic (in thousand: 43,87: 31,98t¢ 36,70"
Weightec-average effect of potentially dilutive shar
Employee stock options (in thousan 444 — —
Diluted (in thousands 44,31% 31,98¢ 36,70"
Net income (loss) per share attributable to comstookholders
Basic $0.0z2 $(0.07 $(0.26
Diluted $0.0z2 $(0.07 $(0.26
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The following table summarizes the outstanding ey stock options, restricted stock units, anéeathble convertible preferred
stock that were excluded from the diluted per sleateulation for the periods presented becausedade them would have been anti-dilutive:

Year ended June 30, 201

2012 2013 2014
Redeemable convertible preferred st — 11,93 —
Restricted stock unit — — 10z
Employee stock options — 1,85¢ 4,38¢
Total — 13,79: 4,49(

Restricted Stock Awards were excluded from bothdoaisd diluted earnings per share calculationsHeryears ended June 30, 2012
and 2013 as the vesting conditions had not been met

(18) Related Party Transactions
Blue Marble

The Company entered into a Memorandum of UnderstgriMemorandum”) and a Non-Competition and NoriStation
Agreement (“Non-Compete”) with its Chairman Stewedvitz and Blue Marble, a separate legal entitpedvby Mr. Sarowitz, in June 2014.

As stipulated in the Memorandum, Mr. Sarowitz raeid as an employee of Paylocity but continuesneesthe Company as the non-
executive Chairman of the board of directors. Wemorandum establishes the ongoing market baset teetween the Company and Blue
Marble for services provided to or on behalf ofreather. In addition, Paylocity obtained a righficst refusal on the sale of Blue Marble, an
option exercisable starting three years from thie dathe Memorandum to purchase Blue Marble, aedight of first refusal to purchase any
acquisition target of Blue Marble outside the Udiftates of America, all at fair market value. Memorandum requires Blue Marble to
obtain written consent from Paylocity should Bluarldle intend to acquire an entity that providepamtners with other service providers to
provide products and services to clients locatatiénUnited States of America. The Company pravite management guidance to the entity
has no equity interest in the entity, no obligatiorintention to fund any of the entity’s operatbshortfalls, and no right to any operational
surpluses generated by the entity.

The Non-Compete agreement outlines the permisaitileities and ongoing responsibilities of Mr. Saitz and Blue Marble
including an obligation not to compete with sergicdfered by Paylocity and an obligation not td@bemployees of Paylocity.

Elite Sales

The Company purchased sales leads from an entigdWwy one of the stockholders in the amount of@pmately $404, $893 and
$231 for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 ahtl 2@spectively. The Company provided no managemédance to the entity and had no
equity interest in the entity, had no obligationmention to fund any of the entity’s operatiosabrtfalls, and had no right to any operational
surpluses generated by the entity. Accounts payalites entity were approximately $65 and $0 adwfe 30, 2013 and 2014, respectively. O
October 14, 2013, the Company hired substantidlliyfahe employees of the sales lead generatidityestescribed above.

Principal Stockholder Contribution for Cash Bonuses

In May 2014, the Company’s Chairman paid approxatya$1,052 to the Company for the express purpbgaying a cash bonus to
long-term employees in recognition of their pasviee. The Company recorded a capital contributimadditional paid-in capital for the
amount received from the Chairman and compensatipense for the amount paid to employees, accdydifihe Company paid the
employer portion of employment taxes and will reeeiny income tax related benefits from the paysiememployees and resulting taxes.
(19) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events feobatance sheet date through August 22, 2014 ateead which the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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In August 2014, the Board of Directors grantedrietgtd stock units for 340,875 shares of commonkstehich vest annually over fo
years and stock options to purchase 321,700 sbamsnmons stock at a weigh-average exercise price of $24.80 per share wheshaver
four years.

(20) Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following tables set forth selected unauditedrterly statements of operations data for ea¢heogight quarters in the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2014.

Quarter Ended
September 30 December 31,

2012 2012 March 31, 2013 June 30, 2013

Consolidated States of Operations C
Revenue: $15,82¢ $17,20C $24,00¢ $20,26:
Gross profit $7,307 $7,66% $13,27: $9,38¢
Operating income (los: $(616) $(1,088; $2,604 $(869)
Net income (loss $(405) $(627) $2,021 $(372)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to comstonkholders, bas

and diluted: $(0.04) $(0.04) $0.03 $(0.03)
Weighted-average shares used in computing net ia¢toss) per

share attributable to common stockhold

Basic 31,98¢ 31,98¢ 43,921 31,98¢

Diluted 31,98¢ 31,98¢ 44,407 31,98¢

Quarter Ended
September 30 December 31,

2013 2013 March 31, 2014 June 30, 2014

Consolidated States of Operations C
Revenue: $22,36¢ $23,90¢ $33,76¢ $28,647
Gross profit $10,622 $10,587 $18,841 $13,54:
Operating income (los: $(434) $(2,411; $2,13: $(6,306,
Net income (loss $(44) $(1,512] $1,15C $(6,704,
Net income (loss) per share attributable to comstonkholders, bas

and diluted: $(0.03) $(0.07) $0.01 (0.14)
Weighted-average shares used in computing net ia¢toss) per

share attributable to common stockhold

Basic 31,98¢ 31,98¢ 44,36( 49,564

Diluted 31,98¢ 31,98¢ 44,87C 49,564
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference

Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date

2.1 Share Exchange Agreement, dated November 7, : S-1 333193661 2.1 January 30, 20:

3.1 First Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpomneof S-1/A 333-193661 3.2 February 14, 201
the Registrani

3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws of the Registran S-1/A 333193661 3.4 February 14, 201

4.1 Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreemeregddat S-1 333-193661 4.1 January 30, 20:
June 29, 201z

4.3.1 Revolving Line of Credit Note, dated March 9, 20pa&yable S-1 333-193661 4.5.1 January 30, 20:
to Commerce Bank & Trust Compat

4.3.2 Allonge to Revolving Line of Credit Note, dated S-1 333-193661 4.5.2 January 30, 20:
November 27, 201:

10.1 Loan and Security Agreement by and among Commerce S-1 333-193661 10.1 January 30, 20:
Bank & Trust Company and Paylocity Corporation ediat
May 5, 2009

10.1.1 First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemengdiat S-1 333-193661 10.1.1 January 30, 20:
March 9, 2011

10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and S-1 333-193661 10.2 January 30, 20:
officers.

10.37 2008 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of agreement S-1 333-193661 10.3 January 30, 20:
thereunder

10.3.11 First Amendment to the 2008 Equity Incentive Plated S-1 333-193661 10.3.1 January 30, 20:
August 5, 2010

10.3.2f Second Amendment to the 2008 Equity Incentive Rlated S-1 333-193661 10.3.2 January 30, 20:
June 29, 201z

10.47 2014 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of agreement S-1/A 333-193661 10.4 February 14, 201
thereunder

10.57 Third Amended and Restated Executive Employment S-1/A 333-193661 10.5 February 14, 201
Agreement between Paylocity Corporation and Sté&ven
Beauchamp, dated February 7, 2C

10.6°7 Second Amended and Restated Executive Employment S-1/A 333-193661 10.7 February 14, 201
Agreement between Paylocity Corporation and Miclael
Haske, dated February 7, 20.

10.7 Office Lease between 3850 Wilke LLC and Paylocity S-1 333-193661 10.8 January 30, 20:
Corporation, dated January 12, 20

10.8.1 Amendment to Office Lease, dated January 5, 2 S-1 333193661 10.8.1 January 30, 20:

10.8.2 Amendment to Office Lease, dated May 6, 2( S-1 333193661  10.8.2 January 30, 20:




Table of Contents

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date
10.97 2014 Employee Stock Purchase P S-1/A 33:-193661 10.9 February 14, 201
14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Eth
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registra S-1 333193661 21.1 January 30, 20:
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Exhibit 14.1

PAYLOCITY HOLDING CORPORATION
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Conducting the business affairs of Paylocity Hodd@orporation. (the Company”) in accordance with the highest eth
standards and in compliance with legal requirematit;s directly with our goals of being valdeven and transparent.
reputation for being valudriven, transparent and honest builds the bond devemployees, officers, members of the Boa
Directors of the Company (theBoard "), stockholders, vendors, consultants and all busipagsers to satisfy the demand.
customers. The integrity of Paylocity Holding Coration provides a foundation for this mission.

This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (ti@ote”) applies to all Company employees, officers, coasist an
members of the Board of Directors.

The Code is subject to all applicable law.

Nothing in this Code is intended to require anyoactontrary to law. If the Code conflicts withyalaw, you must comp
with the law. Nothing in the Code is intended dl Wwe considered (i) to amend the charter or by@ad the Company, (i)
change the legal duties imposed under state, fededaother applicable statutes, rules and reguiatfi(iii) to expand liabilitie
beyond applicable law, (iv) to create or imply anpboyment contract or term of employment or (vaftect any rights availak
under state and other applicable law or the Comipararter or bylaws.

The Code may be amended, modified or waived fromrtie to time.

This Code may be amended, modified or waived byNbminating and Corporate Governance Committedh@Board
Any amendments or modifications of the Code, onvera of any provision of the Code for officers atiigctors, will be prompt
disclosed in accordance with applicable securitiégs and the applicable rules of the Nasdaq Stoekkbt. This disclosu
requirement applies to any de facto waiver whereofficer or director violates the Code but is nabjected to any interr
sanctions.

You should consult the appropriate persons if you &ive any questions about the Code.

You are encouraged to talk to supervisors, manageother appropriate personnel when contempldtiegoest course
action in a particular situation. Working the issutrough these channels will help develop a calir active deliberatiol
regarding ethical matters. If a supervisor or manatpes not provide a satisfactory response togaegtions raised, you sho
seek guidance from the Compasgontroller in applying this Code to a particdtzt case. In the event the issue rises to the
of a corporate governance ethical or legal conademCompany maintains a Compliance Hotline uniderindependent control
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors t@able anonymous submission of violations of the Cddhe detailed procedul
are set forth elsewhere in this policy.

You must comply with the policies and procedures ahe Company, but if a policy or procedure conflics with the Code, yol
should follow the Code.

This Code provides general guidelines and is irgdnitd promote (i) honest and ethical conduct, iidg the ethice
handling or actual or apparent conflicts of intetestween personal and professional relationst§ipgull, fair, accurate, timel
and understandable disclosure in reports and daaisntieat the Company files with, or submits to, 8ezurities and Exchar
Commission and in other public communications) Gompliance with applicable laws, rules and regoites; (iv) prompt interni
reporting of violations of the Code to appropriptgsons identified in the Code; and (v) accountgtdibr adherence to the Coc
The Code is intended to complement, but not replheepolicies and
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procedures of the Company. If any policy or pragedf the Company conflicts with the Code, you tmasnply with the Code.
You will be subject to disciplinary action if you volate this Code.
Violators of this Code will be subject to disci@iy action.

1. Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of interest must be avoided without pragproval of the Company’s Chief Executive Officex."conflict of
interest” exists when an individual’'s private irgstr interferes in any way — or even appears tofere—with the interests of t
Company. A conflict situation can arise when agviidual takes actions or has interests that makeniiadifficult to perform hi
or her Company work objectively and effectivelyorflicts of interest also arise when an individual,a member of his or t
family, receives improper personal benefits assalteof the individuak position in the Company, whether received froe
Company or a third party.

All employees, officers, directors and consultantsst disclose any conflicts of interest, includany material transacti
or relationship involving a potential conflict afterest. Any employee, officer, director or cotesail who becomes aware ¢
conflict of interest or a potential conflict shouddng it to the attention of a supervisor, managethe Company’s Controller.

No employee or officer may work, including as asutant or a board member, simultaneously for tbem@any and ar
competitor, customer, supplier or business pamvigrout the prior written approval of the CompasiyChief Executive Officel
Officers and employees are encouraged to avoiddinggt or indirect business connections with then@anys competitor:
customers, suppliers or business partners, exceiptloalf of the Company.

Executive officers and their family members arehgrited from accepting any personal loans from @mmpany c
allowing the Company to guarantee any of theiraasobligations, except as may be permitted ufetiaral law.

2. Corporate Opportunities

Employees, officers and directors owe a duty toGbepany to advance its legitimate interests wheropportunity to ¢
so arises. Employees, officers and directors aphilpited from (i) taking for themselves personadigportunities that propel
belong to the Company or are discovered throughutee of corporate property, information or positi¢i) using corporat
property, information or position for improper panal gain; and (iii) competing with the Company.

3. Confidentiality, Proprietary Information and Intdtual Property

Employees, officers and directors of the Compangtrmaintain the confidentiality of information eudgted to them by tl
Company or its customers, except when disclosuagtisorized by the Company or is legally mandatédployees, officers al
directors should, whenever feasible, consult with Companys Controller if they believe they have a legal gation to disclos
confidential information. Confidential informatiancludes all norpublic information that might be of use to compmtt o
harmful to the Company or its customers, if diseths

If you are employed by the Company, you completedPeoprietary Information and Inventions Agreememt’
employment agreement (or a similar document) ggftinth, among other obligations, your treatmentaffidential informatio
and intellectual property. You are expected toeadlstrictly to the provisions of this signed agneat between the Company
you. Please -read it from time-tdime to familiarize yourself with the terms of suapreement and consult with your superv
manager or the Company’s Controller if you have qugstions.

4. FEair Dealing




All employees, officers and directors are requitecconduct themselves honestly and ethically whemymg out th
Company’s business, and to endeavor to deal fawth the Company customers, suppliers, competitors and emplo’
Employees, officers and directors are prohibitemnfitaking unfair advantage of such persons thraughipulation, concealme
abuse of privileged information, misrepresentabbmaterial facts, or any other unfair-dealing pices.

Employees, officers and directors are prohibitemmfrtaking any action to improperly influence, cagrmanipulate «
mislead the Company’s internal or outside auditorto prevent such persons from performing a diligeudit of the Company’
financial statements.

5. Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets

Employees, officers and directors are expectedrevept the Compang’ assets and ensure their efficient use, an
prohibited from engaging in theft, carelessnessyaste. All Company assets should be used fotidegfie business purposes,
incidental personal use may be permitted if argilta a business purpose and reimbursed in accoedaith Company policy
Employees, officers and directors may not makeiampyroper use of Company property such as Compamgsfusoftware, eaail
systems, voice mail systems, computer networks, g@@om vehicles, rental cars rented on behalf oQbmpany, and facilities f
personal benefit or profit.

6. Compliance with Company Policies, Laws, Rules apduations

All employees, officers and directors are requi@domply with Company policies, the laws, ruled aegulations of tF
U.S. and other countries, and the states, couritgss and other jurisdictions, in which the Compa&onducts its business or
laws, rules and regulations of which are applicabléhe Company, including, without limitation, grohibitions on Insidel
trading” and trading while in possession of mater@-public information applicable to the Company arsdeimployees, officel
directors and consultants. For more informatideage see the various Company policies locateth@Cbompany Intranet witt
particular focus on the Employee Policy Handboakjder Trading Policy and Disclosure Policy.

The Companys operations are subject to laws and regulatiotis inothe United States and in other countriesr €ue
values demand that we ensure diligent adherentteteequirements of all applicable laws, rules geglilations. Significant are
of law that could be applicable to the activitieé tbe Company include, but are not limited to (ivpcy and dal
security/protection laws; (ii) patent and tradensatkws; (iii) antitrust laws governing free and open competition) lfizalth
safety and environmental laws; (v) federal se@asitaws; and (vi) import/export controls.

In addition to the areas addressed above, the Qomeguires full compliance with the Foreign Cortr&pactices Act (“
FCPA ™), which makes illegal any corrupt offer, payment,rpige to pay, or authorization to pay any mone, gif anything c
value to any foreign official, or any foreign padal party, candidate or official, for the purpadd(i) influencing any act or failu
to act, in the official capacity of that foreigrfiofal or party or (ii) inducing the foreign offial or party to use influence to affet
decision of a foreign government or agency; in pideobtain or retain business for anyone, or ditecsiness to anyone. .
Company employees, officers and directors, whdtieated in the United States or abroad, are redgen®r FCPA complianc
and the procedures to ensure FCPA compliance.

This Code does not summarize all laws, rules agdlations applicable to the Company and its empsyefficers ar
directors. Please consult the Compangontroller and the various guidelines that thenGany prepares from time to time
specific policies, laws, rules and regulations. uYare encouraged to direct questions to your sigmrvmanager or tl
Companys Controller if you become concerned about theatioh of law by the Company, its employees, officatirectors ¢
consultants.

7. Eull, Fair and Accurate Disclosure in Public Fiknand Communications
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The Companys commitment to its stockholders demands that weige full, fair, accurate, timely and understard
disclosure in the reports, documents and commuaitafiled with the Securities and Exchange Comimisand in other publ
communications. Although certain personnel are endirectly involved in the preparation of such népodocuments al
communications than others, the Company expectaathbers of our community to accept this respolityid our stockholders
Accordingly, all employees, officers, directors acmhsultants have an ethical responsibility to mlevrompt, complete a
accurate information in response to inquiries eglatto preparation of the Compasypublic disclosure documents and pt
communications. In addition and in order to ensaceurate financial reporting to our stockholddaigse personnel w|
participate in the maintenance and preparatiom@Gompanys books, records and accounts must ensure thaiatiactions ar
events recorded therein are done so in an accar@tecomplete manner in compliance with requirecbactng principles ar
Company policies.

8. Compliance Hotline

You have an ethical responsibility to help enfafve Code. You should be alert to possible viotetiand report them
supervisors, managers or other appropriate personfe may consider seeking guidance from the Camgjs Controller ii
applying the Code to a particular fact case. lf gesire to report violations on an anonymous bgeis may contact the our third-
party provider at (866) 869380, via the internet at www.openboard.info/pctyvia email at pcty@openboard.info. Y
submission will be fielded initially by trained cgultants who are not employees of the Company emdirder the independ:
control of the Audit Committee of the Board of Duters. Please be forthcoming with the details airyparticular situation -
enable the Audit Committee to fully investigate Sieation.

The Company will not allow retaliation for reportaade in good faith, of actual or suspected viotatiof this Code
other illegal or unethical conduct. Disciplinamgtian will be taken against anyone who retaliatesadly or indirectly against au
employee or officer who reports an actual or sutggkeegiolation of the Code.
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Paylocity Holding Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdggstration statement on Form S-8 (No. 332840) of Paylocity Holdir
Corporation (the Company) of our report dated Au@2s 2014, relating to the consolidated balan@ethof the Company as
June 30, 2013 and 2014, and the related consdlidaadements of operations, changes in redeemableedible preferred sto
and stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash fldaseach of the years in the three-year period eddee 30, 2014.

(signed) KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
August 22, 2014




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTT O
SECTION 302(a) OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven R. Beauchamp, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRaylocity Holding Corporation (the “Company”)fthe year ended June 30, 2014;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 that has mateaéiygted, or is reasonably likely to materialljeat, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioiernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 22, 2014 /s/ Steven R. Beauchar
Name: Steven R. Beauchamp
Title President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECTION 302(a) OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Peter J. McGirall, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRaylocity Holding Corporation (the “Company”)fthe year ended June 30, 2014;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or eondttate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over fiiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 that has mateaélyted, or is reasonably likely to materialljeat, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioiernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 22, 2014 /sl Peter J. McGra
Name: Peter J. McGrall
Title Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, the President and Chief Exec@iffieer of Paylocity Holding Corporation (the “Comapy”), does hereby certify und
the standards set forth and solely for the purpoté&8 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@6nof the Sarbanegdxley Act of 2002, the
the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company Far year ended June 30, 2014 fully complies withréggiirements of Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 andrimf@tion contained in that Form 10-K fairly preseimsall material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: August 22, 2014 /s/ Steven R. Beauchar
Name: Steven R. Beauchamp
Title President and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@uammission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of IBaiy Holding Corporation (the “Company”), doesrély certify under the standards
set forth and solely for the purposes of 18 U.3350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the yeareehdlune 30, 2014 fully complies with the requiretaerf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtamred in that Form 18-fairly presents, in all material respects, theficial condition ar
results of operations of the Company.

Date: August 22, 2014 /sl Peter J. McGra
Name: Peter J. McGrall
Title Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@uammission or its staff upon request.




